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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

BCV Social LLC,

223 W Erie St 2NW,
Chicago, lllinois 60654.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BCV Social LLC. (the “Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of March 31, 2025, and related statement of income, stakeholder’s equity
and cash flow for the year then ended and related notes to financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the financial
position of the company as of March 31, 2025, and the results of the operations and its cash flow for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of financial statements” section of our report, we are required to be
independent of the company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit reports. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financials statements that are from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the company ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that include
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect material misstatements
resulting from fraud which is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion and
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation or the override of internal control. Misstatements, include
omissions are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgement made by reasonable user based on financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financials statement whether due to
fraud and error, and design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risk. Such procedure
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosure in financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant
accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate overall presentation of financials statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are condition or events, considered in aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit, significant audit findings and certain related internal control that we
identified during the audit.

A ks

Subhajit Guha, CPA

For P&G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Public Accounting Firm

Firm Registration Number: 5000066
Date: 6™ August, 2025
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BCYV SOCIAL LLC
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note  March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents D 370,229 618,257
Accounts Receivables E 1,120,784 967,155
Other Current Assets F 303,765 648,976
Total Current Assets 1,794,778 2,234,388
Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net G 172,047 206,832
Intangible Assets, Net H 7,318,996 8,350,149
Deferred Tax Asset 1,030,026 981,607
Total Non- Current Assets 8,521,069 9,538,588
Total Assets 10,315,847 11,772,976
Liabilities & Stockholder’s Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payables 727,062 795,014
Other Current Liabilities 1 8,174,765 8,236,390
Total Current Liabilities 8,901,827 9,031,404
Total Liabilities 8,901,827 9,031,404
Commitments and Contingencies J

Stockholder's Equity

Additional Paid in Capital 24,161,561 24,161,561
Retained Earnings (22,747,541) (21,419,989)
Total Stockholder's Equity 1,414,020 2,741,572
Total Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity 10,315,847 11,772,976

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For BCY Social LLC

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 6" August,2025




BCV SOCIAL LLC

Statement of Income for the year ended March 31, 2025

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note  Nlarch31,2025  March 31,2024
Revenue

Sale of Services L 7,109,814 7,443,431
Other Income - 41,956
Total Revenue 7,109,814 7,485,387
Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits M 4,684,131 5,160,070
General and Administrative expenses N 2,729,495 2,951,184
Depreciation and Amortization G&H 1,072,159 1,744,519
Total Operating Expense 8,485,785 9,855,773
Operating Loss (1,375,971) (2,370,386)
Tax Expenses P (48,419) (155,043)
Net Loss (1,327,552) (2,215,343)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 6™ August,2025



BCV SOCIAL LLC

Statement of Stockholder's Equity
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

. Additional Paid in Retained Stockholder's
Particulars . . .
Capital Earnings Equity

Balance as on March 31, 2023 24,161,561 (19,204,646) 4,956,915
Net loss for the year - (2,215,343) (2,215,343)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 24,161,561 (21,419,989) 2,741,572
Net loss for the year - (1,327,552) (1,327,552)
Balance as on March 31, 2025 24,161,561 (22,747,541) 1,414,020

Stockholders equity consists of additional paid in capital and retained earnings. The sole Member of the company is
RateGain Technologies, Inc (USA).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For BC)%’-Social LLC

\

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 6" August,2025




BCV SOCIAL LLC
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Loss (1,327,552) (2,215,343)
Depreciation and Amortization 1,072,159 1,744,519
Provision for doubtful debts 105,950 69,489
Sundry balances written back - 41,956
Trade and other receivables written off - 127,918
Deferred tax (benefit) (48,419) (155,043)
Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities
Decrese/(Increase) In Accounts Receivable (259,579) 435,225
Decrease/(Increase) In Other Current Assets 345211 (453,211)
(Decrease)/Increase In Accounts Payable (67,952) 313,040
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabilities (61,625) (2,803,242)
Net Cash Used By Operating Activities (241,807) (2,894,692)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Computer Office and Equipment (6,221) (88,438)
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (6,221) (88,438)
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (248,028) (2,983,130)
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year 618,257 3,601,387
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note D) 370,229 618,257

Cash flow statements have been prepared using Indirect method as specified in US GAAP.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For B(:)f cial LLC

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 6" August,2025




BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note A NATURE OF OPERATIONS
BCV Socials LLC (The company) is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Inc. and its ultimate holding company is RateGain Travel
Technologies Limited("RateGain"), a SaaS company registered in India. RateGain is listed in the stock exchanges in India.

It is engaged in the business of providing data as a service, distribution and market technologies to travel and hospitality sector on a SaaS platform.

Note B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies are detailed below:

-

Basis of accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America

(US GAAP) to reflect the financial position and results of operations of the Company.

The financial statements are presented for the year ended March 31, 2025. All amounts are stated in United States Dollars, unless specified otherwise.

2 Going concern
The Company has incurred net losses for the year ended March 31, 2025, of $ 1,327,552 (2024: $ 2,215,343). The directors having reviewed the
company's forecast, and the support assured by the parent company, Rategain Technologies Inc. , are confident that the company has adequate financial
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The directors have therefore continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements.

3 Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The management's estimates for determination of useful lives for property, plant and equipment net,
provision for doubtful debts, allowance for chargebacks, discounts and rebates, and estimation relating to unsettled transactions and events at the balance
sheet date represent certain of these particularly sensitive estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates'. Revisions in accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the current and
future periods.

I

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of all cash accounts which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties and all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial
instruments. Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to specified sum for each insured bank for each
account per depositor. Cash balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and similar insurance coverage are subject to the usual
banking risks associated with funds in excess of those limits.

wn

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of
consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue from operations is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The Company derived revenue from sale of service through its a end to end Digital Marketing Suite to manage Brand presence for Hotels across Social
Media and Metasearch platforms and optimize direct bookings.

Sale of Services
Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognized over the specified subscription period on straight line basis or on the basis of
underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the contracts with customers. The Company defers unearned revenue,
including payments received in advance, until the related subscription period is complete or underlying services are performed. Revenue from marketing
support services, social media management fee and auxiliary business support services are in terms of agreements with the customers and are recognized
on the basis of satisfaction of performance obligation over the duration of the contract from the date the contracts are effective or signed provided the
consideration is reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection. The amount recognized as revenue is net of applicable
taxes.

6 Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowances for expected credit losses. The Company evaluates the credit risk of its customers based on a
combination of various financial and qualitative factors that may affect the ability of each customer to pay. The Company considered current and
anticipated future economic conditions relating to the industries of the Company’s customers and the countries where it operates. In calculating expected
credit loss, the Company also considered past payment trends, credit rating and other related credit information for its significant customers to estimate
the probability of default in the future. Accounts receivable balances are written-off against the allowance for expected credit losses after all means of
collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. The Company generally does not require any security or collateral to
support its receivables.



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

7 Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Property, plant and equipment, net, are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is generally computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Computer & Office Equipment 5-7

Upon the retirement or sale of our property, plant and equipment, the cost and associated accumulated depreciation are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected on the consolidated statement of operations. Maintenance and repair expenditures are expensed as
incurred while major improvements that increase the functionality, output or expected life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated ratably over the
identified useful life.

8 Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Customer Relationships 12
Database 5
Software 10
Domain Name 5

Goodwill:
The company tests goodwill for impairment annually. The management conducts impairment assessment and compares the carrying amount of goodwill
with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is computed based upon discounted cash flow projections.

9 Income Taxes
The Company with stockholders consent has elected to be taxed as an 'Single Member LLC ' under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and
comparable state revenue tax law. As an 'Single Member LLC' the Company is generally not subject to corporate income taxes and the Company's' net
income or loss is reported on the tax return of the RateGain Technologies Inc., a holding company. Accordingly, the tax expenses of the holding company
are apportioned to the Company.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance is recorded for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

10 Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to
measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels which are directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs to the valuation of these
assets or liabilities are as follows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the measurement
date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are directly observable for the asset or liability or indirectly observable through
corroboration with observable market data

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability only used when there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining
fair value

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The estimated
fair value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts of these instruments. None of these
instruments are held for trading purposes.

11 Commitments and Contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments litigations, fines, penalties, and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as
incurred. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements.



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

12

13

14

Note C

Note D

Note E

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is recognized as an expense in the financial statements based on the fair value of the award. The Company recognizes
compensation expense based on estimated grant-date fair value using the following variables:

Valuation and Amortization Method — The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and a
single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized ratably over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting
period of four years.

Expected Term — The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock- based awards are estimated to be outstanding and was
determined using the simplified method allowed under ASC 718-10, Compensation — Stock Compensation (ASC 718-10).

Expected Volatility — The Parent Company is a newly listed company and it doesn’t have a listed peer as of the valuation date which are focused
exclusively on the segment in which the Parent Company operate, therefore for the purpose of calculating the volatility, Volatility of the Nifty IT Index is
considered.

Expected Dividend — Expected dividend yield was not considered in the option pricing formula since the Parent Company does not pay dividends and has
no current plans to do so in the future.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is based on the Central Government bond rate in effect at
the time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected term of the options.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Defined Benefit Employee Plans:
The contributions made by the company under defined contribution plan are recognized as an expense in the statement of income.

Recently issued accounting standards not yet adopted
We have reviewed the recent accounting pronouncements and concluded they are either not applicable to the business or no material effect is expected on

the financial statements as a result of future adoption.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of Bank balance, intercompany receivables
and accounts receivable. By their nature, all accounts receivable involve risk including the credit risk of non-performance by counter parties. In
management's opinion, as of March 31, 2025 there was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the counter parties to these cash
equivalents and accounts receivable.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for the accounts receivables is minimum. The average credit period to settle accounts receivables is about 30 to 60
days.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents, include the following:

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance with bank 370,229 618,257
Total 370,229 618,257
The company has no restricted cash balance as at March 31, 2025.
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
Accounts receivable, net include the following:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Accounts and other receivable 1,312,832 1,053,253
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (192,048) (86,098)
Total 1,120,784 967,155
The movement in provision for doubtful debts during the year was as follows:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Balance at beginning of the year 86,098 144,527
Provision created during the year 105,950 69,489
Less: bad debts written off during the year - (127,918)
Balance at the end of the year 192,048 86,098




BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note F

Note G

Note H

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Other Current Assets, net include the following:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Security deposits 8,830 8,830
Prepaid expenses 41,813 205,939
Advances /Loan to Employees 126,651 50,000
Related Party Receivables (Refer Note K) 126,471 384,207
Total 303,765 648,976
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment, net, comprises of
Particulars Flll‘l.litlll’e and Comput.er & Office Total
Fixtures Equipment
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 29,741 641,435 671,176
Additions - 6,221 6,221
Balance as at 31 March 2025 29,741 647,656 677,397
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 28,770 435,574 464,344
Depreciation 336 40,670 41,006
Balance as at 31 March 2025 29,106 476,244 505,350
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 971 205,861 206,832
Balance as at 31 March 2025 635 171,412 172,047
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Particulars Software Customer Database
Relationships
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 4,045,738| 5,692,581 3,827,434
Additions: E 1 E
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4,045,738 5,692,581 3,827,434
Accumulated amortization:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 1,945,280 2,280,931 3,680,628
Amortization 406,790 476,980 146,806
Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,352,070 2,757,911 3,827,434
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,100,458 3,411,650 146,806
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1,693,668 2,934,670 -
Particulars Domain Name Goodwill Total
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 15,000 2,690,658 16,271,411
Additions: E 1 -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 15,000 2,690,658 16,271,411
Accumulated amortization:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 14,423 - 7,921,262
Amortization 577, - 1,031,153
Balance as at 31 March 2025 15,000 - 8,952,415
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 577 2,690,658 8,350,149
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 2,690,658 7,318,996
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BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note I

Note J

Note K

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Current Liabilities, net include the following:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Employee related payable 6,709 120,739
Related Party Payables (Refer Note K) 7,941,918 7,544,141
Statutory liabilities 31,046 68,964
Advance from customer - 50,665
Deferred Revenue 192,342 449,131
Accrued Expenses 2,750 2,750
Total 8,174,765 8,236,390
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no Commitments and Contingent Liabilities as at 31st March, 2025.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related Party Nature of relation
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (India) Ultimate Holding Company
RateGain Technologies Limited (UK) Intermediate Holding Company
RateGain Technologies Inc.(US) Holding Company
Rategain Adara Inc* Fellow Subsidiary
RateGain Technologies LLC (Dubai) Fellow Subsidiary
Rategain Germany Gmbh (formerly known as MyHotelshop [Fellow Subsidiary
Gmbh)
* Also refer Note R Subsequent events
Transactions with related parties
Amount as on Amount as on
Expenses incurred on behalf of March 2025 March 2024
RateGain Technologies Inc., US 530,777 604,252
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 89,300 189,306
Rategain Germany Gmbh 506,859 266,936
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 253,135 350,328
RateGain Adara Inc 806,975 270,653
RateGain Technologies LLC 3,339 -
Expense incurred on our behalf by
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 39,105 116,351
RateGain Technologies Inc., US 533,028 64,351
Rategain Germany Gmbh 238,336 -
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 549,039 805,897
RateGain Adara Inc 722,647 3,713
Balances with related parties
Related Party Transaction Type Amount as on Amount as on March
March 2025 2024
RateGain Technologies Inc.(US) Other current (7,546,392) (7,544,141)
liability
'Rategain Germany Gmbh Accounts receivable 309,098 42,039
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (India) Other current (122,198 173,707
(Liability)/asset
RateGain Technologies LLC (Dubai) Other current asset 3,320 g
RateGain Technologies Limited (UK) Other current asset 123,151 72,956
Rategain Adara Inc (USA) Other current (273,328 137,544

(Liability)/asset

11




BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note L

Note M

Note N

Note O

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables summarize revenues by region for the years March 31,2025:

For the year ended For the year ended
Region March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Revenue from services provided in USA 5,759,570 6,786,991
Revenue from services provided in APMEA 568,016 515,434
Revenue from services provided in other regions 782,226 141,006
Total 7,109,812 7,443,431
Revenue disaggregated by timing of recognition:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Services transferred over time 7,109,814 7,443,431
Total revenue by timing of recognition 7,109,814 7,443,431
SALARY & BENEFITS
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Salaries, bonus and other benefits 4,706,207 5,131,830
Employee stock option expense (22,076) (14,269)
Staff welfare expenses - 42,509
Total 4,684,131 5,160,070

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended|

For the year ended|

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Advertising and marketing expenses 1,639,953 1,665,461
Fees and subscriptions 335,532 351,486
Travelling and conveyance 146,580 104,326
Rent 55,382 60,067
Hosting and Proxy charges 154,920 150,187
Bad debts written off - 127918
Provision for Bad debts 105,950 69,489
Training & Recruitment expenses 4,983 15,000
Office maintenance 1,751 2,969
Legal and professional fees 233,320 385,550
Bank charges 13,641 11,841
Communication charges 2,448 8,839
Contractual manpower cost 30,339 2,400
Postage and courier charges 1,999 1,615
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange(net) 2,197 (5,964)
Total 2,729,495 2,951,184

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs) 2022

The Scheme has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company (Rategain Travel Technologies Ltd incorporated and listed in India), on
11 February 2022, read with the Special Resolution passed by its Members of the Company on 19 March 2022 and shall be deemed to come into force
with effect from 19 March 2022 being the date of approval by its Members. The maximum number of SAR Units of the Parent Compnay that can be
granted to any eligible Employee during any one year shall not be equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Parent Company at the time of
grant. The Committee may decide to grant such number of SAR Units equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital to any eligible Employee as the case
may be, subject to the applicable laws. Vesting period shall commence from the date of grant subject to a minimum of 1 (One) year from the grant date
and a maximum period 4 (Four) years or such other period from the grant date, at the discretion of and in the manner prescribed by the Committee,
provided further that, in the event of death or permanent incapacity of a Grantee, the minimum vesting period of one year shall not be applicable.

The Actual vesting would be subject to the continued employment of the Grantee

The following table summarizes the option activity under the Plan for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Particulars No.of options
Outstanding as on 1st April 2024 107,505
Granted during the year 22,869
Vested during the year -
Lapsed during the year (62,261)
Outstanding as on 31 March 2025 68,113
32;2 ?;;gmh options Exercise Price $

June 9, 2022 3.37

July 4, 2024 9.41

February 13, 2025 7.44

The Company recorded the stock based Compensation income of $ 22,076 (expense 2024: § 14,269) related to outstanding Stock Options for the year
ended 31 March 2025 included in Salary & Benefits. Options Granted typically vest 10% after one year anniversary of the grant date, then 20% in second
year followed by 30% in next year and 40 % in last year.

The fair values are measured based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model (1)5, grant date.



BCV SOCIAL LLC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note P INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, consisted of the following:

For the year ended For the year ended
Deferred tax provision / (benefit): March 31,2025 March 31,2024
-Domestic - Federal (44,944) (145,530)
-Domestic - State and local (3,475) (9,513)
Total (48,419) (155,043)
Significant components of the Company’s deferred taxes as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Depreciation and amortization expense 981,214 946,013
Stock-based compensation (707) 4,287
Allowance for CECL 43,140 19,170
Net unrealized foreign exchange loss 499 E
Deferred Payroll Taxes 5,881 12,137}
Total deferred tax asset 1,030,026 981,607

The decrease between the provision for income taxes and the income tax determined by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 21 % was due

primarily to losses being utilised by tax gorup in the USA.

Note Q RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Note R

The Company's future results of operations involve several risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the Company's future operating results and
cause actual results to vary materially from expectations include, competitive factors, including but not limited to pricing pressures; deterioration in
general economic conditions; the Company's ability to effectively manage operating costs and increase operating efficiencies; declines in revenues,
technological and market changes; the ability to attract and retain qualified employees and the Company's ability to execute on its business plan.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors of the Company and RateGain Adara Inc. ("Transferee Company" "step down subsidiary"), both are fellow subsidiaries of

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (The Ultimate holding company) approved a merger effective from 1 April 2025. The merger is subject to
regulatory approvals in the USA and is intended to consolidate complementary business operations, resulting in operational synergies, economies of scale,

and reduced administrative and compliance costs.

For BCV Social LLC  //);
\

Director: B. Chopra
Date: 6" August,2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Board of Directors of RateGain Adara Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of
RateGain Adara Inc. (the "Company”), which comprise the Special Purpose Standalone Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025, and the Special Purpose Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Special Purpose Standalone Statement of Cash Flows and the Special
Purpose Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Special
Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements”). These Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements are prepared solely for inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2025 under the requirements of section 129(3) of the Companies Act, -
2013.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the ,
aforesaid Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity

with the basis of preparation referred to in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements,

of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, totai comprehenswe income,

its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. : : Sl

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance

with the Standards on Auditing ("SA”s) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(*ICAI"}. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility

for the Audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial <
Statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Emphasis of Matter
Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, which
describes the purpose and basis of accounting. The Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements are prepared for inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (“the
Parent Company”) under the requirements of Section 129(3} of the Companies Act, 2013, As a result,
the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements may not be suitable for any other purpose.
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The Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements cannot be referred to-or distributed or
included or used for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing.:Qur report is intended
solely for the above purpose and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without
our prior written consent.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Special Purpose Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Special
Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the purpose set out in “Emphasis of Matter - Basis of
accounting and restriction on distribution and use” paragraph above.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS financial statements by the Board of Directors of
the Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as’&-going: concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements ’

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the hasis of these Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
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resulting. from error, as fraud may - involve ' collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal-controf. : S

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contral.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpose Standalene Ind AS
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

» Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to
express an opinion on the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Special Purpose
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. = y

o

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pianned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
financial controls that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.
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Reporting on comparatives in case the previous year was audited by the predecessor auditor

The Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2024, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmeodified opinion on those statements

cn May 17, 2024,

Our opinion on the Special Purpose Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect
of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366 100018)

Rajesh Kutflar Agaywal
(Partner)

{Membership No. 105546)
UDIN; 25105546BMLALID2623

Place: Gurugram
Pate: May 26, 2025




RateGain Adara INC
Special Purpose Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
All amounts are in USD thousand uniess otherwise stated

. As at As at
Particulars Notes 34 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 33.18 24,99
Gaodwill 4 12,333.32 12,333.32
Other intangible assets 4 7.539.17 9,078,90
Financial assets
Investments 5 34,89 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 120.55 82,00
Total non-current assets 20,061.10 21,519.21
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 10,649.53 10,084.39
Cash and cash equivalents 1t 15,052.90 4,212.42
Other financial assets 7 535.21 330.41
Cther current assets g 330.78 377.84
Total current assets 26,568.42 15,005.06
Total assets 46,629,562 36 524,27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 0.01 0.01
Cther equity 13 29,458.47 22,913.51
Totai equity 29, 459.48 22,913.52
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other financiat lfabiliies 14 - 475,73
Total non-current liabilities - 475,73
Current liabilities
Financial liabifities
Trade payables 16
I. total outstanding dues of creditors cther than micro enterprises and 10,265.27 5,304,386
small enterprisas
Other financial liabilities 14 3,390.61 3,360.45
Other current liabilities 15 1,826.20 2,594.07
Income tax liabilities (net) 8 1,687.95 1,886,14
Total current liabllities 17,170.04 13,135.02
Total Habitities 17,170.04 13,610.75
Total equity and liabilities 46,629.52 36,524,27
2

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these special purpose Standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Membership No.: 105646

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RateGain Adara INC




RateGain Adara INC
Special Purpose Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in USD thousand unless otherwise stated

’ Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue from operations 17 50,942.78 42.801.12
Other income 18 277.20 121.41
Total income 51,219.98 42,922.53
Expenses
Employee benefils expense 19 18,928.36 15,568.35
Finance costs 20 0.62 2.49
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 1,660.71 1,649.57
Other expenses . 22 22,427 .06 17,216.44
Total expenses 42 ,916.75 34,336.85
Profit before tax 8,303.23 8,585.68
Tax expense: 23
Current tax 1,795.81 1,962.34
Deferred tax credit {38.54) (81.07)
Total tax expense 1,757.27 1,881.27
Profit for the year 6,545.96 6,704.41
Other comprehensive income “ -
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,545.96 6,704.41
Earning per equity share (EPS)
Basic EPS3 24 6,545,986 6,704.41
Diluted EPS 24 6,545.96 6,704.41

Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these special purpose Standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date aftached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RateGain Adara INC

Partner
Membership No.: 105546

Date: 26 May 2025 Date; 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida



RateGaln Adara INC

Statement of Special Purpose Standalone Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts are in USD thousand unless otherwise stated

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 8,303.23 8,585.68
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,580.71 1,549.57
Finance cost 0.62 2.49
Employee stock oplion expense 152.29 26.61
Allowance for expected credit loss 505.62 170.00
Interest income {277.20) (78.27)
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 10,335.27 10,256.08
Working capifal adjustments:
(Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (1,160.78) (5,406.59)
(Increase)! Decrease in financial assets (185.5Q) (158.61}
(Increase)f Decrease in other assets 47.06 (210.57)
Increase! (Decrease) in trade payable 4,960.91 (239.07)
Increase! {Decrease) in other financial liabilities (587.86) (666.85)
Increasef (Decrease) in other liabilities (767.87) (244.54}
Cash generated from operating activities 12,641.25 3,329.86
Income tax (paid¥ refund (net) (1,993.99) {301.43}
Met cash generated from aperating activities 10,647.26 3,028.43
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (29.17) (30.41)
Investment in subsidiaries (34.89) -
Interest income 257.90 78.27
Consideration paid related 1o earlier acquisition “ {1,730.92)
Net cash generated fromf{used in} investing activities 193.84 (1,683.06)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance cost paid (0.62) (2.49)
Net cash used in financing activities (0.62) (2.49}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,840.48 1,342.88
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4212.42 2869.544
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 15,052.90 4,212.42
2

Material accounting policies

The statement of special purpose Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on 'Staternent of Standalone
Cash Flows’, as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder.

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloifte-Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accduntants

Partner
Membership No.: 105546

Date; 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RateGain Adgra INC




RateGain Adara INC
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
Alt amounts are in USD thousand unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital
Particulars Amount
Equity shares of USD 0,01 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 April 2023 0.04
Changes in equity share capital during the vear -
As at 31 March 2024 0.01
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 0,01
b. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Security premium Retained earnings Total
account
Batance as at 01 April 2023 14,918.34 1,290.76 16,209.10
Profit for the year - 6,704 .41 6,704,41
Balance as at 31 March 2024 14,918.34 7,995,117 22,913.51
Profit for the year - 6,545.96 8,545.96
Balance as at 31 March 2025 14,918.34 14,541.13 29,459.47

Material accounting polictes (refer note 2)

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

a

Ralesh
Partner
Membership No.: 105546

:_,: Chartered
S
[

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

RateGain Adara INGC

Pate: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida

(This space has been infenfionally left blark)




RateGain Adara Inc
Notes forming part of the special purpose standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

1

2.1

Company information/ overview

RateGain Adara Inc is registered in the state of Delaware and having its registered office at 300 Creek View
Road, Suite 209, Newark DE 19711, New Castle County. The Company was incorporated on 14 December 2022.
The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Inc., USA and its ultimate parent company
is RateGain Travel Technologies Limited ("RateGain"), a SaaS company registered in India. RateGain is listed in
the stock exchanges in India.

The Company is an Information Technology company providing innovative solutions to help clients in the
hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals.

Material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this nole, have been consistently applied, by
the company, to the year presented in the said financial statements, except in case of adoption of any new
standards and amendments during the year.

To provide more reliable and relevant information about the effect of certain items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Company has changed the classification of certain items. Previous year figures
have been re-grouped or reclassified, to confirm to such current year's grouping / classifications. There is no
impact on Equity or Net Lass due to these regrouping / reclassifications.

{a) Basis of preparation

These special purpose standalone Ind AS financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been
prepared by the company to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafier
referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and ather relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisicns of the Act.

These Special Purpose Ind AS financial statements (‘Financial Statements’) have heen prepared solely for
inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (‘Ultimate Parent Company’) for the year
ended March 31, 2025 under the requirements of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’).

The special purpose standafone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26 May 2025.

The special purpose financials statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1,
“Presentation of Financial Statements” and division 1l of Schedule Ill of the Act. Further, for the purpose of clarity,
various items are dis-aggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

(b) Basis of measurement

The special purpose slandalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis
under historical cost canvention except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value or amortized cost, defined benefit obligations and share based payments.

(¢) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of special purpose standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabifities In future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the special purpose
standalone financial statements in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the special purpose standalone financial statements.

Information about significant areas of estimation /uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the special purpose standalone financial statements are as follows: -




RateGain Adara Inc
Notes forming part of the special purpose standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

Recognhition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets,

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annuai defined
benefit expenses.

Allowance for expected credit losses — The allowance for doubtful debts reflects management's estimate
of losses inherent in its credit portfolio. This allowance is based on Company's estimate of the losses to be
incurred, which derives from past experience with similar receivables, current and historical past due
amounts, write-offs and collections, the careful monitaring of portfolio credit quality and current and projected
aconomic and market conditions. Should the present economic and financiat situation persist or even worsen,
there could be a further deterioration in the financial situation of the Company's debtors compared to that
already taken into consideration in calculating the allowances recognised in the financial statements.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a malterial
adjustment within the next financial year except for as disclosed in these special purpose standalone financial
statements.

(d) Fair value measurement |
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction |
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption |
that the transaction to selt the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: |
« Inthe principal market for the asset or liabiiity, or .
« In the absence of a principal market, in the mast advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to / by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the special purpose standalone financial
statements are categorized within fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale.,

« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assels and liabilities that are recognized in the special purpose standalone financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.




RateGain Adara Inc
Notes forming part of the special purpose standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

2.2 Other material accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the special
purpose standalone financial statements,

{a) Property, plant equipment

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of improvements to leasehold premises, if recognition criteria are met, are capitalised and disciosed
separately under leasehold improvement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the netdispasal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is inciuded in the Statement of profit and loss when such asset is derecognised.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent cost are charged to Statement of profit
and loss at the time of incurrence.

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method computed on the basis of useful life prescribed in
Schedule If to the Companies Act, 2013 ('Schedule II') an a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to put
to use.

Useful life as per Companies Act,

Block of asset 2013 (in years)

Computer 3

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of the initial lease term or
estimated useful life whichever is shorter.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of properly plant and equipment are reviewed by
management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

(b) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future ecenomic benefits
thal are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of assets can be measured reliably, The
other intangible assets are recarded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and
installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amorlisation and impairment losses, if any.




RateGain Adara Inc
Notes forming part of the special purpose standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

Gain or losses arising from derecognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible assets and are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Subsedquent cost

Subsequent cost is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All the subsequent expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in Statement of profit
and loss, as incurred.

Amortisation
Amoartisation is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets aver their estimated useful lives as stated
below using straight-line method. Amortisation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for assets purchased /disposed

during the year.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite life is recognised in the slatement of profit and loss

under the head Depreciation and amortization expense,

Amorlisation has been charged based on the following useful lives:

Asset description Useful life of asset (in years)
Computer software 3

Customer relationship and trade 12

name

Amortisation method, useful lives and residuai values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriale,

Deracognition of intangible asset
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., al the date the recipient obtains control) or when na future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

{c) Impairment - non-financial assets :

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying arnounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's recaverable
amount Is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash generating units (‘CGU'). Goodwill arising from a business combination Is allocated to a CGU or groups of
GGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or GGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount,

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profitand loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amaunt of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwilt is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised,
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(d} Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required to setfle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

{e) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled whaolly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

 Post-employment benefit plans
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation 1o pay further amounts. Payments to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The Company's net obligation in respect of compensated absences Is the amount of benefit to be settled in
future, that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous years. The benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

{f) Share based payments

The Company participates in the equity-seltled share-based payment arrangements established by the Parent
Company under the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS). Under this arrangement, eligible employees of the
Company are granted stock options by the Parent Company. The Parent Company is responsible for issuing
shares o the employees upon the exercise of these optians.

Accounting treatment in the Company’s financial statements

For share options granted to the employees of the Company, the fair value of the aptions is determined on the
grant date. The Company recognises the fair value aof the options as an employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss over the vesting period, based on the number of awards that are expected to vest
considering service and nan-market performance conditions.

Correspondingly, the Company recognises a liability to the Parent Company for the same amount, representing
the abligation to reimburse the Parent Company for the cost of shares issued to its employees upen exercise of
the options. This liability is remeasured at each reporting date for changes in the number of options expected to
vest.

If the oplions are cash-settled, the Company recognises a liability equivalent to the fair value of the options at
each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The liability is settled in cash to the
Parent Company, who then settles the employee abligation by issuing shares or cash, as applicable.
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Accounting treatment in the Parent Company’s financial statements
The Parent Company recognises a receivabie from the Company, equal to the liahility recorded by the Company,
representing reimbursement for the shares to be issued to the Company's employees. The Parent Company also

recognises a corresponding credit to equity under “ESOP Reserve” or "Share-based Payment Reserve”.

In case of forfeiture, lapse, or non-vesting of oplions, the Company reverses any previously recognised liability
with a corresponding adjustment to profit or loss, but there is no reversal of expense already recognised in respect
of service rendered.

The dilutive impact of outstanding options is reflected in the Parent Company's diluted earnings per share
computation, in accordance with applicable accounting standards. |

Vesting period and expense allocation .

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the total expense is allocated over the vesting period based
on the best available estimate of the number of options expected to vest. Estimates are revised at each reporting
date, and any changes are recognised in the current and future periods.In case of forfeiture, lapse, or non-vesting
of options, the Company reverses any previously recognised liability with a corresponding adjustment to profit or
loss, but there is no reversal of expense already recognised in respect of service rendered.

The dilutive impact of outstanding options is reflected in the Parent Company's diluted earnings per share
computalion, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

{g}Income taxes ‘

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the lax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any relating
1o income taxes. |{ is measured Using tax rates enacted for the relevant reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only If there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it Is intended to realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabiiities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax llabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in
case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset oniy to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temparary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable /
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply to the period when the asset is realised or
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.
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(h) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency
of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated at the rates
of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realisation/settlement of foreign
exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary ioans are presented in the
Statement of profit and loss an net basis. However, foreign exchange differences arising from foreign currency
monetary loans to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs.

{iy Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to
customers. Revenue is measured at the transaction price (net of variable consideration) which is the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance hanuses, price concessions,
amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contracl with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable and
determinable.

Revenue from operations is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. We determine revenue recognition through the following

steps:

1. Identify the contract{s) with a customer,

2. identify the separate performance obligations in the contract;

3. Determine the transaction price;

4, Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
5. Recagnize revenue when (or as} each performance abligation is satisfied.

The company's revenues generated are primarily comprised of:

« Data as a Service (DaaS8): It is a product to provides access to customized reports and deep analysis by
leveraging its rich travel intent data, delivered through purpose-built reporting software. This tailored platform
enables travel brands to generate insights specific to their business goals—such as traveler behavior, booking
trends, and campaign performance—ensuring smarter, data-driven decision-making. :

« Martech: It is end to end digital marketing suiles to manage travel brands to target high-value, experience-
driven travelers on social media using real-ime, intent-based data. It optimizes campaigns by identifying
affluent audiences seeking unique, premium travel experiences. With precise segmentation and performance

insights, brands can boost engagement, conversions, and ROAS across platforms.

Revenue from sale of services

(1) Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised when the services are performed
through an indefinite number of repetitive acts over the specified subscription period on straight line basis or
on the basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the
contracts with customers and in case of travel sectar the same is recognised when the related services are
performed as per the terms of contracts,

Revenue from sale of transaction based services are recognised on point in time.

The Company defers unearned revenue, including paymenls received in advance, until the related
subscription period is complete or underlying services are performed.




RateGain Adara Inc
Notes forming part of the special purpose standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2025

No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sale of servicas are made with a credit term of 30
to 60 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Interest income :

Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks} is recognised using the effective interest rate
method.

(j) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Fi fal

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt instruments are Initially recognised when they are originated. All other financiat
assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
Statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to its acquisition or use,

Classification
For the purpose of initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in following categories:

e Financiat assets measured at amortised cost;
« Financia! assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and
« Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asseis are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial assel being 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cast if both of the following conditicns are
met:
« The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being 'debt instrument' is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
. The assetis held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and ’
«  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPl on the
principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOC! as described above are measured at

FVTPL.
Subsequent measurement

Financial assels at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amoartised
cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in the Statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest income, are
recognised in the Stalement of profit and loss.
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Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial assel when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
lhe risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) madel for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL.
The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enfarcement activities in order
to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilit

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financlal liahilities are initially measured at fair value minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement .

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financlal liability is classifled as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, oritis a derivative or it is desighated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
. derecoghition is also recognised in the Statement.of profit and loss.

Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments are bifurcated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the

contract.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity companent is initially recognised at the
difierence between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability companent. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to their initial carrying amaunts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of the compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity compenent of the compound financial instrument
is not measured subsequently.

Interest on liability component is recognised in Statement of profit and loss. On conversion, the. liability
component is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recoghised.
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Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired. .

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
madified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the Batance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
1o settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(K} Investments
The Company has measured its investment in subsidiaries at cost in its financial statements in accordance with

Ind AS 27, Separate Financiat Statements.

() Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
caleulated by dividing the Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
Statement of profit and loss atiributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, which comprise share options granted
to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equily shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues inchuding for changes effected prior to the approval of
the special purpose standalone financial statements by the Board of Directors.

{m)Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
s itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
« itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
al least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

Liabilities .
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

» itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle,

+ it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

s itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting periad; or

o the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the caunterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
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Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as
nen-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assels for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
pracessing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascerfained its operating cycle
being a period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and non- current.

{n) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

(o) Segment reporting

The Company'’s business activity primarily falls within a single segment which is providing innovative solutions
to help clients in the haspitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The geographical segments
considered are "within USA" and “outside USA" and are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company who monitors the operating
results of its business units not separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource ailocation and
performance assessment. The CODM is considered to be the Board of Directors who make strategic decisions
and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the financial performance of the operating segments.
The analysis of geographical segments is based on geographical location of the customers,

{p) Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates, i.e., the functional currency, to be US Dollars (USD). The special purpose standalone financial
statements are presented in USD, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency, All amounts
have been rounded to the nearest thousands up to two decimal places, unless otherwise stated. Consequent
to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and
percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute amounts,

{q)Cash flow statement

Cash ftows are reported using indirect method, whereby profil before ax is adjusted for the effects transactions
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash and
cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less.

{r) Share issue expense

Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52 of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for utilisation in the Securities Premium Accounl,
Share issue expenses in excess of the balance in the Securities Premium Account is expensed in the Statement
of profit and loss.

(s) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts
The application of Ind AS 117 does nol have material impact on the Company's separate financial statements
as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117.
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(iiy Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and L.easeback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprit 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

‘“The amendments do nat have a material impact on the Company's financial statements
() Recent Accounting Developments — Standards Notified but not yet effective

Ministry of Carporate Affairs ("MGA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is
no such notification which woutd have been applicable from 01 Aprit 2025,
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3 Property, plant and eqguipment

Computers Taotal
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - -
Additions 30.41 30.41
Disposals/ adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 30.41 30.41
Additions 29.18 29.18
Disposals/ adjustments - .
Balance as at 31 March 2025 59.59 59.59
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss:
Balance as at 01 April 2023
Depreciation expense 543 5.43
Disposals / adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5.43 5.43
Depreciation expense 20.98 20.98
Disposals / adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 26.41 26.41
Balance as at 31 March 2024 24,99 24,99
Balance as at 31 March 2025 33.18 33.18

{i} The Company does not have assets pledged as seclirity.
(ii) Depreciation of property,plant and equipment has been presented in Note 21 i.e. Depreciation and amortisation expense.
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4 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Customer
relationship and trade Softwares Total Goodwill
name
Gross carrying value:
Balahce as at 01 April 2023 3,435,49 7,525.19 10,960.68 12,333.32
Additions - “ -
Disposals/ adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,435.49 7,525.19 10,960.68 12,333.32
Additions - B - R
Disposals/ adjustments - - -
Balanca as at 31 March 2025 3,435.49 7,525.19 10,960.68 12,333.32
Accumulated amortisationfimpairment:
Balance as at 01 Aprii 2023 62.75 274,89 337.64 -
Amortisation expense 286,98 1,257.17 1,544 .14 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 349.73 1,532.06 1,881.78 -
Amortisation expense 286.29 1,253.44 1,638.73 -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 636.02 2,785.50 3,421.52 -
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,085.76 5,993.13 9,078.90 12,333.32
Batance as at 31 March 2025 2,799.47 4,739.63 7,539.17 12,333.32

(i) Amortisation of other intangible assets has heen presented in Note 21, Depreciation and amortisation expense.
(iy The Company does not have assets pledged as security.
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5 Investments As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Number of units Amount

Number of units Amount
Non-current
(a) Investment in unquoted equity instruments - at cost
Subsidiaries
RateGain Adara Japan 34,89
Total 34.89

Total nen-current investments
Aggregate amound of quoled investments and market value thereof -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 34.89

Aggregate amount of Impairment in the value of investments -

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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8 Deferred tax assels

Deferred fax assets in reiation to:

Employee benefit expense

Loss allowance for doubtful debts and security deposit
Praperty, plant and equipment

Unrealized Exchange Gain

Charitable contribution

intangible assets

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
l.oss allowance for doubtful debts and security deposit

Total deferred tax liabilities

Total deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

34.08 -

- 37.87

- 44.43
16,09 -
0.02 -
89.48 -

139.68 §2.00
19.14 -
19.44 -

120.55 82.00

{a) Movement in deferred fax for the period ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

- Opening Recognised in Profit or Recognised in other Clesing balance

Description :
Balance loss camprehensive Income

Deferred tax assets in relation to: .
Emplayee benefit expense - 34.08 - 34.08
Loss allowance for doubtful debts and security deposit 37.87 (37.87) - Co-
Intangible Assels - 89.49 . 89.49
Property, plant and equipment 44,13 (44.13) - -
Unrealized Exchange Gain - 16.09 - 16.08
Charitable contribution - 0,02 - 0.02
Total deferred tax assets 82.00 57.68 - 139.68
Deferred tax liabilities In relation to: B
toss allowance for doubtful debls and security deposit - 19.14 - 19.14
Total deferred tax liabilities - 19.14 - 19.144
Deferred tax assats/{liahilities} net 82.00 38.54 - 120.55

{b) Movement in deferred tax for the period ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

X QOpening Recognised in Profit or Recognised In other Closing balance
Description .
Balance loss comprehensive Income
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Loss allowance for doubtful debls and secursity deposit - 37.87 - 37.87
Property, plant and equipment 0.94 43.20 - 44,13
Total deferred tax assets 0.94 a1.07 - 82.00

(This space has been intenticnally left blank)
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As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 Masch 2024

7 Other financial assets
Current
{Unsecured and considered good}
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost
Interest accrued but not dus 36,66 17.36
Advance lo refated parties 498.55 313.05
535.21 334041
8 Income tax assets and Tahilitias
[ncame tax assets
incomae lax receivable - .
Income tax iabilities
Income ‘ax payable 1,567.96 1,886.14
1,687.96 1,686.14
9 Other Assets
Current
. Prepaid expensas 32804 a77.84
Advances ta emplayees 277 -
330.78 377,84
10  Trade receivables
tInsecured, considered good 10,265,83 10,0056.32
Unbilled revenue* 383,70 79.07
Lredit Impaired 573.71 §29.23
41,223.24 10,913.62
Less: Loss aflowance {573.71% (828,231
10,648,53 10,984,329
“Unbifled revenue pertains to oulstanding invoices which are raised and approved in the subsequent financial yaar.
(9 Trada receivables ageing schedula is as follows:
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars — ;Jutstanding far following petiods from due dale of payment
Unibitled ess 6 months - 1 year §-2 yaars 2-1 years Mare than 3 years Total
moanths
(Iy Undispuled Trade recelvables — considered good 383.70 9,604.72 681,11 - - - 10,649.53
(i Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credil risk
{1} Undisputed Trade Recejvables — credit impalred - - 86.15 346.09 16147 - 573.71
{iv} Disputed Trada Receivables considered good - - - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Recalvahles — which have - - - - - - -
significant Increase in credlt risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - : - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars — 6Clutstandlng far followlng periods from due date of payment
Unhilted E:nonl:; & months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 2 years Tatal
(i) Undisputed Trada receivabies — consldered gaod 79,07 9,260.59 71247 32.58 - - 10,084.39
(i} Undispuled Trada Receivables - which have - - - - - - -
significant increasa in credit risk
{ill) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired - 192 18 619 - - 829.23
(iv} Disputed Trade Recelvables considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have - - - - - - -
significant increase In credit risk
(vi) Dispuled Trade Receivables — credit mpaired - - - - - - -
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- In current accounlts 2,848.89 a00.37
- in depasit accounts 12,104.01 - 3,412.05
15,852.90 4,212.42

(This space has baan intentionally laft biank}
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13

134

13.2

Eruity share capital

Subscribed Capital
Commaon stack- optians

Noles:

(I} Tarms and rights attached to equity shares

“The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of USO 8,01 per share. Each holder of equily sharas Is en
shares wili be entiled 1o recaive remalning assals of e Company afier distribulion of all preferantlai amount. The distripullon wit

{ii} Reconciliation of the number of shares and amaunt culstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

0,01 0.09
.01 0.01

titled to ane vote per share. In the evenl of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity
be in proparilon lo e numbar of quity sharas hald by he shareholders,

COther aquity

Securily pramium account

Retalned gamings

Security pramlum account
Balance at Lha beginning of tha year
ESOP exercised during the year

Balanca at the and of the year

Securilies premium is used to record tha premium an issus of shares.

Retained sarnings

Halance at the beginning of the year
Profit for tha vear
Balance at the and of the year

n

ted for distributions to owners,

Retained eamings are crealed from the profit / loss of lhe Company, as

{This space has bean intentionally left biank)

I other reserves, eto.

As at As al
Partlculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Humber Amotint Number Amount
Equily shares outstanding at tha beginning of the year 1,000 6.04 1,000 0.01
Add ; Issued during the year - - - -
Equity shares outslanding at the end of the year 1,000 0.01 1,000 a.01
‘ (iil) Shares heid by each sharehoider hatding more {has 5 percent shares:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Mumbers % holding Numbers % halding
RateGain Technolonias Inc. (US) 1,000 100.00% 1,000 100.06%
1,000 100.00% 1,000 500.00%
As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

14,918.34 14,918.34
i4,541.43 799517

29,459.47 22,913.51

14,918.34 14,918.34
14,918.34 14,918.34
7,985,417 1.290.76
6,545.96 6.704.41
14,541.13 7,995.17
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As al As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
14 Other financial liabilities
Non-current
Other payables - 2573
Employes related payable - 450,00
- 475.71
Current
Defarred consideration 143,34 143,34
Employee related payable 1,906.63 2,157.82
Payable to related paries 1,340.64 1,049.29
3,390.61 3,350.45
15 Other Habllities
Current
Advances from customers 90.27 -
Deferred revenue 1,735.93 2,594.07
1,826.20 2,584.07
16 Trade payahles
I, lotal outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enlerprises - -
Ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 16,265.27 5,304.36

enterprises
10,2865.27 5,304736

Trade payables agelhg Is as follows:

As at M March 2025

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Mare than 3

L thae 1 ye 1.2 2. Tolal
ess than 1 year years 3 years Years olal

(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - -
(i} Others 9,477.95 142.84 644.48 - 10,265.27
(iil) Disputed dues- Micro, Smail and Madium Enlerprises - - - -

(iv} Disputed dues- othars - - -

As at 31 March 2024

=3

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymen

Particular:
a s Maora than 3

Years

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-1 years Total

(i) Micro, Small and Medium Enterpsises ] . B
{ii} Cthers 4,438.96 865.40 - - 5,304.36

@it Disputed dues- Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises - - . R
(iv) Disputed dues- others - - .

(This space has been intentionally left biank)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
17 Revenue from operations
Sale of services 50,042.78 42,801.12
50,942,78 42,801.12

Note:
(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set aut below is the disaggregation of the the Company’s revenue frem contracts with customers:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Type of services

Daal 11,232.40 13,230.95
MarTech 39,710.38 29,570.17
Total revenue from contracts with customers 50,942.78 42,801.12

Geographical region

LISA 36,085.82 32,354.62
Outside USA 14,856.96 10,446.50
Total revenue from contracts with customers 50,942.78 42,801.12

Timing of recognition of revenue

Revenue recognised at point in time 39,710.38 30,890.60
Revenue recognised aver time 11,232.40 11,910,562
Total revenue from contracts with customers 50,942.78 42,801.12

{b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Trade receivables 10,649.53 10,084.39
Advances from custemers 90.27 -
Deferred revente 1,735.93 2,594 .07

Remaining performance obligations as at the reporing date are expected to be substantially recognised over the next reporting period by
the Campany.
(¢} Revenue recognised In relation contract fiabilities

Contract liabilities related to sale of services
Advances from cusiomers - -

Deferred revenue 2.584.07 -
{d) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per confracted price 50,942.78 42,801.12
Adjustments:
Rebate - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 50,942.78 42,801.12

18 Other Income

Interest income
Interest income earned on:

- bank deposits 277.26 78.27
Others - 43.14
- 43.14

277.20 121.41

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 34 March 2024
189 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 18,770.84 15,541.74
Staff welfare expenses 5.23 -
Employee stock opticn expensea 152.29 26.61
18,928.36 15,568.35
20 Finance costs
Interest expense on financial fiabilities at amartised cost 0.62 2.49
0.62 2.49
21 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 20.98 5.43
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 1,539.73 1,544 .14
1,560,71 1,549.57
22 Other expenses
Hosting and proxy charges 3,318.44 2,201.52
Rent - 5.28
Repair and maintenance
- Others - 0.55
Insurance 65.90 44.24
Rates and taxes - 42,865
Communication charges 415 18.42
Postage and courier 58.90 18.52
Travelling and conveyance 415.06 328.80
Donation and contributions - 0.10
Legal and professional charges 1,119.08 763.33
Training and recruitment expenses 0.26 0.87
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 543.30 509.57
Fees and subscription 38.48 108.40
Bank charges 51,26 37.88
External services 9,739.03 6,284.29
L oss on foreign exchange Auctuation (net) 157.31 20.89
Allowance for expected credit loss 595,62 170.00
Software licenses 293.12 388.52
Office maintenance 0.38 1.40
Contractual manpower cost 348.52 1,183.82
Demand partner fees 5,393.84 4,970.78
Miscellaneous expenses 284.43 110.61
Total 22,427.06 17,216.44

(This space has been intentionally ieft blank)
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23

24

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Income taxes
Incame tax recognised in the statement of standalone profit and loss
Current tax
In respect of the current year 1,795.81 1,862.34

1,795.81 1,962.34
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (38.54) (81.07)

(38.54) {81.07)

Total income tax {credit)/expense recognised in the current year 1,757.27 1,881.27
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit hefore tax £,303.23 8,585.68
Domestic tax rate 21.00% 21.00%
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 1,743.68 1,802.99
Permanent differences 16.35 12.70
Others (2.78) 65.58

1,757.27 1,881.27

Earning/{Loss) per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculaled by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
cutstanding during the year.

Diluted EFS amounts are calcuiated by dividing the profit for the year attributable o equity holder by the weighled average number of equity shares
sutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares
inte aquity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted £PS computations:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit attributable to equity holder of the Company 6,545.96 6,704.41

Woelghted average number of equily shares used for computing :
Basic EPS 1,000 1,000
Weighted average number of equity shares held through ESOP trust - -

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares- employee stock options -

Diluted EPS 1,000 1,000
Basic EPS 6,545.96 6,704.41
Diluted EPS 6,545.96 6,704.41

(This space has heen intenfionally left blank)
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25  Segment reporting
Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CCDM") of the Company. The CODM is
considered lo be the Board of Directors wha make sirategic decisions and is respensibie for allocating resolrces and assessing the financial performance of the aperating
segments.
The Company's business activity falls within a single segment, which is providing inncvalive soiutions to heip clients in the hospitalily and travel industry lo achieve their
business geals, in terms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting.

The geographical segments considered for disciosure are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from external customers by location of the customers
(I} APMEA 9,541.80 4,245.76
(i) Europe 4,295.72 4,418.55
(i) USA ’ 36,085.82 32,354.62
{iv) Others 1,018.44 1,782.19
Tatal 50,042.78 42,801,112
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current assets *
{i) Uniled States of America 7.672.34 9,103.89
(i) Other countries 34.8% -

* Nan-current assels, other than financlal instruments and income tax assels (net)/defarred tax asset (net) and goodwill.

No single external customer contributed 10% or more of the Company’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Information about revenue from customers located oulside USA s included in note 17,

26  Share based payment
The empioyees of the Company are eligibie to parlicipate in the Employee Stock Cption Plans (ESOP) administered by RateGain Travel Technolegies Limited, India (Parent
Company), Under this plan, the Parent Company grants stock options to smployees of the Cormpany, which are seftled in the equity shares of the Parent Company.

Thia Company has entered into an agreement with the Parent Company, under which it reimburses the Parent far the expense of the options granted lo its employees.

Tha fair value of the options granted is determined on the grant date and is recognized as an employee benefit expense over the vesting periad. The corresponding credit is
recognized as a liability o the Parent Company under Payables lo Related Parties {Refer note 14).

For the year enced 31 March 2025, the Company has recognized an employee benefit expense of USD 152.29 thousand (31 March 2024: USD 26.61 thousand) with a
correspending liability to the Parent Company.

(This space has besn Inlentionafly left blank)
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27 Related party disclosures
() Relationship with related parties:

{a) Ultimate Parent Company
RateGain Travel Technoiogies Limited

{b) Parent Company
RataGain Technolagles inc {USA)

{c) Wholly owned subsidiaries
RateGain Adara Japan (with effect from 25 Dec 2023}

{d} Fellow subsidiaries
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK
RateGain Technologies Spain S.L,
BCV Social LLC

RateGain Germany GmbH {formerly name as My holel shop GMBH (with effect from.11 April 2025))

RateGain Technologies LLC (with effect from 28 November 2022}
{e} Key management personnel (KMP):

Mr. Bhanu Chopra {Chairman & Managing Direclor)
Ms. Aditi Gupla (Independent Direclar)

(I} Transactions with related parties*

R . Management

Nature of transactions Expense incurred on | Expense incurred on consultanc
behalf of our behalf by 4

expense
RateGain Adara Japan 92.8¢ - =
RateGain Germany GmbH (753) - -

. . - 151.58 3,658.95
IT :
RaleGain Travel Technologies Limited - (1.136.92) -
. - 675.06 -
RateGaln Technologies Inc - (535.86) -
. . . - 2,465.61 -
RateGain Technologies Limitad, UK - (1037 78) -
BCV Social LLC : 84.33 -
RateGain Technologies Spain S.L. - 1(3223) :
. . - 233.43 -
G LLC

RateGain Technologies - 7737 54) -

(lil) Balance outstanding for related parties:

Mature of transactions

Trade Payable
{including other

Trade Receivables
{Including other

payables) receivables)
RateGain Travel Technclogies Limited 2(;2:32:)
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 1(221;;)
RateGain Technalogies Inc 1(23;_7,2)
RateGain Technologies L.L.C 233;55 (305"54)
Ratetain Technologies Spain S.L. o 2}7) 124_-35
RateGain Germany GmbH - {;g;)
RateGain Adara Japan - 92:87
BCV Social LLC (13{54) 27'3:33

*Numbers in brackets represents financial vear ending 31 March 2024,
any related party transactions during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 andoulstandmg balances as at 31
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23 Falr value measurements

i) Flnanclal instruments by category

Particulars As al 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

FVTEL Amortised tost FVTPL Amartised casl
Financial assets
Investments® - - - -
Trade recalvables - 10,648.53 - 1¢,084.39
£ash and cash equivalents - 5,052,890 - 4,412.42
Other financial assets - 53521 - 330.41
Tolal . 26,237.64 - 14,627.22
Finangsial liabilitles
Trade payables - 10,265.27 - 5,304.36
Other financlal liabilites - 3,390.81 - 3,828,18
Total - 13,655.88 - 9,330.54

“Investment in equity instrument of subsidiaries hava baen accounted under Ind-AS 27 and hence, not presented hera.

ify Fair value hierarchy
Einancial assets and financial Fablites measured at fair valua in the standaione balance sheel ara divided into three fevels of a fair value hierarchy, The lhree fevels are defined based on the abservabifity

of significant Inputs to the measurement, as follows:

tevel 1: Qualed prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial inssumenls.

Leval 2: The fair value of financial nstrusnents that are nol Iraded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the usa of observable market dala rely as Jitlle as pessible
an entity specific estmales.

Level 3; If one or mors of the significant inputs s not besed on chservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

. Fair value of financiat assets and liabiiities measured at amortised cost:

o

The carrying amounls of trade receivables, rade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financiats assels and llabilities are considerad o be he same as thei [air valuas, due lo thelr shor-
term nature.

For financial assets and liatilities that are measured al fair value, the carrying amounis are equal to the Tair values.
iiiy Financial risk management

The Company’s activities axpose it lo market risk, liquidity risk and credil risk. The Company's board of directors has overail responsibiity for the astablishment and oversight of the Compary's risk
management frameawark. This nola explaing the sources of risk which the entily is exposed o and how the enlity manages the risk and tha refated impacl in the standalone financial slatements.

Risk Exposure arising iMeasuremanl Manhagement

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investment in Ageing analysis Bank depasils, diversification of asset base,
hands, financial assets measured 2 amortised cost credit imits and colfateral.

Liquidity risk Baorrowings and other labilities Rolling ¢cash flow forecasis Availability of commilted credit linas and

barrowing facilities

Markat risk - foreign currency risk Recagnlsed financlal assets and financisl flabliities not Sensitivity analysis Foreign currensy forwards

dencminated In indlan rupees (INR) Forelgn currency options
a. Credit risk

Credil risk is the rsk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company Is exposed lo this risk far various financia! Instruments, far example by granting loans and
receivables to customers, placing deposits, elc. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is linlted o the carying amaunt of fallowing lypes of financlal assets.

~cash and cash equivalants,

- lrade recslvables,

- loans and receivables carried al amortised cost, and

- deposits with banks

-~ invasiment in bands

The maximum expasire lo credit Hsks Is represanted by the tolal sarrying amount of Ihese standalone financlai assets in the balance sheet:

Particulars As al As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade recaivables 10,649.53 10,084.39
Cash and cash equivalents 15,052,890 4,212 42
Other financia) assets {current and non-current} 535.214 33041

Gredit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits (shown under other bank balancas) and other financial assels Is limited as the Company generally invests In deposils with banks with high cradit
ratings assigned by domeslic credit raling agencies. Other financial assels measured al amortized cost includes securily deposits and cthers. Gredit risk reiated lo thesa other financia! assels is managed
by menitaring the recoverability of sush amounts conlinuausly, while at the same tfme internal control systans in place ensure lhe amounts are wilhin defined fimits.

The exposure to lha credil risk al tha reparting dale is primarily from trade receivables.

Trade receivables are lyplcally unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customars grimarily lecaled in India, United Kingdam, United States of America and Europe. The Company does
manilar the ecanomic enviranmant in which it operates. The Company manages its credit risk through credit approvals, establishing credit fmils and continuously maniloring credit worlhingss of customers
ta which he Company granis credit lerms in the normal course of business,

The Company uses axpacled credit loss madel to assess the impairment loss. Credit risk in securily daposits considerad to he fow as they form part of other commerclal arrangements such as leasss,
therafore security deposit are impaired ony when hers is abjective evidence of impaiment. Tha Cempany uses a provision malrix 1o computa the expecled credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The
provislon matrix takes Inlo account available internal credit risk facters such as lhe Company's historical experienca for cuslomers, 8ased on the business environment in which the Gompany aperales,
managemant considers £CL for irade receivables Ikat are compuled basis the histerical Irend and future macoeconomic factors to determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables {other than
receivables from ralated parties).

Refar note 10 for bifurcation of trade recefvables into credil impaired and others,

Changes in the loss allowance in respect of trade receivables For the year encded Faor the year endad
31 March 2025 3 March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 829.23 -

Change in impairment allowances for receivables (255.53) 82823

Balance at the end of the yaar : 573,71 820,23
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o

Expected credit loss for {rade receivables under simplified approach

Particulars

As at 31st March 20

Less than §

(net of impaiment)

Unbilled dues months 6 months - 1 year 12 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
Gross carrying amauat- rade 383.70 9,604.72 561.41 - - - 10,649.53
recaivables (considered good)
Gross cartying amaount- frade - - 66.15 34609 161.47 - 573.74
recaivables {credit impaired)
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 9.10% 100.00% 108.08% 0.00% 180.80%
Expected credil losses (loss allowance - - 66,15 346.09 161.47 - 573,71
provision)- trade receivables
Carying amaunt of irade recelvables 383.70 9,6804.72 661,11 - . - 10,649.53
(net of impairment)
As at 3{st March 2024
Parficulars Unbilled dues Lj:i::: 8 6 months - f year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Tatal
Gross carrylng amount- trade 79.07 9,260,56 71247 32.58 - - 10,684 38
receivables {consicered good}
Gross carrying amount- trade - 191,92 18.41 618,30 - - 82922
receivables (credit Impairad)
Expected loss rata 0.00% 0,39% 19.26% 100.00% C.00% 0.00% 100.00%
Expected credi losses (loss allowance 704 14073 651.46 - - 829.23
provision}- trade receivables
Carrying amount of trade receivables 79.67 9,41547 589,85 - - - 40,084.38

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk thal the Campany may encounter difficuity In maeting its present and future obligations assoclaled with financlsl llabilities that are required to be satiled by dallvering cash or another
financial asse!. The Company’s chiective is 1o, al all limes maintain optimum levels of liquidity 1o meet its cash and collataral obligations. Witimate respensibllity for louidity risk management rests with the
Hoard of Directors. The Campany's manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facllilies and reserve borrowing faciities, by continucusly menitoring forecasl and actual cash flaws,
and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and fablities Management monitars ralling forecasts af the Campany's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basls of expecled

cash flows.

Maturitles of financial llabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financial Habilites inlo relevant malurity groupings based on their contractual malurities for all non-derivative financial liabilties. The amounts disclosed in the table
ara the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

31 March 2028 Less than 1 year 1.5 year More than 5 years Totai

Non-derivatives

Trade payabies 10,265.27 - - 10,265.27

Qthar financial lfabilities 3,300 61 - - 3,390.61

Total 13,655.88 - - 13,655,588

31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-5 year Mora than 5 years Total

Non-derivatives

Frade payables 5,304 .36 - - 5,304.36

Other financial llabilities 3,826.18 - - 3,826.18

Total 9,130.54 - . 9,130.54

Market risk - Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect ta the below cumencles. Foreign exchange risk adses fram recagnlsed assets and

jiabiliies denaminated in 2 currency that is nat the Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency risk expasure

Bolow is tha overall exposure of the Company e forefgn curency dak expressed |n USED:

i Amount
Particulars Currency 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial assets
Trade recelvable AUD 589.01 494,13

AED - 2.5
CAD 168.02 265.80
EUR 28895 576.81
Gapr 6§25.04 629.42
HKD 130.2¢ 15.87
INR 254,34 39385
JRY 520.27 403.85
MYR 7546 33487
NZD 3875 2019
5GD 283.34 126.06
CHF - .19
THB 3.83 -

Financlal liabilities

Trade Payabla GBP 1,027.77 24458
EUR - 112.77

(This space has been inlentionaily teft blank)
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Sensitivity
Below Is the sensilivity of profit or loss and equity lo changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from forelgn currency denominated linanclal instruments, assuming no change in other variables:

Particuiars As at As ot

31 March 2026 34 March 2024
INR sansitlvity
INRAUSD- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 500%} 12,72 19.68
INRAJSD- dacraase by 5.00% (34 March 2024: 5,00%} ' {1272} {19.68)
GBP sensilivity
INR/GBP- increasa by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5,00%} 8264 43.69
{NR/GBP- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%} (82.64) (43.69}
ELURO sensitivity
INR/EUR- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5,00%) 1445 34 47
INR/EUR- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) {14 45} {34.47}
AUD sensiivity
INR/AUD- increase by 5.00% {31 March 2024; 5.00%) 2948 2021
{NR/AUD- decrease by 5.00% {31 March 2024 5.00%) (20.45) {20.21%
AED sensitivity .
INR/AED- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) - 0.12
INR/AED- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) - {0.12)
CAD sensitivity
INR/CAD- increass by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) §40 13.29
INR/CAD- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5,00%) {8.40) {13.29)
THA sensitivity ]‘
INR/ZAR-increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) 0,18 - 1
INR/ZAR- decreasa by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) . (0.19) - ]
HKD sensitivity
INRAJPY-increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5,00%) 6.51 8.7%
INRIPY - decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024; 5,00%) (6.51) {0.79)
JPY sersltivity
INR/JPY - increase by 5.080% (31 March 2024: 5.00%} 25.01 20.19
INRAJPY - decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) {26.01) (20.19}
CHF sensitivity
INR/Othars- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) B 0.46
INR/Cthers- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) - (0.46)
MYR senslitivity
INR/Others- Increase by 5.00% {31 March 2624: 5.00%) .77 170
INR/Others- decraase by 5.08% {31 March 2024; 5.00%) (3,77 {1.70)
NZD sensltivity
INR/Others- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5,00%} 1.9 1.01
INR/OQthers- dacrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024 6.00%) 11.89) (1.01}
SGD sensilivity
INR/Glhers- Increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) 447 6.00
INR/Others- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%) (14.37) {6.00)

29  Capital managemenl palicies and procedures
The Company's objective for capital management is to maximize shareholdsr's vaive, safeguard business canlinuity and support the grawth of the Company, The Company determinas the capilal
requirament based on annual operating plan and other skeategic investment plans. The Company aims to manage ils capital efficiantly so as lo safeguard its ability to conlinue as a going concemn and le
oplirmize relumns to ail its shareholders. Tha Campany's funding requirements are met through equily infusions. :
The Gampany has no debt as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

{This space has been intentionally left blank)




RateGain Adara INC
Notes farming part of the speciai purpose Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in USD thousand unless otherwise stated

30

Ratios to disclosed as per requirement of Schedule Ill to the Act

For the year ended

Far the year ended
31 March 2024

Particulars 31 March 2025
Current ratio

Current assets (Numerator) 26,568.42
Current liabilities {Denominator) 17,170.04
Current ratlo 1.55
% Change as compared to the preceding year 35.45%

Explanation for change in the ratlo by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year:

15,005.06
13,135.02
1.14

The irprovement in the current ratic on account of effective working capital management, reflecting strengthened liquidity and prudent financial

operations.

Return on equity ratio

Profit / {loss) for the period/year (Numeralor) 6,545.98
Shareholder's equity (Denominator) 29,459.48
Return on equity 22.22%
% Change as comnpared la the preceding year (24.06%)

Trade receivables turnover ratio

Net sales (Nurmerator) 50,942.78
Average Irade receivabie (Denominator) * 10,366.96
Trade receivables turnaver ratlo 4.91
Change as compared to the preceding year {14.28%)

* Average trade recsivables = {{(Opening balance + Closing balance) / 2}

., Trade payables turnover ratio

Met sales (Numerator) 50,042.78
Average trade payabla (Denominatot) * 7,784.82
Trade payables turnover ratio 6.54
% Variance (17.07%)

* Average trade payables = {{Cpening balance + Closing balance} / 2}

Met capital turnover ratio

Net sales (Numerator) 50,942.78
Waorking capital (Denominator) * 9,398.38
Net capital turmover ratlo 5.42
% Change as compared o the preceding year (76.32%)

“Waerking capital = Current assets - Current liabifilies
Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year:

8,704.44
22,913.52
29.26%

42,801.12
7.466.15
573

42,801.12
5,423.96
7.89

42,801.12
1,870.04
22,89

The decrease In net capilal turnover ratio, is due to a proportionally larger increase in capital employed—refiecting the strategic allocation of

surplus funds Into assets and deposits 1o support future growth and expansion,

Net profit ratlo

Profit / {loss) for the periodfyear {Numerator) 6,545.96
Net sales {Denominator) 50,942.78
Net profit ratio 0.13
% Change as compared to the preceding year (17.97%)

Return on capital employed

Earning befare Interest and laxes (Numerator) 8,303.85
Capital employed {Dencminatar)* 29,459.48
Return on capital employed 28.19%
%4, Change as compared to the preceding year (24.80%)

* Capital Empioyed = Total equity + Total debt

Note:
The ratios which ars not applicable to company has not been presented above.

(This space has been intenficnally leff blank)

6,704,41
42,801,112
.16

8,588,117
22,913.62
37.48%




RateGain Adara JNC
Nates forming part of the special purpese Slandalona financial stalements for the year ended 3 March 2025
All amounts are In USD thousand unless atherwise slated

31 The Board of Directors of BCV Saclal LLG (“Transferor Company”) and RaleGain Adara Ing, ("Translaree Company’), balh wholly owned step-down forelgn subsidlaries of RateGain Travel Technolagles Limiled,
approved a mergar effeclive from 1 April 2026. The merger is subject to reguialory approvais In Ihe couptry of incorperation and |s intended lo consclidala compiementary business oparations, resufling in operational
syneles, economies of scale, and reduced administralive and compllance cosls
As lhe merger was subject to reguialory approvals as al 31 March 2625, itis classified 85 @ non-adjusting event under ind AS 10. Accordingiy, na sdiusiments have been made to tha fnanclal statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025,

32 No subsequent avanl cecurred post baiance sheet date which requires adjustrnanl In the spedial purpose standalona fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025,

13 The fqures of the comaspandlng previous year have been regrouped wherever considared necessary to carrespond te cUirenl year disclosures. Thas impacl of stch raglassificatoniregrouping is not material to the speckat
puspose standalone financial statements.

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of

Director

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Naida
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Board of Directors of RateGain Germany Gmbh (formerly known as Myhotelshop Gmbh)

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of RateGain Germany
Gmbh (formerly known as Myhotelshop Gmbh) (the “Company”), which comprise the Special
Purpose Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Special Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Special Purpose Statement of Cash Flows and the Special
Purpose Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Special Purpose
Ind AS Financiai Statements”). These Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared solely
for inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited for the year ended March 31,
2025 under the requirements of section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

In our opinion and to the best of ocur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
basis of preparation referred to in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date, "

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit
of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements and we have fulfilied
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance-with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter
Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes the
purpose and basis of accounting. The Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared for
inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (“the Parent Company”) under the
requirements of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, As a result, the Special Purpose Ind AS
Financial Statements may not be suitable for any other purpose. The Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements cannot be referred to or distributed or included or used for any other purpose except with
our prior consent in writing. Our report is intended solely for the above purpose and is not to be used,
referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is registered with Limited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Special Purpose Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Special
Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financiaj
Statements for the purpose set out in “Emphasis of Matter — Basis of accounting and restriction on
distribution and use” paragraph above,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate interna! financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
Ind AS financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so. ‘

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Staternents, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opiniom.,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may invoive coilusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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- Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internat control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report., However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. :

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpese Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to
express an opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements. We are responsible for the
directien, supervision and performance of the audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggrégate, fnakes it probable that thé economic decisions of a reasonably Knowledgeable -
user of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative -
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Special Purpose Ind AS
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with- relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,
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Reporting on comparatives in case the previous year was audited by the predecessor
auditor

The Specia! Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2024, were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements
on August 26, 2024.

Our opinion onh the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered puntants

(Membership No. 105546)
UDIN: 25105546BMLAIC5061

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2025
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RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH}
Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
All amounts are in Eurp thousand unless otherwise stated

s at As at
Particufars Notes 341 Mf:rch 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,52 6.23
Right-of-use assets 4 132.75 170.21
Other intangible assets 5 - 8.64
Financial assels
Loans 6 1,515.32 1,615.32
Other financial assels 7 14,04 14.04
Income tax assels (net}) 8 112.02 -
Other hon-current assets 9 - -
Total non-current assets 1,778.65 1,714.43
Current asssts
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 3,566.25 4,091.55
Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,193.95 1,991.21
Other financial assets 7 384.59 256.03
Other current assets g 174.85 432.18
Total current assats 6,319.64 6,770.97
Total assets 8,098.29 8,485.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 1,070.34 1,070.34
Other equity 14 3,534.99 3,231.53
Total equity 4,605.33 4,301.87
LIABILITES
Nan-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 96,62 137.17
Deferred tax liabitities {net) 12 43.90 135,31
Total non-current liabilities 144,52 272.48
Current liabilities
Financia liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 43.31 41,65
Trade payables 18
i. tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises 2,727.91 2,145.07
and srnall enterprises
Other financiai liabilities 16 64.93 135.28
QOther current liabilities 17 516.29 916,31
Income tax tiabilities (net) 8 - 671.74
Total current liabifities 3,352.44 3,911.05
Total liabilities 3,492.86 4,183.53
Total equity and liabilities 8,098.29 8,485.40
2

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these special purpose financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For DelgitteHaskins & Seils LLP

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

Date: 26 May 2025
Ptace: Noida

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RateGaln Germany GmbH (formerly known as



RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)
Statement of Special Purpose Profit and l.oss for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue from aperations 19 13,107 .65 14,1568.55
Other income 20 183.76 180.53
Total income 13,291.41 14,339.08
Expenses
Employee benefits axpense 21 2,942.87 2,986 .64
Finance costs 22 3.16 3,22
Deprecialion and amortisation expense 23 53.62 62.30
Other expenses 24 9,849.43 9,781.88
Total expenses 12,849,08 12,834,04
Profit before tax 442.33 1,505.04
Tax expense: 25
Current tax 230.28 386.61
Deferred tax credit (91.41) 137.96
Total tax {credit)/expense 138.87 524.57
Profit for the year 303.46 980.47
Gther comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive incame for the year 303.46 980.47
Earning per equity share
Basic EPS 26 0.28 0.92
Diluted EPS 26 0.28 0.92

2

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these special purpose financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)

Date: 26 May 2025 Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida



RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhoteishop GMBH)
Statement of Special Purpose Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 442.33 1,605.04
Adjustments for:
Depreciatich and amottisation expense 53.62 62.30
Finance cost 3.16 3.22
Employee stock oplion expense 26.95 25.14
Allowance for expecled credit loss - 13.71
Interest income (148.33) (132.14)
Write off of property, plant and equipment (net) - 3.78
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 377.73 1,481.05
Working capital adjustments:
{Increase) Decrease in trade receivables 525.30 {1,606.25)
{Increase) Decrease in other financial assets (128.56) -
{Increase Decrease in other current assets 257.33 (413.11)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 581.84 984.16
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (97.30) (105.54)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities {400.02) (16.24)
Cash generated from operating activities 1,116.32 324.08
Income tax paid/ (refund) (net} (1,014.04) 318.03
Net cash generated from operating activities 102.28 642.12
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and Right of use assets (0.00) (7.52)
Interest income 148.33 10.19
Net cash generated from investing activities 148.33 2,67
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of principal portion of lease Habilitles (44.71) (30.68)
Finance cost paid on lease liabilities (3.16) (3.22)
Net cash used in financing activities {47.87) {33.80)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 202.74 610.89
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,991.21 1,380.32
2,193.95 1,991.21

Cash and cash equivalents at year end

Material accounting policies

The Statement of Special Purpose Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the ihd AS - 7 on
'Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder,

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RateGain Germany

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram



RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)

Statement of Special Purpose Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
All aimounts are In Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

a, Equity share capital
Particulars Amount
Equity shares of Euro 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 April 2023 1,070.34
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2024 1,070.34
Changes in equity share capilal during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 1,070.34
b. Other equity
Reserves and Surpilus Other Reserves
Particuiars Security premium . , Capltal contribution Total
Retained earnings
account from parent
Balance as at 01 April 2023 135.46 2,108,79 6.81 2,251.06
Profit for the year - 980.47 - 980.47
Balance as at 31 March 2024 135.46 3,089.26 6.81 3,231,853
Profit for the year - 303.46 - 303.46
Balance as at 31 March 2025 135.46 3,392.72 6,81 3,534.99

Material accounting policies {refer note 2}

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Membership Na.: 105546

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

{This space has been infentionally left blank)



RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements as at 31 March 2025

2.1

Company information/ overview

RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH) {the '‘Company’) is registered under
registration number 28024 in the German Commercial Register and domiciled in Germany, having its registered
office at Flopplatz 6, 04107 Leipzig, Germany. The Company was incorporated on 31 January 2012. The
Company became a 100% subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Limited based out in United Kingdom on 10
September 2021.

The ultimate holding company of the company is RateGain Travel Technologies Limited.

The Company is an Information Technology company providing innovative solutions to help clients in the
hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals.

Material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by
the company, to the year presented in the said financial statements, except in case of adoption of any new
standards and amendments during the year.

To provide more reliable and relevant information about the effect of certain items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Company has changed the classification of certain items. Previous year figures
have been re-grouped or reclassified, to confirm to such current year's grouping / classifications. There is no
impact on Equity or Net Loss due to these regrouping / reclasslfications.

(a) Basis of preparation

These special purpose Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been prepared by the
company o comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
‘ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These Special Purpose Ind AS financial statements (‘Financial Statements’) have been prepared solely for
inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited ('Ultimate Parent Company') for the year
ended March 31, 2025 under the requirements of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’).

The special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 26 May 2025.

The special purpose financials statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1,
“Prasentation of Financial Statements” and division Il of Schedule Hl of the Act. Further, for the purpese of clarity,
various items are dis-aggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

{b) Basis of measurement

The special purpose financiai statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis under historical
cost convention except for certain financlal assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value or
amortized cost, definad benefit obligations and share based payments.

{c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of special purpose financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the special purpose financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the special purpose

financial statements,




RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements as at 31 March 2025

Information about significant areas of estimation /uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting palicies that
have the most significant effect on the special purpose financial statements are as fallows: -

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assels can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of Indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Leases- Judgment required to ascertain lease classification, lease term, incremental borrowing rate, lease
and non-lease companent, and impairment of ROU.

Defined benefit obligation (DBQ) — Management's estimate of the DBC is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined

benefit expenses.

Allowance for expected credit losses — The allowance for doubtful debts reflects management's estimate
of losses inherent in its credit portfotio. This allowance is based on Company's estimate of the losses to be
incurred, which derives from past experience with similar receivables, current and historical past due
amounts, write-offs and collections, the careful monitoring of portfolio credit quality and current and projected
economic and market conditions. Should the present economic and financial situation persist or even worsen,
there could be a further deterioration in the financial situation of the Company’s debtors compared to that
already taken into consideration in calculating the allowances recognised in the financial statements.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year except for as disclosed in these special purpose financial statements.

(d} Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or fiability, or

« Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to / by the Campany.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the special purpose financial statements
are categorized within fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. '
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the special purpose financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hiararchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
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2.2 Other material accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the special
purpose financial statements.

(a) Property, plant equipment
Recognition and measurement
ftems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and nen-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

The cast of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
tabour, any ather cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of improvements to leasehold premises, if recognition criteria are met, are capitalised and disclosed -
separately under leasehold improvement.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecogrised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the Statement of profit and loss when such asset is derscognised.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recoghised as a separate asset, as appropriale,
only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent cost are charged to Statement of profit
and loss at the time of incurrence.

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method computed on the basis of useful life prescribed in
Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Schedule |I') on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to put

to use.

Useful life as per Companies Act,

Block of asset 2013 (in years)

Office Furniture and Fixtures 5

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-ine basis over the period of the initial lease term or
estimated useful life whichever is shorter.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis for assels purchased/sald during the year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed by
management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

(b} Other intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. The
other intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition and
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installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Gain or losses arising from derecognition of other intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the other intangible assets and are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecagnised,

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All the subsequent expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in Statement of profit
and loss, as incurred,

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of other intangible assets over their estimated useful lives as stated
below using straight-line method. Amortisation is calculated on a pro-rala basis for assets purchased /disposed

during the year.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite life is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

under the head Depreciation and amortization expense.

Amortisation has been charged based on the following useful lives:

Asset description Useful life of asset (in years)
Computer sofiware 5

Customer relationship and trade 12

name

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Deracognition of intangible asset
An intangible asset is derecognised upan disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

{(c) Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company enlers into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed
period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 — Leases, at inception of
the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
in exchange for consideration'.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right ta control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

e The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

s The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

s The Company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘haw and for what purpose’ the assel is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Company allacates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee,
the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease fiability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assels is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumuiated
impairment losses,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incrementai borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease lability comprise the following:

e fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

« amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, and

» the exercise price under a purchase oplion that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
aption, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate eatly.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising fram a change in an index or rate, if there is a change In the
Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assel, or is recorded in Statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero, as the case may be.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property on the face of
balance sheet below ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities under financial liabilities’ in the balance
sheet, .

{d) Impairment - non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash generating units (‘'CGLU"). Goodwill arising from a business comblination is aliocated to a CGU or groups of
CGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recaverable amaount of an asset ar CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
Value in use is based an the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goadwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU on a pro-rata basis.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have heen
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

{e} Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaount of the obligation.

If the effect of the ime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

() Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefit Habilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employee's services Up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are seftled.

Post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Payments to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The Company's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be setiled in
future, that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous years. The benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

{g) Share based payments

The Company participates in the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements established by the Parent
Company under the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS). Under this arrangement, eligible employees of the
Company are granted stock options by the Parent Company. The Parent Company is responsible for issuing
shares to the employees upon the exercise of these options.

Accounting treatment in the Company’s financial statements

For share options granted to the employees of the Gompany, the fair value of the options is determined on the
grant date, The Company recognises the fair value of the options as an employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss over the vesting period, based on the number of awards that are expected fo vest
considering service and non-market performance conditions,

Correspondingly, the Company recognises a llability to the Parent Company for the same amount, representing
the obligation to reimburse the Parent Company for the cost of shares issued to its employees upon exercise of
the options. This liability is remeasured at each reporting date for changes in the number of options expected to
vest.
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If the options are cash-settled, the Company recognises a liability equivalent to the fair value of the options at
each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The liability is settled in cash to the
Parent Company, who then settles the employee obligation by issuing shares or cash, as applicable.

Accounting treatment in the Parent Company's financial statements

The Parent Company recognises a receivable from the Company, equal to the liability recorded by the Company,
representing reimbursement for the shares to be issued to the Company's employees. The Parent Company also
recognises a correspending credit to equity under "ESOP Reserve” or "Share-based Payment Reserve",

In case of forfeiture, lapse, or non-vesting of options, the Company reverses any previously recognised liability
with & corresponding adjustment to profit or loss, but there is no reversal of expense already recognised in respect
of service rendered.

The dilutive impact of outstanding options is reflected in the Parent Company'’s diluted earnings per share
computation, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Vesting period and expense allocation

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the total expense is allocated over the vesting pericd based
onh the best available estimate of the number of options expected to vest, Estimates are revised at each reporting
date, and any changes are recognised in the current and future periods.In case of forfeiture, lapse, or non-vesting
of options, the Company reverses any previously recognised liability with a carresponding adjustment to profit or
foss, but there is no reversal of expense already recognised in respect of service rendered.

The dilutive impact of outstanding options is reflected in the Parent Company’s diluted earnings per share
computation, in accordance with applicable accounting standards..

(h}Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. !t is recognised in the stalement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any relating
to income taxes. It is measured using lax rates enacted for the relevant reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended lo realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis.

Deferred fax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in
case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable /
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
liability is settied, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reparting date.

e
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recaver or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offsat
current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

() Foreign currency transactions and translations

Monetary and nan-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency
of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are translated at the rates
of exchange prevailing on reparting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realisation/settlement of foreign
exchange transactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) arising on transiation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented in the
Statement of profit and loss on net basis. However, foreign exchange differences arising from fareign currency
monetary loans to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs,

() Revenue recognition

Revenue from Conftracts with Customers is recognised upon lransfer of control of promised services to
customers. Revenue is measured at the transaction price (net of variable consideration) which is the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions,
amounts collected on hehalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of conslderation is probabie and
determinable.

Revenue from operations is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. We determine revenue recagnition through the following
steps:

1, Identify the contract{s) with a customer;

2. Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract;

3. Determine the transaction price;

4. Allocate the transactian price to the separate perfermance obligations; and
5. Racognize revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

The company’s revenues generated are primarily comprised of:
s Martech: It is a product to boost direct bookings by optimizing metasearch visibility through a unified, easy-
to-use platform and providing ongoing expert support and optimization help hotel partners continually improve
digital marketing performance.

Revenue from sale of services

{1) Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised when the services are performed
through an indefinite number of repetitive acts over the specified subscription period on straight line basis or
on the basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the

contracts with customers and in case of travel sector the same is recognised when the related services are
performed as per the terms of confracts.

(2) Revenue from sale of transaction based services are recognised on pointin time.

(3) The Company defers uneamed revenue, inciuding payments received in advance, until the related
subscription period is complete or underlying services are performed.

6
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No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sale of services are made with a credit term of 30
to 80 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Interest income
Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) is recognised using the effective interest rate
method.

(k) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability or

equity instrument aof another entity.
i ial

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt instruments are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assels are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
Statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to its acquisition or use.

Classification
For the purpose of initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in following categories:

« Financial assets measured at amortised cast;
» Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and
« Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset being 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:
« The financial asset is held within a business model whase objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest {SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. ‘

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
« The assetis held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTRL.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at amortised cos!
These assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised

cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

(9(2/
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Financial assels at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any interest income, are
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Deracognition

The Campany derecagnises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of awnership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal lo the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL.
The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recoghised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

Whrite-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to write-off, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company's procedures far recovery of amounts due.

Ei iat liabilit

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus, for an fem not at fair value
through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL If it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial fiabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Compeund financial instruments
Compound financial instruments are bifurcated into liabifity and equity components based on the terms of the

contract.

The liability compenent of compound financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised at the
difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
iability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components
in propartion to their initial carrying amounts.




RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements as at 31 March 2025

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability compaonent of the compeund financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of the compound financial instrument

is not measured subsequently. ‘
Interest on liability component is recognised in Statement of profit and loss. On conversion, the liability
component is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

Derecoghition

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual abligations are discharged or cancelted or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are madified and the cash flows under the
madified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms Is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right o set off the amounts and it intends either
{o settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

() Earnings per share

The Company presenis basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares, Basic EFS is
calculated by dividing the Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, which comprise share options granted
to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of
the special purpose financial statements by the Board of Directors.

(m)Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s narmal cparating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
+ itis expected 1o be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
e itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used ta settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current,

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
» itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
s itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

¢ the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement ofthe liability for at least 12 manths
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its

oL
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settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. Al other liabilities are classified as
non-cuerent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle
being a pericd of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and non- current.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits

with an original maturity of three months or tess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(o) Segment reporting

The Company's business aclivity primarily falls within a single segment which is providing innovative solutions
to help clients in the hospitality and travel indusfry to achieve their business goals, The geographical segments
considered are “within Germany” and "outside Germany" and are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company who maonitors the
operating results of its business units not separately for the purpose of making decisicns about resource
allocation and performance assessment. The CODM is considered to be the Board of Directors who make
strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the financial performance of the
operating segments. The analysis of geographical segments is based on geagraphical location of the customers.

{p) Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary econamic environment in which the Company
operates, i.e., the functional currency, to be Euros (Euro). The special purpose financial statements are presented
in Euro, which is the Campany's functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded to the
nearest thousands up to two decimal places, uniess otherwise stated. Consequent to rounding off, the numbers
presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely
reflect the absolute amounts.

{q)Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects transactions
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash and
cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less.

(r) Share issue expense
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for utilisation in the Securities Premium
Account. Share issue expenses in excess of the balance in the Securities Premium Account is expensed in

the Statement of profit and loss.

(s) New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or

amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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(i} ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts
The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company's separate financial statements
as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracis covered under Ind AS 117.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA natified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-fessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recagnise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116,

The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements
{t) Recent Accounting Developments — Standards Notified but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is
no such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2025, '




RateGain Germany GmbH {formerly known as Myhotelshop GMEBH)
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in Euro thousand uniless otherwise stated

3 Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and

fixtures Total
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 01 April 2023 176.21 170.21
Additions 7.52 7.52
Disposals/ adjustments (10.07) (10.07)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 167.65 167.65
Additions - -
Disposals/ adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 167.65 167.65
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment loss:
Balance as at 01 Aprii 2023 157.90 157.90
Depreciation expense 9.82 9.82
Disposals / adjustments (6.28) (6.29)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 161.42 161.42
Depreciation expense 1.71 1.71
Dispasals / adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 163.13 163.13
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 6.23 6.23
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4.52 4.52

{i) The Company dces not have assets pledged as security.
{ii) Depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment has been presented in Note 23 i.e. Depreciation and
amortisation expense.




RateGain Germany GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMEH)
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

4 Right-of-use assets

Office building
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 0 April 2023 233.32
Addilions 211.18
Disposals (233.32)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 211.18
Additions 5.82
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 217.0@
Accumulated depreciation:
Baiance as at 01 April 2023 187.56
Depreciation expense 40.97
Disposais (187.56)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 40.97
Deprecialion expense 43.27
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 84.25
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 170.21
Balance as at 31 March 2025 132.75

(i) Depreciation of right of use assets has baen presented in Note 23 i.e. Depreciation and amortisalion expense.
5 Other intangible assets
Softwares

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 01 April 2023 81,26
Additions -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 91.26
Additions -
Baiance as at 31 March 2025 91.26
Accumulated amonrtisation/impairment:
Balance as at 01 April 2023 7.1
Amgriisation expense 11.51
Balance as at 31 March 2024 82.62
Amoriisation expense 8.64
Balance as at 31 March 2025 91.26

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 March 2024 8.64
Balance as at 31 March 2025 -

{iy Amortisation of ather intangible assets has been presented in Note 23, Depreciation and amortisation expense.
(i) The Company does not have assets pledged as security.




RateGaln Germany GmbH (farmesly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)

Notes forming parl of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amaunts ara In Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

§ Leans

Nen - current
{unsecured and consldered good)
Loan to related parties*

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

1,615.32

1,515.32

4,515,32

1,515.32

* The lpan was granted lo Ralegain Technologies LId, the Parent company, The company has disbursed Ihe Ioan amounting to Euro 45, 15,323 in the monlh of January 2022, The repaymenl of toan shall shall te made on
terminalion date ( i.e. 315l December, 2026). The oulstanding loan balance would carry an interest @ 7% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis.

7 Other financial assets

Non-current
{Unsecured and considered good}
Financlal assets carried al amattised cost

Current

Current

Security deposils 14.04 14.04
14.04 14.04
{Unsecured and consldered goad)
Financlal assets carrled at amoriisad gost
tnlerest accruad bul not dua 384.59 256.03
384,59 256.03
8 Incoma tax assets and fabitities
Income tax assets
Income lax raceivabla 11202 -
11z.02 -
Income tax Habllities.
Income tax payable . 671,74
- &71.74
9 Othar pon-current assets
Prepaid expanses 170.18 431,95
Advances to employaes 4.32 0,18
Other advances 0.4 005
174,85 A32.18
1¢  Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 2,927.83 3,139.10
Unbilled revenus* 638.42 95245
Credit impaired 200.40 20040
3,766.65 4,291.95
Lass: Loss aliowance {200.40) (200.40)
J,566.25 4,091.55
“Upbitied revenue perains to oulstanding invoices which are raised and appraved in the subsequent financial year.
{i} Trada receivabies againg schedule is as faliows:
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars Y Outstanding for following pariads from due date of payment
Unhitlad :‘s‘:m:: & months - 1 year 142 years .3 years More than 3 years Tatal
(i} Undisputed Trade receivabies — consldered good 638.42 2,219.37 282.98 198.07 227.41 - 3,566.25
(7i} Undisputed Trade Receivablas ~ which have significant - - - - - - .
Increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — oredil impalred - - - 132.78 10.02 571.80 200,40
(iv) Cisputed Trade Receivabiles considered goad - - - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - -+ - - M
increass in cradit risk
{vi) Cisputed Trada Recaivables ~ credit impaired - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2624
Partleutars e Outstanding for following parlods from due date of payment
Unbilled t:::mha: & months - 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
11} Undispuled Trade receivables — considered goed 952.45 2,730,726 J05.56 103.29 - - 4,091.55
{i§) Undisputed Trada Receivables — which hava significant - - - - - - -
increase in cradit isk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impairad - - - 86.81 50.53 53.06 200.40
{iv} Disputed Trada Receivables considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - - - .
increase in credit risk
(vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
As at As at

11 'Cash and cash equivalents

Balancas with banks

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

2,192.95 1,491.21
- 50000
2,183.95 1,991.21
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Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Alt amounts are in Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

12 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Right-of-use assets
Employee benefit expense

Deferred tax assel/ (liabilities) (Net}

{a} Movement in deferred tax liabilities for the period ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

44,67 57.09
42.38 54.34
46.19 138.06
(43.90) (135.31)

Recognised in other

Description Opening Recognised In Profit or comprehensive Closing balance

Balance loss

Income

Deferred tax asseis in relation to:
Lease liabilities 57.09 (12.42) - 44.67
Total deferred tax assets 57.09 {12.42) - 44.67
Deferred tax llabilities in refation to:
Right-of-use assels 54.34 {(11.88) 42.38
Employee benefit expense 138.06 (91.87) - 46.19
Total deferred tax tiabllities 192.40 (103.83) - 88.57
Deferred tax assets/(Habilities) net {135.31) 91.41 - {43.90)

(b} Movement in deferred tax labtlities for the period ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Opening Recaognised in Profit or  Recognised in other Closing hatance

Description Balance loss comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Employee benefit expense 2,10 (2.10) - -
Lease liabilities 15,15 41.93 - 57.09
Total deferred tax assets 17.25 39.83 - 57.09
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to:
Right-of-use assets 14.61 38.73 54.34
Employee benefit expense - 138.06 - 138.08
Total deferred tax liabilities 14.61 177.79 - 192,40
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities} net 2.65 {137.96) - (135,31}

{This space has been intentionally leff blank)
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13 Equity share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

1,070,341 equity shares of Euro 1 each fully paid up (37 March 2024 | 1,070,341 eqully shares of Euro 1 each fully paid up)

Hotes:

{i) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

As at
3 March
2625

1,070,34
1,070.34

As at
3t March
2024

1,070.24
1,070.34

The Company has oniy one class of equity shares havlng & par valua of Euro t per shars, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per shara, in lha even! of liguidalion of the Company, helder of equity shares will be antitfed to recaive
remalning assets of the Company aflar distribution of all preferentlal amaunl. The dislribulion will be In praparifon la the numbar of equity shares held by the sharahaldars,

(I} Reconclliation of the number of shares and amount cutslandling at the beglnning and at the and cf the year:

As at Asal
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 Margh 2024
HNumbar Amound Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,070,341 1,070.34 1,070,341 1,070.34
Adg ; Issued during tha year - . - -
Equily sivares ouistandlng at the end of the yeat' 1,070,341 1,670.34 1,070,341 1,070.34
(i) Shares heid hy aach shareholder holding mera than § percent shares:
As at Asal

Parliculars

31 March 3025

31 March 2024

Numhbers % holding

MNumbers % halding

RataGaln Technolegies Limiled (UK)

1,070,341 100.00%

1,070,344

160.00%

{lv) Sharehalding of promalers are as fallows:

Promoter Nama

As at 31 March 2025

No. of shales

% of tatg shares

% change during ihe paried

RateGain Technelogles Umited {UK)

1,070,541

100.00%

0,00%

Promater Namsg

As al 31 March 2024

MNa. of shares

% ol talal shares

% change during the perod

RalaGain Technolagies Limited {UK)

1.070,341

100.00%

0.00%

{This space has been Infentionatly left blank)
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
14 Other equity
Security premium account 135.46 135.48
Ratained earnings 3,392.72 3,089,268
Capital contribution from parent 6.81 £.81
3,534,99 3,231,583
141 Security premium account
Baiance at the bagirning of tha year 135.46 13546
Balance at the end of Lhe year 135.46 135.46
Securilies premium s used lo record tha premium on issue of shares.
14.2 Retained earnings
Balance al tha beginning of the year 3,089.26 2,108.79
Profit for the year 303.46 980.47
Halance at the end of the year 3,392.72 3,489.26
Retained earnings are created from the profit/ loss of the Company, as adjusted for distributions lo cwners, transfers lo other reserves, ste.
14,3  Gapital contributlon from parent
Balance al the beginning of the year 6.81 6.81
Addition during the year . .
Batance at the end of the year 6.81 6.81

(This space has been intetitionally lefl blank)
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All amounts are in Euro thousand unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
15 Lease liabililies
Non.current
Lease obligations 98,62 137,17
96.62 13747
Current
Lease obligaticns 43,31 41,85
43.31 41.65
16 Other financial fiabllities
Gurrent
Employea related payabie 55.39 110.14
Fayable to relaled parties 9.54 25.14
64.93 135.28
17 Other liahilitles
Current
Advances from cuslomers §1.25 85,39
Stalutery liabilities 30,32 255,43
Deferred revanue 404,72 575.49
516,29 916,31
18 Trade payables
i, fatal outstanding dues of micra enterprises and smail enterprises B -
ii. total cutstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small 2,727.%1 2,146.07

enlerprises

Trade payables ageing is as follows!

As at 31 March 2025

Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment

Particulars Viora than 3
Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years ore than Tatal
Years

(i) Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises B B
(il) Others 2,532,565 195.36 - - 2,727.91
{iliy Dispuled dues- Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues- others - . -

As at 3 March 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Years Total
{# Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises - - - - -
(i) Others 2,146.07 . - - 2,146.07
(i) isputed dues- Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises - - - - -
(iv} Disputed dues- others - - - - -

(This space has been infentionally leff blank)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
19 Revenue from operations
Sale of services 13,107.65 14,158.55
13,107.65 14,158.55
Note:

(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Parliculars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Type of services
MarTech 13,107.865 14,158.55

Total revenue from contracts with customers 13,107.65 14,158.55

Geographical region

Germany 8,758.20 i0,178.26
Outside Germany 4,349.45 3,980.29
Total revenue from confracts with customers 13,107.65 14,158.55

Timing of recognition of revenue

Revenue recognised at point in time 13,107.65 14,158.55
Revenue recoghised over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 13,107.65 14,158.55

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Trade receivables 3,566,25 4.091.55
Advances from customers 81.25 85.39
Deferred revenue 404.72 575.49

Remaining performance obligations as at the reporting date are expected to be substantially recognised over the next
reporting period by the Company.

(c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Contract liabilities refated to sale of services
Advances from customers 85.39 106.88
Deferred revenue 575.49 658.97

{d} Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and Joss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 13,107,865 14,158.55
Adjustments:
Rebate - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 13,107.65 14,158.55
20 Other income

Interest income
Interest income earned on:

- bank deposits (at amortised cost) 18.53 12.68
Interest income on loans and financials asset (at amortised cost) 129.80 119.46
148.33 132.14

Other income
Sundry balances written back - 16.87
Gain on termination of lease - 2.91
Others 35.43 28.61
35.43 48.39

W 183.76 180.53
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

21 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 2,391.85 2,382.38
Contribution to provident and other fund 470.55 433.74
Staff welfare expenses 53.52 14538
Employee stock option expense 26.95 25.14
2,942.87 2,986.64
22 Finance costs
Interest on lease liabilities 3.16 3.22
3.16 3.22
23 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1.71 9.82
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 8.64 11.51
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 43.27 40.87
53.62 62.30
24 Other expenses
Rent 48.55 44.94
Insurance 13.47 12.44
Communication charges 160.30 140.99
Postage and courier 0.81 0.76
Travelling and conveyance 67.34 56.17
Legal and professional charges 59.45 85.48
Training and recruitment expenses 29.79 43.75
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 36.53 50.97
Bank charges 15.80 21.49
Vehicle running and maintenance 54.63 48,31
External services 7,430.18 7,579.32
Loss an foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 3.64 1.69
Allowance for expected credit loss - 14.58
Software licenses 85.87 75.94
Office maintenance 5.06 7.76
Miscellaneous expenses 1,840.01 1,597.29
Total 9,849.43 9,781.88

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
25 Income taxes
Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Currertt tax
In respect of the current year 230,28 386.61
230.28 386.61
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (91.41} 137.96
{91.41} : 137.96
Total income tax {credit)/expense recognised in the current year 138.87 524.57
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconclled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 442.33 1,505.04
Domestic tax rate 31.83% 31.83%
ihcome tax expense at statutory income tax rate 141,21 480.48
Others (2.34) 44,09
138.87 524.57

26 Earming/{l.oss) per share

Basic EPS amcunis are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable 1o equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outsianding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equily shares
outstanding during the year plus the welghled average number of equity shares thal would be issued on conversicn of all ditutive potential equity shares
inta equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in ihe basic and diluted EFS computations:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit attributable to equity holder of the Company 303.46 930.47

Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing :

Basic EPS 1,070,340 1,070,340
Weighted average number of equity shares held through ESOP trust

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares- employee slack oplions

Dituted EPS 1,070,340 1,070,340
Basic EPS 0.28 0,92
Diluted EP3 0.28 0,92

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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27

28

29

Sagment reporiing

Operaling segments are reporled in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CGDM"} of the Company. The CODM is considered 1o be the Board of
Directors who make stralegic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the financial performance af the operating segments.

The Campany's business activity falls within a singie segment, which is providing Innovative solutions to help clignls in Ihe hospilakty and travel indusiry 1o achisve Lhelr business goals, In terms of Ind AS 108 on

Segment Reporting,

The geographlcai segments consklered for disclosure are as follows!

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ravenue from external customers by location of the custamers
{) APMEA 37033 27.10
{l) Europe 11,670.64 13,282.53
{iily USA 1,040.74 848.92
{iv) Olhers 25.94 -
Total 13,107.65 14,158.55

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Mon-current assets *
1,662.59 {,70039

{i} Germany
(i) Other counlries

* Nen-current assets, other Ihan financial Instrumants and Income fax assats (netydeferred tax asset (nel) and goodwill.

Novum group af holels conlributes lo Euro 1,313.85 thousand of the company’s revariue for the year anded 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Euro: 3,478.07 thousand).

Information abaut revenue from customers located oulside Germany Is included in nota 19

Share based payment

The amployees of the Company are eligible to participate In the Empioyee Slock Option Plans (ESOP) adminislered by RaleGain Travel Techrolagies Limiled, Indla (Parent Company}. Under this plan, the

Parent Company granis stack eplions lo emplayees of tha Company, which are seltled in tha equily shares of the Parent Company.

Tha Company has enlered into an agreemenl with the Parent Campany, under which il reimburses the Parent for the the aplions granled to ils employees.,

The fair value of the aptions granted |s detarsminad on the grant dals and is recognized as an employss benefit sxpense over 1hs vesting pericd. The wnésponding credit is racognized as a fabillty to the Parant

Comgany under Payatles lo Related Parties {Refer nole 16).

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has recognized an amployee benefil axpense of Eurc 26.95 thousand (31 March 2024: Euro 25.14 lhousand) with a carrasponding liability ta the Parent

Company.

Leases

The Gompany has lease for coffice buikiings. Wilh the exceplion of short-lerm leases and leases of low-value underiying assets, each laase is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and & lease
llability, ¥he Company ciassifies ils fight-of-use assals in a consistent manner Lo its property, pfant and equipment.The Company has three affice lease as right-of-use assels which has lease lerm of 9 years and
remaining lease term af 3.17 years as at 31 March 2025.

Leasa paymenls lo be made under reasonably cerlain extensian aplions are also includad In the measurement of the lease iahiilty. The lease paymenls are discounted using Incremental borrowing rate of the
Company, being Ihe rale the Company would have to pay le borrow the funds necessary to ablain an assel of similar value to the right-of-use asset In 3 gimiiar environment with similar terms, security and

conditions.

Amounts recognised in the cansolldaled statement of profit or loss:

Partlculars Year endad Year ended
11 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreclation on right-af-use assals 43.27 40.97
Intarest on lease fabilities (included i interest expenses) 316 3.22
Expenses relating to short-term leases 46.55 44.94
- 2.91

Gain an termination of lease

The folal cash outtlew for teasas for the year was Euro 94,42 thausand(34 March 2024 was Euro 78.84 thousand).

Refer Mote 31(iiib. far maturity of lease tablites

(This space has bean Intentionally ieft blank}
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10 Related party disclosures

{Iy Relationship with related parties:

{a} Ultimate Parent Company
RateGain Travel Technologles Limited

{b) Parent Company
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK

(c) Fellow subsidiaries
RateGain Technologies Inc,, US
RateGain Technologies Spain 5.L.
RCV Social LLC
RaleGain Adara ING (with effect from. 14 December 2022)
RaleGain Technologles LLC {with effect from 28 November 2022)
RaleGain Adara Japan (with effzct from 25 Dec 2023}

{d) Key management persannel (KMP):
wr, Bhanu Chopra (Chairman & Managing Director)
Ms. Aditi Gupta (Independent Direclor)

{lly Transactions with related partles

Nature of transactions

Expense Incurred on

Expense inuurred on

Management
conhsultaney

Interest Income

behalf of our behatf by axpenss”
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 184_'05 : (322;2) ’\ 865_'08 : -
RateGain Technologies Inc., US {zg;gg) (28-,10) : -
RateGaln Technologles Limited, UK ‘(‘;‘;ig’;) : 1[:;;3) : (gggg)
BCV Social LL.C é?;:gg) 22 - -
RateGain Tachnologies LLC ;g;g] (108-.42) :
RateGain Technologies Spain S.L. (2?23?) _

(i) Balance outstanding for related partles:

Nature of transactions

Trade Payable
{Including other

Trade Receivables
{Including other

Loan receivable

Interest receivable

payables) receijvables)
RaleGain Travel Technologies Limited {32223) - .
RateGain Techhologies inc., US (89-.54) (32323] :
RataGain Technologies Limited, UX (44-.6?) (ggggg) (1'21 gg:} (ggggg
BCV Sacial LLC Goeds] (Bi758) . :
RateGain Technoiogies Spain S.l.. (ggggg) :
RateGain Technologies LLC (gggZ} {1—'55) : *
RaleGain Adara INC {22?) _ :

*Numbers in brackels regresents financial year eading 31 March 2024

The Gompany related party transaclions during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 and ouistanding balances as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are at arms

length and in the ordinary course of business.
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31 Fair valus measurements

) Financlal instrumneats by calegory

As al 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Parlloulars FVYTPL Amortised cost FVTEL Amarlised cost
Financiai assels
Trade receivables . - 1,566.25 - 4,001.55
Cash and cash equivalenls - 2,193.95 - 1,994.21
Loans - 1,515.32 - 1,515.32
Other financial agsels - 358.63 - 270.07
Tolal - 7.674.15 - 7.868,15
Financial fiabilities
Lease Habiities - 138,53 - 178,82
Trade payables - 2,727.81 . 2.146.07
Other financial lishlitles - 64,83 - 135,28
Talal - 2,932,977 - 2,460.17

H) Fair value hierarchy
Financiat assels and financlal Rabililies measured al falr value In Ihe balance sheet are divided inte three fevels of a falr value hierarchy. The threa lavels are defined basad on the observabllily of significant inpuls to the measuremenl, as

follows:
tovel 1: Quoled pricas (unadusted} In active markels for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financlal nstruments that are not traded In an active markal [s determined using valuation techniques which maximise lhe use of absarvable markel data rely a5 lillla as possible on enlity specific eslimates.

Leve! 3: ¥ one or more of the significant inpuls is nol based on chservable markel dala, the Inslument is Included in evel 3.

Fair value of financial assets and Hasbllities measured at amariised cost:

Tha carrying amounls of Irade recelivables, irade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, Invesimenl in bonds, ather current financiais assals snd ligbllities ars considared lo be (he sama as their fal values, dus to thair

short-larm natura.

For financist assels and lizbiitias thal are messurad at fsir value, lhe camying amounis are equal to the fair values.

i} Financial sk management
The Company's activities exposa it to market risk, liquldity risk and credit rsk. The Gompany's board of directars has overall responsitlity for the estabishment and cvatsighl of the Campany's Fisk f gement f k. This nata
explains the sourcas of risk which Lhe enlity is exposed Io and how The entity manages the risk and (he related impacl In Ihe financial statemenls.

Risk Expaaure arising Measursmant Managamaist

Credit risk Cash ard cash equivalents, frade recaivables, lnvestment In bonds, financial assels measured at Agelng analysls Baik deposits, diversilicalion of asset base,
amortised cost credit limits and collaleral,

Liquidity risk Botrowings and ather liabllilles Rolling cash flaw forecasls Availabfifty of cammitted credit Ines and

barrowing facilties

Market risk - foreign curmency risk Recognised financial assels and financial liabllities nol denominaled In Euro Sensilivity analysls Farelgn cumency forwards
Faoreign cumency aptiens

. Credit risk
CredIt tisk is the risk that a counlerpanty fals to discharge an obilgation lo the Company. The Company |s exposed to Ihis risk for various financfal instruments, for example by granling loans and recelvables to customers, placing deposils,
slc. The Company's maximum sxposura to credll Ask Is Imiled fo Lhe carrying amount of following types of financiai assels,
- cash and cash equivalents,
- Irade receivables,
- Joans and recelvablas carrled at amortised cosl, and
- depaslits with banks
- Investmenl in bonds

The maximum sxposure le cradit isks is rapresanted by (ha lotai canying amaunl of these financlal assels in the balance sheek

Pariculars Ad at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Investmzant in bandsicommercial paper - -
Leans (cumenl and non cumanl} §,516.32 1,615.32
Trade receivables 3,566.25 4,091.55
Cash and cash equlvatents 2,193.95 1,94.21
Other bark balances - -
Olher financial assets (current 2nd non-currenl) 388.63 270,07

Credil risk on cash and cash aquivalenis and bank deposits (shown undsr other bank balances) and ather Ninancial assets carmes either minimal or na risk as lhe Company generally invests in deposits wilh banks with high credit ratings
assigned by domestic credit rating agencfes. Olher financlai assels measured at amortized cost Tncludas security deposlls and others. Credit risk relaled lo these other financial assets s managed by monitorlag tha recaverability af such
amounls continuously, while al the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounls are wllhin defined imils,

The expasure lo lhe credit risk 3t lhe reporiing date is primarily from security deposit receivable and trade receivables,

Trade receivables ara typically unsecured and are derived from revenua garned from customers primarily jocated In India, United Kingdom, United Siates of America and Spain, The Company does monitor lhe econamic environmenl i
which Il operales, Tha Company manages its credit risk through credit appravals, establishing credil imvils and corlinuously monlledng credit worthiness of custemers lo which the Company granis credil lemes in the normal courss of
business.

The Company Uses expected credit loss model o assass the impaimment loss. Credit sisK ity security deposits considered to ba low as hey form part of other commerclal arangements such as leases, therefore secutity deposit are impalred
anly when Ihere is cbleclive evidence of impslrment, The Company uses a provigion matsix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trada receivables. The provision matrix lakes [nto accaunt available Intemal credit risk factors
such as the Company's historical experiance for customers, Based on Ihe business enviranment n which the Company cperates, managemenl considers ECL for trads receivables that are compuled basis the historical rend and fultre
macoaconamic factors to delermine an impsirment stlowarce for loss an recelvables {ather than receivables from related parlles).

Refer nate 16 lor bifurcation of lrade receivabies into credit impaired and olhers.

Changes ln the loss ailowance In respect of trade recelvables For the year anded  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balanca al the beginning of the year 200.40 -
Change in fmpairmant allowances for receivables - 200.40
Balance al the end of the year 200,40 200.40

(This spaca has been inlentionally feft blank)
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Motes forming part of the speclal purpsse financial stalements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025
AR amounts ara in Eure thousand Lrilass otherwise stated

Expecled eredit loss for trade recsivables under simplified approach

Particulars As at 3st March 2025
Unbilled duas Less than § months & maonths -1 year 1-2 years 2+3 years More than 3 years Tatat
Gross camying amount- trade 638.42 2,219.37 282.98 108.07 227 .41 - 3,566.25
recelvables (considerad good}
Gross carrying amount- lrade - - - 132.78 10,02 57.60 200.40
receivables (credit impalred)
Expected {oss rale .00% 0.00% 0.00% 40.13% 4.22% 100.00% 100.00%
Expected credil losses (loss - - - 132.78 10.02 57.60 200.4¢
allowanca pravision)- trade
Carmrying amount of trada receivables 638.42 2,219.37 282.98 134.07 227.4 " 3,566.25
{nat of Impalment)
Particulars _ As at 31si March 2024
nbilled dues Less than § manths 6 manths - 1 year 1.2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Gioss carrying amount- trade 952,45 2,730.26 305,56 103,29 - - 4,091.55
receivables (considared good)
Gross camying amount- trade - - 98.81 50.53 53.06 200.40
receivables (credil impaired)
Expected loss rate 0.06% 0.00% 0.00% 48.38% 100.00% 100.90% +00,00%
Expected credit losses (loss - - 986,81 50.53 53.08 200.40
allowance provision)- lrada
Carrying amaunl of lrade receivables 952.45 2,7:M.26 205.56 403.29 - - 4,081,55
(net ol impairmant)

b. Liquldity risk

{iquidity risk is Lhe risk thal tha Company may encounter difficulty 1
abjective s to, at ail imes maintain eplimum levals of flquldity io meet lls cash and collaleral abligalians. Utlimata responsibifity for fiquidily risk managamenl resls with Ihe

n meeting its present and futurs obligations assoclated with fnancial llabitities thal are required to be sallled by deilvering cash ar anather financial asset. The Company's
Beard of Directors. Tha Campany's managas llquidity risk by

malnteining sdequate reserves, banking factiies and reserve bamowlng facilities, by conlinuausly menitoring forecast and actual cash fows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assels and Fabliifies Managemenl moeniters

rolling farecasls of the Company's fiquidity position and cash and cash equivalents an iha basis of expecled eash Pows.

Maturities of financiaf liabiities

The lables below analyse the Company's financial Habikities into relevant maturity Companyings based on thair contractual maturities for all non-darivallve financlal labilities, The amaunts disclosad in the table are the coniractual

undiscounted cash flows.

31 March 2025 Less than 1 year 1-5 year Mora than 5 years Total
Nan-derivatives

Leasa liabllities 4371 100.68 144.39
Trade payables 272091 - . 2,727.91
Giher financial fisbitties £4.83 - - 64.53
Total 2,B36.55 100,64 - 2,937,231
31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than § years Total
Non-derivatives

Leasa Habiillies 4203 144,39 - 186.42
Trade payables 2,146,07 - - 2,146.07
Clher financlal llabillles 138.28 - - 135.28
Tatal 2,323.08 144.39 - 2,487.77

©. Markel risk - Foraign currency risk

The Campany is exposed Lo forelgn excharge risk arising from foreign curency transacllons, primanily wilh respect to Ihe balow cumencles. Foreign exchange risk arlses from recognised assats and llabiliies denaminaled In a currency Lhat

is nat the Company’s funcllonal cirrency,

Fereign cutrency tlsk expasure

Below is tha ovarali exposure of tha Company lo loreigh curmency risk exprassed In Euro;

Parilculars Cutrency Amount
1 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financial asgats
Trade recalvabie

uso 1,071.63 5562
Financial liabllities
Trade Payable usn 283.29 353.08
Sensitivity
Below is the sensltivity of profil of logs and equity to changes in Ihe sxchange rstes wises malnly from forelgn currancy denominated financlal Instrumenis, assuming no change In other vadables:

As at As at

Parllculars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

USD sensltivity

INRIUSE- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%)
INRIUSD- decrease by 5.00% (31 March 2024: 5.00%)

§8.25
(68.25)

2043
{20.43)

Capital management policies and pmcadures

The Gampany's objective for capital management Is ta maximiza sharsholdar's valua, safeguard business conlinuity and support the growth of the Company, Tha Company determinas the eapilal requirement basad an annual operating
plan and other sirateglc investment plans. The Company aims ta manags its capital efficlantiy sc as lo saleguard fts ability lo corfinue as a golng cancern and te oplimize ratums fo ali its sharehalders. The Campany’s funding requiremenls

ara met through equity infusiors,

The amaunts managed as capital by the Company's for lhe reposting periods under review are summarised as follows.:

As al Ag at

Parliculars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Long-tarm bormawings Including leasa liabiiities 06,62 13747
Current maturities of lease Fabilitias 43.01 41,65
Tolal horrowings 139.93 178.82
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,192.95 1,981.21
Olhear bank balances - -
Met debts {2,054.02} (1,812.39)
Total equity* 4,605.33 4,301.87
Met debt le equity ratia {0.45) (0.42)

'Equity includes eqully share capitsi and other equity of the Company thal are managed as capilal,




RaleGain Germany GmbH (farmarly known as Myhotelshop GMBH)
Notes forming parl of ihe special purpose financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts are in Euro thousand unless otherwise siated

3

n

Ralios to disclosed as par raqulrement of Sehedule ll to the Act

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Particulars 31 March 2025
Cuirent ratio

Curenl assets {Numeratar) 6,318 64
Cuiranl fiabiliies (Denominatar) 3,352 44
Current ratio 1.89
% Change as compared ta the preceding year 8.85%

Debt service covarage ratio

Eamings svailable for debt service {Numeralar} * 360,24
Debl service (Denominator) # 47 87
Debl sarvice covarage ratlo 7.53
% Change as compared to the preceding year (75.61%)

* Eaming for Debt Service = Nel Profit afler laxes + Financa Cosl + Depreciation
# Debt service = interest and Lease payments + Principal repayments
Explanation for change In the ralio by more than 25% as compared la the preceding year:

6,770.97
3,811.05
173

1,045.99
33.80
30,86

The desrease In the Dabt Service Coverage Ralia s due to a lemporary deciing in operating profit, with improvemenls expecled as profilability slrengthens.

Relurn on equity ratlo

Profit / {loss) for the periedfyear {Numeratar) 303.48
Shareholder's equity (Denaminator) 4,605.33
Relturn on aqulty 6.59%
% Change as compared to the preceding year {71.09%}

Explanation for change in the ratia by more than 25% as compared lo the preceding year:

880.47
4,301.87
12,79%

Tha decline in the Retum an equity ratio is due lo a lemparary deciina in aparaling profit, with imprevemenis expecled as profitability strenglthens,

. Trade receivables turnover ralio

Net sales (Numeralor) 13,107.65
Average irada recevable (Denominator) * 3,828.90
Trade receivables turnover ratto 142
% Change as compared to the preceding yaar {20.32%)

* Average (rade receivables = {{Opening balance + Closing batance) / 2}

Trade payables {urnover ratio

Met szles (Numerater) 13,107.65
Average trada payable (Denominator) * 2,436,899
Trade payables turmover ratia . 528
% Variance (37.23%)

Explanation for change In the ralio by mere than 25% as compared to the preceding year:
Tha desrease in the lrade payahle lumover ralio reflects Improved credit ferms and efficlent cash flow management.
* Averags lrade payablas = {(Opening balance + Closing balance) / 2}

Net capital turnover ratie

Nal salas (Numerator) 13,107.65
Warking capital {Denominalar} * 2,867.20
Nel capital turnever ratic 4,42
% Changa as comparad lo Ihe praceding yesr {10,77%)
“Working capital = Current assals - Current liablilles

Nel profit ralio

Profit / {less) for the periodiyear (Numerator} 103.46
Mal sales (Denaminalor) 13,107,865
Nat profit ralio 4.02
4 Change as compared lo the preceding vear {66.57%)

Explanation for change in the ratla by more than 25% as compared {o the preceding year:

14,158.55
3,265.28
4.30

14,158.55
1,652.30
8.57

14,158.55
2,850.92
4.95

980.47
14,158.85
0.07

The deciing in Iha Nast profit ratio is due to a lemporary decline in operating profit, with improvemants expacled as profilaslity strengthens.

Raturn an capltal employed

Eaming before interest and taxes (Mumarator) 445,49
Capitai ermployed {Denominator)® 4,605.33
Ralurn on capltat empfoyed 4.67%
% Change as compared to the preceding year {712.41%)

Explanation for change In the ratio by more than 26% as compared to the precedlng year:

4,508.26
4,301.87
35.06%

Tha decline in the return an capital employed is due lo a temporary decline in operating profit, with improvements expected as profitabilly strengthens.

* Capitai Empioyed = Tolal equity + Total debt

Nole:
The ratics which are not applicabls to company hes not been prasenled above.

(This space has been infentionally lefl blank}
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33 No subsequent event cccted post balance sheet dale which requlras ad|ustment [n the financial slalemenls for the year ended 31 March 2025,

34 Tie figures of Ihe corresponding previous year have been regrouped wherever considered necessary lo comespond o cument year disclosures. The impact of such reciassificallon/regrouping is not materal lo the lInanclal statemenis.

For and on bahalf of tha Board of Direclars af
RateGain any GmbH (formerly known as Myhotelshop GMEBH)

Date: 24 May 2025
Piace: Noida

i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Board of Directors of RateGain Technologies LLC
Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion .

We have audited the accompanying Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of RateGain
Technologies LLC {the “Company”), which comprise the Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2025, and the Special Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Special Purpose Statement of Cash Flows and the Special Purpose Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements”).
These Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared solely for inclusion in the annual report
of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025 under the requirements of
section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
basis of preparation referred to in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Special Purpose Ind:AS Financial Statements in accordance with the*
Standards on Auditing ("SA"s) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {("ICAI"). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit
of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter
Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements, which describes the
purpose and basis of accounting. The Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared for
inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (“the Parent Company”) under
‘the requirements of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. As a result, the Special Purpose Ind AS
Financial Statements may not be suitable for any other purpose. The Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements cannot be referred to or distributed or included or used for any other purpose except with
our prior consent in writing, Our report is intended solely for the above purpose and is not to be used,
referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Deloitte Haskins & Sells L1P is registered with Limited Liabitity having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Special Purpose Ind AS
Financial Statements . A

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Special
Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the basis of preparation described in Note 2.1 to the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements for the purpose set out in “Emphasis of Matter — Basis of accounting and restriction on
distribution and use” paragraph above.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the Ind AS financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process

Auditor's Responsﬂ:nhty for the Audit of the Specnal Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Ind AS Fmancaal
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the hasis of these Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internat control,

» FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to
express an opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 5|gn|ﬂcant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independeﬁce, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

Reporting on comparatives in case the previous year was audited by the predecessor auditor

The Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024,
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmeodified opinion on those statements on July
16, 2024,

Our opinion on the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartereg-Sctpuntants
(Firm’s Reglstration No, 117366

Rajesh Kumfar Agarwal

(Paktner)

(Membership No. 105546)

UDIN: 25105546BMLAIES142
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2025




Rategain Technologies LLC
Special Purpose Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
All amounts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

. s at
Particulars Notes 31 pvon 2025 11 Manch 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3.80 -
Total non-current assefs 3.90 =
Current assets
Financial assels
Trade receivables 7 9,688.21 2,529.05
Cash and cash equivalents 8 6,448.68 2,733.61
Other financiat assels 4 880.68 358.45
Other current assets 6 87,33 0.46
Total current assets 17,104.90 5,621.57
Total assets 17,108.80 5,621.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital g 100.00 100.00
Other equity 10 7,675.02 1,881.76
Total equity 7,775.02 1,981.76
LIABILITES
Current liabilities
Financial liahilities
Trade payables 13
i. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 4,690.68 4,11
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 11 1,865.29 1,807.63
Other current liabllities 12 2,169.62 1,690.26
Income tax liabilities {net) 5 608.19 137.81
Total current liahilities 9,333.78 3,639.81
Total liabilities 9,333.78 3,639.81
Total equity and liabilities 17,108.80 5,621.57
2

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these special purpose financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Pariner
Membership No.: 105546

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rategain Technologies LLC

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida



Rategain Technologies LLC
Special Purpose Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
All amounts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

. Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue from aperations 14 34,324.62 8,658.25
Total income 34,324.62 8,658.25
Expenses
Employee benefils expense 15 3,586.57 2,284.77
Other expenses 16 24 398,92 4,353.91
Total expenses 27,995.49 6,638.608
Profit befare tax 6,329.13 2,0198.57
Tax expense!: 17
Curent tax 535.87 137.81
Deferred tax credit - -
Total tax expense 535.87 137.81
Profit for the year 5,793.26 4,881.76
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,793.26 1,881.76
Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basic EPS 18 57,932.60 18,817.60
Diluted EPS 18 57,932.60 18,817.60
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these special purpose financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rategain Technologies LLC

Partner

Date: 26 May 2025 Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida



Rategain Technologies LLC
Statement of Special Purpose Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amounts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

Particulars As at As at
Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 6,329.13 2,019.57
Adjustments for:
Employee stock option expense 32.24 -
Allowance for expected credit loss 334.14 -
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 6,695.51 2,019.57
Working capital adjusiments:
Increase in trade receivables (7,493.30) (2,529.05)
{Increase) Decrease in financial assets (522.23) (358.45)
Increase in ather assels (86.87) (0.46)
Decrease in trade payables 4,686.57 410
Increase in other liabilities 479.36 1,690.26
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 2542 1,807.63
Cash generated from operating activities 3,784.48 2,633.61
income tax paid/ refund (net) {65.49) -
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,718,987 2,633.61
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (3.90) -
Net cash used in investing activities {(3.90) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash generated from/(used in} financing activities - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,715.07 2,633,61
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,733,861 100.00
6,448.68 2,733.61

Cash and cash equivalents at year end

Material accounting policies 2

The Statement of Special Purpose Cash Flows has been prepared In accordance with ‘indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on 'Statement
of Cash Flows', as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the refevant rules thereunder.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rategain Teghnologies LLGC

Partner

Date: 26 May 2025 Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida



Rategain Technologies LLC
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Equity shares of AED 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 Aprii 2023 100.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2024 100.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2025 100.00
h. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
: . . T
Particulars Security premium Retalned earnings otal
account
Balance as at 01 April 2023 - - -
Profit far the year - 1,881.76 1,881.76
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 1,881.76 1,881.76
Profit for the year - 5,793.26 5,793.26
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 7,675.02 7,675,02
Material accounting policies (refer note 2)
As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Aecoyntants Rategain Technologies LLC
Firm bn No.: 117366W/MW - 100018

Partner
Membership No.: 105546

Date: 26 May 2025 Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank}
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Company information! overview

Rategain Technologies LLC (the 'Company'} is a limited liability company incorporated on 28 November 2022
under the rules and regulations of Sharjah Media City — Free Zone Authority {Shams} Authority and Licensing
Regulations 2017. '

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technelogies Limited {the “Parent Company” or
"Shareholder") a company incorporated in United Kingdom. The Ultimate Holding Company is RateGain Travel
Technologies Limited registered in India (the "Ultimate Holding Company")

The Company's registered office address is Sharjah Media City, Sharjah, UAE and governed by the rules and
regulations of Sharjah Media City — Free Zone Authority (Shams) Authority and Licensing Regulations 2017.

The Company’s software solutions allow hospitality businesses io engage with travellers and help revenue,
distribution and marketing departments to drive revenue by providing accurate, real-time and meaningful insights.

Material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set aut in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by
the company, to the year presented in the said financial statements, except in case of adoption of any new
standards and amendments during the year.

To provide more reliable and relevant information about the effect of certain items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Company has changed the classification of certain items. Previous year figures
have been re-grouped or reclassified, to confirm to such current year's grouping / classifications. There is no
impact on Equity or Net Loss due to these regrouping / reclassifications.

(a) Basis of preparation

These special purpose standalone Ind AS financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2025 have been
prepared by the company to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to seclion 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and ather relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These Special Purpose Ind AS financial statements ('Financial Statements’) have been prepared solely for
inclusion in the annual report of RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (‘Ultimate Parent Company') for the year
ended March 31, 2025 under the requirements of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act?).

The special purpose standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26 May 2025,

The special purpose financials statements are based on the classification provisions contained In Ind AS 1,
"Presentation of Financial Statements”™ and division |l of Schedule 1!l of the Act. Further, for the purpose of clarity,
various items are dis-aggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required..

{b) Basis of measurement

The special purpase financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis under historical
cost convention except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value or
amortized cost, defined benefit obligations and share based payments.

{c} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of special purpose financial staterments in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabiities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods. Changes in estimates are reflected in the special purpose financial statements in the
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period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the special purpose
financial statements.

Information about significant areas of estimation funcertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the special purpose financial statements are as follows: -

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evalualion of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a numbaer of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Allowance for expected credit losses — The allowance for doubtful debis reflects management's estimate
of losses inherent in its credit portfolio. This allowance is based on Company's estimate of the losses to be
incurred, which derives from past experience with similar receivables, current and historical past due
amounts, write-offs and collections, the careful monitoring of portfolio credit quality and current and projected
economic and market conditions. Should the present economic and financial situation persist or even worsen,
there could be a further deterioration in the financial situation of the Company's debtors compared to that
already taken into consideration in calculating the allowances recognised in the financlal statements.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resuiting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year except for as disclosed in these special purpose financial statements.

{d) Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to / by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosedin the special purpose financial statements
are categorized within fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

+ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the special purpose financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting periad.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basls of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained ahove,
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2.2 Other materiaj accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the pericds presented in the special
purpose financial statements.

(a)} Property, plant equipment

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b} any cosis directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management,

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use.

The cost of improvements to leasehold premises, if recognition criteria are met, are capitalised and disclosed
separately under leasehold improvement.

An item of praperty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecagnition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amoun
of the asset) is included in the Staternent of profit and loss when such asset is derecognised.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associaled with expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent cost are charged to Statement of profit
and loss at the time of incurrence,

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line methad computed on the basis of useful life prescribed in
Schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Schedule 1I') on a pro-rata basis fram the date the asset is ready to put

{o use,

Useful life as per Companies Act,

Block of asset 2013 (in years)

Computers 3

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of the initial lease term or
estimated useful life whichever is shorter.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis for assets purchased/sold during the year.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed by
management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

(b) kmpairment - non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication of impairment exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
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cash generating units (‘CGU'). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to a CGU or groups of
CGU that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflecis current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only if
there has heen a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

{c) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the lime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(d) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefit liabilities such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expectad to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an
undiscounted amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive bligation to pay further amounts. Paymenls to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensaled absences

The Company's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit 1o be settled in
future, that employees have earned in relurn for their service in the current and previous years. The benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements are recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

{e) Share based payments

The Company participates in the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements established by the Parent
Company under the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS). Under this arrangement, eligible employees of the
Company are granted stock options by the Parent Company. The Parent Company is responsible for issuing
shares to the employees upon the exercise of these options.
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Accounting treatment in the Company’s financial statements

For share opticns granted to the employees of the Company, the fair value of the options is determined on the
grant date. The Company recognises the fair vaiue of the options as an employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss over the vesting period, based on the number of awards that are expected to vest
considering service and non-market performance conditions.

Correspondingly, the Company recognises a liability to the Parent Company for the same amount, representing
the ohligation to reimburse the Parent Company for the cost of shares issued to its employees upoh exercise of
the options. This liability is remeasured at each reporting date for changes in the number of options expected to
vest,

If the options are cash-settled, the Company recognises a liability equivalent to the fair value of the options at
each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognised In profit or loss. The fiability is settled in cash to the
Parent Company, who then settles the employee obligation by issuing shares or cash, as applicable.

Accounting treatment in the Parent Company’s financial statements

The Parent Company recognises a receivable from the Company, equal to the liability recorded by the Company,
representing reimbursement for the shares to he Issued to the Company’s employees. The Parent Company also
recoghises a corresponding credit to equity under “ESOP Reserve® or "Share-based Payment Reserve”.

In case of forfeiture, lapse, or non-vesting of options, the Company reverses any previously recognised liability
with a corresponding adjustment to profit or loss, but there is no reversal of expense already recognised in respect
of service rendered.

The dilutive impact of outstanding options is reflected in the Parent Company’s diluted earnings per share
computation, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Vesting period and expense allocation

If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the total expense is allocated over the vesting period based
on the best available estimate of the number of options expected fo vest. Estimates are revised at each reporting
date, and any changes are recognised in the current and future perlods.In case of forfeiture, lapse, or non-vesting
of options, the Company reverses any previously recognised liability with a corresponding adjustment to profi or
joss, but there is no reversal of expense already recognised in respect of service rendered.

The dilutive impact of outstanding options is reflected in the Parent Company's diluted earnings per share
computation, in accordance with applicable accounting standards..

{f} Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any reltating
to income taxes. |{ is measured using tax rates enacted for the relevant reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amaunts used for taxation purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for ali taxable temporary differences. Deferred lax assets are recognised
fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in
case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has
sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which such deferred tax assel can be realised. Deferred tax asseis - unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable /
no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
liabiiity is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expecls, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets levied by the same tax authorities.

(g) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Monetary and non-monetary transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency
of the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettied on reporting date are translated at the rates
of exchange prevailing on reporting date. Gains/(losses) arising on account of realisation/settlement of foreign
exchange fransactions and on translation of monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognised in

the Statement of profil and toss.

Foreign exchange gains / {losses) arising on translation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented in the
Statement of profit and loss on net basis. However, foreign exchange differences arising from foreign currency
monetary loans to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs.

{h) Revenue recoghition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to
customers. Revenue is measured al the transaction price (net of variable consideration) which is the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, performance honuses, price concessions,
amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revente is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable and
determinable.

Revenue from operations is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. We determine revenue recognition through the following
steps:

1. |dentify the contract(s) with a customer;

2. ldentify the separate performance obligations in the contract;

3. Determine the transaction price;

4. Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
5. Recognize revenue when {or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

The company’s revenues generated are primarily comprised of:

1. Data as a Service (DAAS): It is a Al led- Products to gauge Demand and optimise pricing which help in
providing data and information to players across the travel & hospitality industry and delivering insights
including competitive and rate parity intelligence.

2 Distribution: It is a Al led product to standardise cantent distribution which provide Seamless connectivity
between Hotels and their demand partners including Online Travel Agents (OTAs), Global Distribution
System (GDS) and others and communicate avallability, rates, inventory and content to its customers.
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3. Martech: |tis a end to end Digital Marketing Suite to manage Brand presence for Hotels across Social
Media and Metasearch platforms and optimize direct bookings. It helps their customers in monitoring the

guest engagement 24*7,

Revenue from sale of services

(1) Revenue from sale of services in case of hospitality sector is recognised when the services are performed
through an Indefinite number of repetitive acts over the specified subscription period on straight line basis or
on the basis of underlying services performed, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the
contracts with customers and in case of travel seclor the same is recognised when the refated services are
perfoermed as per the terms of contracts.

(2) Revenue from sale of transaction based services are recognised on peint in time.

(3) The Company defers unearned revenue, including payments received in advance, until the related
subscription period is complete or underlying services are performed.

No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sale of services are made with a credit term of 30
to 60 days, which is consistent with market practice.

Interest income
Interest income on financial assets (Inciuding deposits with banks) is recognised using the effective interest rate

method.

{i) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt instruments are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
Statement of profit and loss, transaction costs thal are attributable to its acquisition or use.

Classification
For the purpose of initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets In following categories:

+ Financial assets measured at amortised cost,
« Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {(FVTOCI}, and
« Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met.
« The financial asset is held within a business model whase objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset being 'debt instrument' Is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
« Theassetis held within the business model, whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
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flows and selling the financial assets, and
«  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPlon the
principal amount autstanding.

A financial asset being equity instrument is measured at FVTPL.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amoriised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cos! using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are recognised in the Statement
of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any interest income, are
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecoghition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not relain control of the
financial asset. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL)} model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Far all other financial assets, expected
credit Josses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured al lifetime ECL.
The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company detarmines that the counterparty
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
ta write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabiliti

Recagnition and initial measurement

Al financial liabitities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contraciual provisions
of the instrument. All financial liabilities are initialty measured at fair value minus, for an item not at fair value -
thraugh profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initiat recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
inciuding any interest expense, are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.
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Financial liabilities other than classified as FVTPL., are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any galn or loss on
derecognition is also recagnised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments are bifurcated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the

contract,

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognised at the fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity companent is initially recognised at the
diference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability companent. Any directly atiributable transaction costs are allocated to the liahility and equity components
in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of the compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of the compound financial instrument
is not measured subsequently.

Interest on liability component is recognised in Statement of profit and loss. On conversion, the liability
component is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial llability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

extinguished and the new financial fiability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and seltle the liabilities simultaneously.

(j) Earnings per share

The Company presenis basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the Statement of profit and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
Statement of profit and loss attributable 1o equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equily shares, which comprise share aptions granted
to employees.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of
the special purpose financial statements by the Board of Directors,

{k) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal aperating cycle;
s itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
« ilis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
« it is cash or cash equivalent uniess it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-
current.

Liabilities

A liability Is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
e itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
« itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

» the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial fiabilities. All other liabilities are classified as
non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents. Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle
being a period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and liabilities as current and noh- current.

() Cash and cash equivalents ‘
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits
with an original malurity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

{m)Segment reporting

The Company's business activity primarily falls within a singte segment which is providing innovative solutions
lo help clients in the hospitality and travel industry to achieve their business goals. The geographical segments
considered are "within Dubal® and "outside Dubai" and are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company who monitors the operating
results of its business units not separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. The CODM is considered to be the Board of Directors who make strategic decisions
and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the financial performance of the operating segments.
The analysis of geographical segments is based on geographical location of the customers.

(n) Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates, i.e., the functional currency, to be United Arab Emirates dirham (AED). The special purpose financial
statements are presented in AED, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts
have been rounded to the nearest thousands up to two decimal places, unless otherwise stated. Consequent
to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and
percentages may not precisely reflect the absalute amounts.

(o) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adiusted for the effects transactions
of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from regular revenue generaling, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash and
cash equivalents in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cashicheques in hand and shart-term investments with
an original maturity of three months orless.
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{(p) Share issue expense
Share issue expenses are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account as permissible under Section 52
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent any balance is available for utitisation in the Securities Premium
Account. Share issue expenses in excess of the balance in the Securities Premium Account is expensed in
the Statement of profit and loss.

(g) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i} Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts
The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company’s separate financial statements
as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

{ii) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases ~ L.ease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend Ind AS 118, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liahility arising in a
sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116,

The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements
(r) Recent Accounting Developments — Standards Notified but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is
ho such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2025,
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All amounts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

3 Property, plant and equipment

Computers Total

Gross carrying value:

Balance as at 01 April 2023 - -
Additions - -
Disposals/ adjustments - -

Baijance as at 31 March 2024 - .

Additions 380 3.90
Disposals/ adjustments - -

Balance as at 31 March 2025 3.90 3.90

Accumulated depreciation and Impairment loss:

Balance as at 01 Aprii 2023
Depreciation expense - "
Disposals / adjustments -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -

Deapreciation expense -
Disposals / adjustments - -

Balance as at 31 March 2025 - -

Net carrying value:

Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3.80 3.90

(i) The Company does not have assets pledged as security.
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As at As al
31 March 2025 H March 2024
4 Other financial assets
Currant
{Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assels carried at amortised cost
Security deposils 22,56 -
Receivable from related parties 858.12 358.45
860.68 358.45
5  Incoma tax assels and [labllities
Income lax asseals
tncome tax receivable . -
Incaome tax llablllties
Income lax payabla 608.79 137.81
608,19 137.81
[ Other assets
Currenl
Prepaid expenses 87.33 -
Balances wilh government autharilies - 0.48
87.23 0.46
7  Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered goed 9,688.21 2,520.05
Unbilled revenue* - -
Credit impaired 334,14 -
40,022.35 2,520,085
Less: Loss aliowance (334.14) -
9,688.21 2,529.05
“Unbilied revenue pertains to oulstanding invaicas which are raised and approved in tha subsequent financial year,
(i} Trade receivables ageing schedule is as follaws:
As at 31 March 2025
partleutars - — Cutstanding for followlng perlods fram due date of paymant
Unbilled ess than & manths - 1 year 1-2 years 2 years Mare than 3 years Total
months
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considared goad - 8,818.00 870.21 - - - 9,688.21

{if) Undisputed Trada Receivables — which have - - - - . - -
significan! increase In credit risk
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired - - - 334.14 - - 33414
{iv) Dispuled Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - . .

{v) Dispuled Trade Receivables -- which have - - - - - - -
significant ingrease in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - . u

As at 31 March 2024
Oulstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Unbilfed Less than & 6 months - 1 year 4.2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
months
() Undisputed Trade receivablas — considered good - 2,529.05 - - - - 2,529.05
(i) Undispuled Trade Raceivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant Increase in credit risk
{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - ) -
{iv} Disputed Trade Recaivahles considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
slgnificant increase in credit risk
{vl} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
As at As al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
8  cashand cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In currenl accounls 6,448.68 2,733.61
6,448.68 2,733.61

[This space has boaen intentionally laft blank)
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9 Equity share cagpital

|ssued, subscribed and fully pald
100 ordinary shares of AED 1000 each fully paid up {31 March 2024: 100 ordinary shares of AED 100G each fully paid up)

Hotes:

(i} Terms and rights allached to equity shares

31 March 2028

As at As at
3 March 2024

100,00 100.00

400.00 100.00

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of AED 100 per shara, Each holder of equity shares is entifled to ane vola per share. In tha event of liquidation of lhe Company, holder of equity shares

wili be entllled lo recsive remaining assats af the Company afler distribution of all preferential amount. The distribulion wilt be in proportion to

{itt Reconciliation of the hurber of shares and amaunt autslanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

the number of equily shares held by the shareholders,

As al As at
Partlculars 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number Amaunt Number Amaunt
Equily shares outslanding al the beginning of the year 100 10¢0.00 106 100.00
Add : Issued during Lhe year - - .-
£quity shares oulstanding at the end of 1he year 100 100,00 ice 100,00
{iit} Shares heid by each shareholdar helding mote than & percent shares:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 I March 2024
Numbers % halding Numbers % holding
RateGaln Tachnologies Limited (LK) 16C 100.00% 100 100.00%
156 100.00% 100 100.00%
Asat As at

10 Other equity

Retained eamings

10,1 Retalned eamnings

Balance at the beginaing ol the year
Prafit for lhe year
Balance at the end of tha year

Ralzined earnings ara cresled from the profil / loss of the Company, &3 adjusted far dislributions o owners, lransfers to other reserves, elo,

{This space has been infentionafly lefl blank)

3% March 2023

31 March 2024

7.675.62 1,881.7¢
7,675.02 1.881.76
1,881.76 -
579326 1,881.76
767502 1,881.76
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2025

11 Other flnancial llabilltles

Currant

Employee related payahble 192.40 -

Payable o related parties 1.672.89 1,807 63

1,066.29 1,807.63

12 Qther [labilltles

Current

Statutory liabiliies 1.47 0,34

Defemed revenue 2,168B.15 1,688.92

2,168,62 1,680.28

13 Trade payables

I. letal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises " B

Ii. total outstanding dues of creditors ofher than micro enterprises and small 4,690.68 4,11

enterprises

153058 LK
Trade payables ageing is as follows:
As at 31 March 2025
rt
Partlculars Qutstanding for following periods from due data of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mara than 3 Total

(I} Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes u - - z Z

(i} Others 4,690.68 - “ - 4,690,568

{ili) Disputed dues- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - - N .

{iv) Disputed dues- athers - - - - -

As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following perlods from due date :::’ pa:mem
Lass than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than Total
Years

{i) Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises - - - - -

{ii) Others 4.11 “ - - 4,11

{iii) Disputed dues- Micro, Small and Medlum Enferprises - - - - -

(i) Dlsputed dues- olhers - - . - -

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
14  Revenue from operations
Sale of services 34,324 .62 8,658.25
34,324.62 B8,658.25

Note:
(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Type of services

DaasS 17,682.17 7.975.79
Distribution 15,424 .66 192.82
MarTech 72419 91.50
Others 583.62 398.14
Total revenue from contracts with customers 34,324.64 8,658.25

Geographical region

UAE 61.26 65,00
Qutside UAE 34,263.36 8,593.25
Total revenue from contracts with customers 34,324.62 8,658.25

Timing of recognition of revenue

Revenue recognised at point in time 29,998.66 7,910.38
Revenue recognised over time 4,325,896 747.87
Total revenue from contracts with customers 34,324.62 8,658.25

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
Trade receivables 9,688.21 2,529.05

Deferred revenue 2,168.15 4,689.92

Remaining performance obligations as at the reporting dale are expected to be substantially recognised over the next
reporting period by the Company.

{c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Contract liabitities related to sale of services
Advances from customers - -
Dafarred revenue 1,689.92 -

(d) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 34,324 .62 8,658.25
Adjustments:

Rebate - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 34,324 62 8,658.25
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Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2025

15 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 3,292.79 2,284,777
Staff welfare expenses 271.54 -
Employee stock option expense 32.24 -
3,596.57 2,284.77
16 Other expenses
Hosting and proxy charges 62.97 -
Rent 22.63 -
Repair and maintenance
- Others 0.78 -
Insurance 3.35 8.04
Communication charges 14.53 -
Travelling and conveyance 264.00 32.19
Legal and professional charges 78.03 62.40
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 157.31 -
Fees and subscription 4.85 -
Bank charges 39.72 15.74
External services 23,14554 4,209.,52
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 4.75 3.01
Allowance for expected credit loss 334.14 -
Software licenses 185.48 -
Office maintenance 1.67 -
Contractual manpower cost 6.61 -
Miscellaneous expenses 72.58 23.01
Total 24,398.92 4,353.91

(This space has been intentionally lefl blank)
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17

18

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Income taxes
Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax

In respect of the currant year

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year

Total income tax (credit)lexpense recognised in the current year

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Domestic tax rate
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate

Cthers

535.87 137.81
535,87 137.81
535 87 137,81
6,320.13 2,019.57
9.00% 9.00%
569.62 18176
(33.75) (43.95)
535,87 137.81

Earning/{Loss) per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculaled by dividing the prafit for the year altributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity sharas

outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the prefit for the year aftribitable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive petential equily shares

into equity shares.
The fallowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Profit attributable to equity halder of the Company 5,793.26 1,881.76
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing :

Basic EPS 100 100
Weighted average number of equity shares held through ESOP trust - -
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares- employee stock options - -
Diluted EPS 100 100
Basic EPS 57,932.60 18,817.60
Diluted EPS 57,932.60 18,817.60

(This space has been Intantionally leff blank)
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20

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in 8 manner consistent with the internal reporting pravided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"} of the Company. The CODM is considered to
be the Baard of Direclors who make slrategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the financial performance of the operating segmanis,

The Company's business aclivity fails within a single segment, which is providing innovalive solutlons to help clienls in the hospitality and travel induslry 1o achieve their husiness goals, in
terms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporling.

The gecgraphical segments considered for disclosure ars as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from external customers by location of the customers
(i} APMEA, 13,240.50 6,642.59
(i} Europe 3,652.93 958.48
{iily USA 17,561.22 1,067.18
Total 34,324.64 8,658.25
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current assets *
{i} United Arab Emirates 3.90 -
(i} Other countries . .
* Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and income lax assets (nety/deferred tax assat {net) and goodwill,
The following customer individually accounts for 10% or more of the revenue of the company:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Name of the customer
Revenue % of Revenue Revenue % of Revenus

Guslomer A 8,852.41 25.79% 5,662.32 55.40%
Cuslomer B 10,506.43 A0.61% - 0.00%

Information about revenue from customers localed outside India is included in nate 14,

Share based payment
The employees of the Company are eligible 1o participate in the Employee Stock Option Plans {ESOP) administered by RateGain Travel Technologles Limiled, India {Parent Comgany}.
Under this pian, the Parent Company grants stock oplions to employees of the Company, which are setiled in the equity shares of the Parent Company.

The Company has entered into an agreemenl with the Parent Company, under which it reimburses the Parent for the of the aptions granted to ils employees.

The fair value of the oplions granted is determined on the grant date and is recognized as an employee benefil expense over Ihe vesling period. The corresponding credit is recognized as a
liabitity to the Parent Company under Payables lo Relzled Parties (Refer nolte 11). '

For the year ended 3% March 2025, the Company has recognized an employee benefil expense of AED 32.24 thousand (31 March 2624: NIL) wilh 2 corresponding liability to the Parent
Conmpany.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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21 Related party disclosures
{l) Relationship with related parties:

{a) Ultimate Parent Company
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited

(b) Parent Company
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK

(c) Feflow subsidiaries
RateGain Technologies inc,, US
RateGain Technologies Spain S.L.
BCV Social LLC

RateGain Germany GmbH (formarly name as My hotel shop GMBH (with effect from.11 April 2025))
RateGain Adara INC (with effact from.14 December 2022)

RateGain Adara Japan {with effect from 25 Dec 2023)

(d) Key management personnel (KMP):

Mr, Bhanu Chopra {Chairman & Managing Director)

Mrs. Aditi Gupta (Independent Director)

(I} Transactions with related parties

Nature of transactions Expense incurred on | Expense incurred on | Customer reatisation | Customer realisation Management
hehalf of our behaif by on our behalf on behaif of Consultancy
. e - 36.68 - - 12,834.44
RateGain Trave! Technologies Limited BT 74.192.78) - - ”
RateGain Technologies Inc., US - 6'733:31 1'3:'::‘?2} - -
. - ~182.82 3,1886.13 1,803.17 18.72 -
Rate(ain Technologies Limited, UK (1.085.26) (344.52) (212.82) . -
BCV Social LLC - 12.19 - - -
i - 108.39 - - B
RateGain Germany GmbH - (85.29) - - -
" 858,12 n - - -
RateGain Adara INC 73132, 48) T1738.18) - - -

(111} Balance outstanding for related parties:

Nature of transactions

Trade Payahie
{(Including other

Trade Recelvables
(Including other

payahles) receivables)
RateGain Travel Technolegies Limited agg:gg) :
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 1'216:56 (32?41}
RateGain Technologies inc., US 1=707:62 (6:1 %
BCV Sagiat LLC 1219 -
RateGain Germany GmbH é?g:;;)
RateGain Adara INC T 85812

*Numbers in brackets represants financial year anding 31 March 2024, ]
The Company related party fransactions during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 and outstanding balances as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are at

armas length and in the ordinary course of business.
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i

i

i)

Fair value maasurements

Financlal instruments by category

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

FVTPEL Amortised cost FVTPL Amartised cost
Financial assets
Trada raceivables - 9,688,21 - 2,52845
Cash and cash aquivalents - 6,448.68 - 2,733.81
Other financial assets - 980.68 - 358,45
Total - 17,017,857 - 5,621,11
Financial ltabilitlas
Trade payables - 4,690.68 - 4.11
Oiher financial kablitias - 1,865,209 - 1,807.63
Total - 8,556,97 - 1,811.74

Falr valug hierarchy .
Financial assets and financlal flabilkias measured at fair value in the balance shest are dividad into thres levels of a falr value hlerarchy. The threa levels ara deflned based on the obsarvabllity of significant

inputs lo the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoled prices {unadjusted) in aclive markats for financial instruments.

Leval 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are nat traded in an active markat is determinad using valuation tachniques which maximise the use of wbservable market data rely as fittle as possible on
entity spaclific estimates.

Leval 3. IF ane or more of tha significant Inputs s not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Falr value of financlal assets and llzbililles measured at amorilsed cost:

The carying amounis of irade recaivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, cther bank batancas, investment in bonds, other current financials assets and liabilities are considered to be the sama
as thelr fair values, due to iheir short-term natura.

Far financial asseis and Fabiiilles that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal lo the falr vahies.

Flnancial risk managament
The Company's aclivities expose ii 1o markel risk, liquidity risk and crecit risk. The Company's board of directors has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk

managemant framework. This nate explalns the scurcas of risk which the entily Is expased to and how the entity manages the sisk and the related impact In the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arlsing Measurement Managemant
Cregit sk Cash and cash aquivalents, trade recaivablas, investmant in Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversificalicn of asset base,
honds, financiat assats measured at amartised cost cradit fimits and ccllateral,
Liquidity risk Borrawings and other iabiities Rolling cash flow forecasts Avatlabifity of commilled credit lines and
harrowing facilities
Marked risk - laraign curency risk Recognised financlal assets and financial llabilittes not Sensilivity analysls Farelgn ¢urrency forwards
danominated in AED Foreign cumency options

Credit risk

Cradit risk s the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an cbligatlan to the Company. The Company s exposed lo this risk for various financial instruments, for example by graniing loans and recalvables
to customars, placing deposits, elc, The Company's maximum expasure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of following types of financial assets.

- cash and cash aquivalents,

- irade recalvables,

- lvans and receivabfes carried at amortised cost, and

- deposits with banks

- invasiment in bonds

The maximum exposura lo credit risks is represanted by tha tolat carrying amount of these financial assels in tha balance sheet:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables 9,6688.21 2,529.08
Cash and cash equivalants 5,448.68 2,733.61
Cther financial assets (current and nop-current) 880,68 368,45

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposils (shown under other bank balances) and ather financial assets carrles either minimal or no risk as the Company generafly invests in daposits wilh
banks with high credit ratings assigned by domesile credit rating agencies. Other financlal assels measured at amortized cost includes securily deposils and athers. Credit risk related to thase other financiaf
assets is managed by manitoring the recavarabiiity of such amounis canilntiously, white at the same time intemal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined fimits,

The exposure t¢ the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily frem frade recaivables,

Trade recalvables are typically unsacured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers primarily focatad in India, United Kingdam, United States of America and Spain. The Company does monitar
the economic environment in which it operates, The Company manages its cradit risk through credil approvals, establishing credit limits and continuausly monitoring credit worthiness of cusiomers to which
the Compary grants credit terms i tha nermal course of buslness,

The Company uses expacled credit loss model o assass the impairment loss. Credit risk in securily deposits considered te ba low as lhey form part of other commercial arrangemants such as leasas,
theretara security depasit are impaired only when there is objective evidence of impairment. The Company uses a provision matrix 1o compute the sxpecled credit loss allowanca for Irade raceivables, The
provision malrix lakes Infe account available Internal credit risk factors such as the Company's histerical experience for customars. Based on the business anvirenment in which the Company operates,
management considers ECL for lrade recaivablas thal are computed basls the histercal frend and future macoeconomic factors ta determine an impairment akowance far loss on receivables {olher than
receivables from relaied pariies).

Refer note 7 for bifurcalion of lrade receivables into credit impaired and athars.

Changes in the foss aHowance In respect of trade receivables Far the year endad For the yaar anded
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balanca at the beginning of the yasr - -
Change in impairment alicwancas for recaivables 334,14 -
Balance at the end of the year 334.14 »

(This space has baen intentionally left Blank)
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Expected credit Joss for trade recelvables under simplified approach

As at 31st March 2025

Particulars Less than 6

Unbilled dues rronths & manths - 1 year 1-2 years 2-1 yedrs More than 3 years Total
Groas cafrying amount- Irade - 8,818,080 87021 - - - 9,688.21
recelvables (considared good)
Gross carrying amount- trade - - - 334.94 - - 334,14
receivables (credit impalred)
Expected loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 400.00%
Expected credit fosses (loss allowance B - 334,14 - - 33414
provision)- trade receivables
Carrying amount aof trade receivables - 8,818.00 870.24 - - - 9,684.21

(nat of impairment)

As at 31st March 2024

Partlculars
# Unbilled dues Ler::::‘:‘: 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mere Lhan 3 years Total
Girpss carrying amount- lrade - 2,528.05 - - - - 2,528.05

receivables (considered good}
Gross carrying amount- trade - - - - -
recalvables (credit impaired)
Expected loss rate 0.00% . 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.,00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected credit losses (loss aliowance - - - -

provisian)- trade receivables
Carrying amaunt of trada receivables u 2,529.05 - - - . 2,529,058
{nat of impairment)

b. Liquldity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations asscclated with financial llabllities that are required to be selblled by delivering cash or anather
financial asset. Tha Company's objective Is to, at all times maintain optimur levels of liquidity to meet ils cash and collateral obligations, Ultimate responzibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Baard of Directors. The Company's manages liquidity risk by mainltaining adequata reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by conlinuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by malching 1he maturity profilas of financiat assets and fablities Management rmonitors roliing forecasls of the Company's liquidity position and cash ang cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows,

Maturities of financial Hablllties
The tables below analyse lhe Company's financiat llabilities inta reigvant maturity Companyings based an thelr conlractual malurities for all non-detivative financial liabilitles. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contraciual undiscounted cash flows,

31 March 2025 t.ess than 1 year 1-5 yaar More than 5 years Total
Non-derivatives .

Trade payables 4,690.68 - - 4,690.68
Other financial fabilties 1,865.29 - - 1,865.28
Total 6,355.87 - - 6,555.97
31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-5 year More than 5 years Total
Naon-derivatives

Frade payables 411 - - 411
Cther financial liabilitfes 1,807.83 - - 1,807.63
Total 1,811,74 - - 1,811.74

c. Markel tisk - Forelgn currency risk

The Company is exposed le foreign exchange risk arising from fareign currency transactions, primarily with respect 1o the below currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assels and
llahllities denominated In & currency that is not the Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company te forelgn currency risk expressed In AED:

Partlculars Currency Amaurmt
31 March 2025 I March 2024
Financlal assets
Trade receivadle

EUR 1,821.40 798.80

GBP 59.30 -

usop 14,9687.09 2,143.97
Financlal liatliitles
Trade Payable EUR

UsD 5.241.74 1,807.83
Sensitivity
Below is the sensilivity of profit or loss and equily te changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from forelgn currency dencrinated financial instruments, assuming no change In other variablas:

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
USD sensitivity
INR/USD- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2022: 5.00%) 1,061.44 187.58
INR/USD- decreasa by 5.00% (31 March 2022: 5.00%) (1,061 .44} {187.58)
GBP sensltivity
INR/GBP- increase by 5.00% {31 March 2022: 5.00%) 2.97 -
INR/GBP- decrease by 5,00% {31 March 2022 5.00%) (297} -
EUR sensitivity
INR/EUR- increase by 5.00% (31 March 2022: 5.00%} 91.07 38,20
INR/EUR- decrease by 5.00% {31 March 2022 5.00%) {91.07) {39,980}

23 Capital management policies and procedures
The Company's ebjective far capial management is lo maximize shareholder's value, safeguard business continuity and support the growlh of the Company. The Company determinaes the capital
requirement based on annual operaling plan and other stralegic investment ptans, The Company aims lo manage its capilal sfigh ;.50 as lo safeguard iis ability lo conlinue as a going concern and lo
optim & 10 al {ts sharahalders. The Company's funding requirements are mel through equity Infusions.




Rategain Technologies LLC
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All ameunts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

24 Ratlos to disclosed as per reguirement of Schedule l to the Act

i Far the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a. Current ratio
Current assets (Numeraior) 17,104.90 5,621.57
Current liabilities (Denominator) 9,333.78 3,639.81
Current ratio 1.83 1.54
% Change as compared 1o the preceding year 18.65%

b. Return on equity ratio
Profit / (loss) for the pericdiyear (Numarator) 5,793.26 1,881.76
Shareholder's equity (Denomirator} 7.775.02 1,881.76
Returr on equity 74.51% 94.95%
% Change as compared lo the preceding year {21.53%)

¢. Trade receivables turnover ratio
Nel sales (Numerator) 34,324.62 8,658.25
Average trade receivable (Denominator) * 6,108,63 1,264.53
Trade receivahles turnover ratio 5.62 6.85
% Change as compared to the preceding year (17.93%)
* Average trade receivables = {{Opening balance + Closing batance} / 2}

d. Trade payables turnover ratio
Net sales (Numeratar) 34,324,682 8,658.25
Average Irade payable (Denominator) * 2,347.40 2.06
Trade payables turnover ratie 14.62 4,213.26
% Variance (99.65%)

Explanatlon for change in the ratia by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year:

The decrease in the trade payable lurnover ratio is atiributed to a higher increase in sales compared 1c the growth in rade payables, reflecting an
efficient procurement and payment strategy that supparts revenue growth without a cofresponding riss in payables.
* Average trade payahies = {{Opening balance + Closing balance}/ 2}

e. Net capital turnover ratio

Net sales (Numeralor) 34,324 .62 8,658.25
Working capital (Denominator) * 777112 1,981.76
Net capital turnover ratio 4.42 4,37
% Change as compared to the preceding year 1.10%

*Working capilal = Currenl assets - Curren liabilities

f. Met profit ratio .
Profit / (loss) for the periodiyear (Numerator) 5,783.26 1,881.76

Net sales {Denominater) 34,324.62 8,658.25
Net profit ratio a.17 n.22
% Change as compared %o the preceding year (22.34%)

g. Return on capital employed

Earning before interest and taxes (Numeralor) 6,328.13 2,019.57
Capital employad (Denominaler)* 7.775.02 1,981.78
Return on capital empioyed 81.40% 101.91%
% Change as compared 1o the preceding year (20.42%)

* Capital Employed = Telal equity + Total debt

Note:
The ratios which are not applicable lo company has not been presented above,

(This space has been intentlonally left blank}




Rategain Technologies LLC .
Notes forming part of the special purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts are in AED thousands unless otherwise stated

25 No subsequent eveni oceurred post balance sheet date which requires adjustment in the financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

26 The figures of the corresponding previous year have been regrouped wherever considered necessary to correspond to current year disclosures.
The impact of such reclassification/regrouping is not malerial to the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rategain Technologies 1.LC

Date: 26 May 2025
Place: Noida
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2025,

Business review

RateGain Technologies Limited (the 'Company') partners with hospitality companies to engage the connected traveller and
help revenue, distribution and marketing managers overcome the daily challenge of generating revenue in this dynamically
changing industry. The Company helps unlock new revenue by providing the only end to end platform that provides
accurate, real-time and meaningful insights, and connects companies to the largest supply and demand travel and hospitality
network in the world. The Company’s goal is to be the most dominant player in areas of revenue maximization, distribution
and guest experience technologies for travel and hospitality industry, with a longer-term vision of being the most valuable
Hospitality and Travel Tech Company in the world.

Key Performance Indicators ("KPI'")
The performance during the year, together with historical trend data is set out in the table below:

2025(£) 2024 (£) Movement
Turnover 26,198,727 24,525,024 T%
Operating Profit 2,075,748 1,145,325 18%
Profit before taxation 1,862,985 264,848 603%

As compared to last year turnover of the company has increased by GBP 1,673,703 and operating profit increased by GBP
930,423. Operating profit increased on account of revenue growth by 7% and consulting cost charged from inter company
has been reduced from 50% markup to a 45% mark-up resulting to a 5% reduction in cost. Additionally, profit before tax
has increased on account of the company has repaid significant portion of its intercompany loans leading to a reduction in
interest expense.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Company operates in Software as a Service (Saas) markets catering to travel and hospitality segments and faces a
number of risks and uncertainty.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is managed by maintaining a balance between the funding requirements to support operational and other
activities and the bank balances available. The company's liquidity risk management includes short-term cash projections
and considering the level of liquid assets in relation thereto, and monitoring balance sheet liquidity on a frequent basis.

Commercial Risk

The markets and segments the company operates within are intensely competitive, rapidly changing, and highly fragmented,
as current competitors expand their product offerings and new companies enter the market. Competitors vary in size and in
the scope and breadth of the products offered.

These expected results are subject to risks and uncertainties including without limitation the following: (a) demand for The
Company's software may decline, causing a decline in demand. (b) the company may not be successful in delivering
services that satisfy customer requirements, which could result in decreased customer demand, or claims by customers, (c)
other companies are capable of providing better products which may increase their market share.

Credit risk:

Customers comprise large corporates with low credit risk. There are not considered to be any material risks relating to
individual customers or business partners. Trade debtors are also managed in respect of credit and cash flow risk by policies
concerning the credit offered to customers and the regular monitoring of amounts outstanding for both time and credit
limits.

Interest rate risk:

The Company owes amount to group company on which interest is payable. However, there is no material risk regarding
interest rate.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

Human Resources
The Company is aware that its performance is only as good as the people it employs. Therefore, it attempts to have policies
in place to attract, retain and motivate its employees to help achieve is business objectives.

Forex Risk
The Company deals with all major currencies like GBP, EUR and USD Volatility in currency may impact the results of the
Company adversely.

Future developments

The Company will continue to focus on growth via acquisition of new businesses along addition of new services. It is active
in the Mergers and Acquisition (M&A) market and continuously seeking opportunities to acquire business in the
distribution sector. In addition, the Company will continue to focus on growth via organic strategies, by upselling and cross
selling products, to support the future M&A and investment in new products of the holding company i.e. RateGain Travel
Technologies Ltd (India).

Directors Statement of Compliance with duty to promote success of the Company

The Company's directors consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in the way which they consider, in
good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders. They have also
considered the Company's other stakeholders and matters set out in section 172(1)(z) to {f) of the Companies Act 2006 in
the decisions taken during the financial year ended 31 March 2024, In doing the duties, the directors must have regard
(amongst other matters) to:

o the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

o the interests of the Company employees

o the need to foster the Company's business relationships with customers, suppliers and others;

o the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment;

o the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
o the need to act fairly as between members of the Company

The Board fully understands its duty under section 172 (1} of the Companies Act, 2006 to ensure they promote the success
of the Company for the benefits of its members. The Board is aware of all stakeholder interests, and as such takes a long-
term view in making key decisions, and when such decisions are taken, the board acts in the interests of such shareholders
and ensures all stakeholders are treated fairly

APPROVED AND AUTHORIZED BY THE BOARD ON:

Date: 6 August 2025
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Report of the Directors
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Company's software solutions allow hospitality businesses to engage with travellers and help revenue, distribution and
marketing departments to drive revenue by providing accurate, real-time and meaningful insights.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends are distributed for the year ended 31 March 2025.

DIRECTORS
The directors shown below have held office during the period from 1 April 2024 to the date of this report:

Bhanu Chopra

Aditi Gupta

Rohan Mittal (Appointed: 16 July 2025)

Tanmay Das (Appointed: 30 August 2024, Resigned: 15 July 2025)
Ankit Aggarwal (Appointed: 28 January 2025, Resigned: 4 August 2025)

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no significant events affecting the company since the year end.

DIRECTOR INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section 234 of the companies Act 2006) were in force during the
course of the year ended 31 March 2025 for the benefit of the Director in relation to certain losses and liabilities which they
may incur {or have incurred) in connection with their duties, powers or office.

GOING CONCERN

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate
resource to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, thus director continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing of financial statements.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law, the directors must not approve

the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and -

of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of Companies Act 2006

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to
cnsure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Report of the Directors
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company's auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS
The auditors, PBG Associates Limited, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming Board Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

A

\

Bha hopra - Director

Date: 6 August 2025
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
RateGain Technologies Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RateGain Technologies Limited (the 'company’) for the year ended
31 March 2025 which comprise the Income Statement, Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2025 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The ather information comprises the information in the Strategic
Report and the Report of the Directors, but does not include the financial statements and cur Report of the Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
RateGain Technologies Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Report of the Directors.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

in our opinion;

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page four, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
cencern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Auditors that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with those charged with governance of the company.

Our approach was as follows:

- We obtained a general understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and
determined that there are no significant laws and regulations except for company's legislation and the financial reporting
framework (UK GAAP), We obtained a general understanding of how the company is complying with those frameworks by
making enquiries of management and those responsible for legal and compliance matters of the Company.

- The Company's principal activity was that in the travel and hospitality industry. As such the Senior Statutory Auditor
considered the experience and expertise of the engagement team to ensure that the team had the appropriate competence and
capabilities, which included the use of specialists where appropriate.

- Enquiries with the management concerning any actual or potential litigation or claims; inspection of relevant legal
correspondence if any; review of board minutes; testing the appropriateness of entries in the nominal ledger, including
journal entries; reviewing transactions around the end of the reporting period; and the performance of analytical procedures
to identify unexpected movements in account balances which may be indicative of fraud

A further description of cur responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Auditors.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
RateGain Technologies Limited

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matiers we are
required to state to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

G

Mr. Hitesh Gadhia (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PBG Associates Limited
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
65 Delamere Road

Hayes, Middlesex

UB4 ONN

Date: 6 August 2025
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Income Statement
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

Notes
TURNOVER 3
Cost of sales
GROSS PROFIT
Administrative expenses
OPERATING PROFIT 5
Interest payable and similar expenses 6
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Tax on profit 7

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

31.3.25
£

26,198,727

18,156,222

8,042,505

5,966,757

2,075,748

212,759

1,862,989

461,035

1,401,954

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31.3.24
£

24,525,024

17,718,713

6,806,311

5,660,986

1,145,325

880,477

264,848

67,316

197,532



RateGain Technologies Limited

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

Notes

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

31.3.25
£

1,401,954

1,401,954

The notes form part of these financial statements

Page 10

31.3.24
£

197,532

197,532



RateGain Technologies Limited (Registered number: 09343667)

Balance Sheet
31 March 2025

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital

Share premium

Retained earnings

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 6 August 2025 and were

signed on its behalf by:

kY

Bhahu’Chopra - Director

Notes

o0

11

12

13

14
14

31.3.25
£

20,215

39,925,500

39,945,715
5,341,963
2,042,979
7,384,942
7,681,994

(297,052)

39,648,663

141

33,655,096

5,993,426

39,648,663

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31.3.24
£ £
17,598
39,925,500
39,943,098
6,508,930
1,932,264
8,441,194
10,137,583
(1,696,389)
38,246,709
141
33,655,096
4,591,472
38,246,709 -



RateGain Technologies Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

Balance at 1 April 2023
Changes in equity

Issue of share capital

Total comprehensive income
Balance at 31 March 2024
Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2025

Called up
share Retained Share Total
capital earnings premium equity
£ £ £ £

135 4,393,940 18,632,610 23,026,685

6 - 15,022,486 15,022,492

- 197,532 - 197,532

141 4,591,472 33,655,096 38,246,709

- 1,401,954 - 1,401,954

141 5,993,426 33,655,096 39,648,663

The notes form part of these financial statements
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

1.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Rategain Technologies Limited ("the cempany") is a private company limited by shares domiciled and incorporated
in England and Wales. The company's registered address is 6th Floor 9 Appold Street London EC2A 2AP.

RateGain Technologies Limited partners with hospitality companies to engage the connected traveller and help
revenue, distribution and marketing managers overcome the daily challenge of generating revenue in this
dynamically changing industry.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" and the Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 102") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The
financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest pound,

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

Cash flow exemption

The company, being member of the group wherein the parent company prepares consolidated financial statements
which are publicly available, is exempt from the requirement to draw up a cash flow statement in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 102.

Related party exemption

The company has taken advantage of exemption, under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, not to disclose related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group.

Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has
adequate resource to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, thus director continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing of financials statements,

Group accounts

The Company's financial statements present information about it as an individual undertaking and not about its
group because the Company is 100% owned by RateGain Travel Technologies Limited a Public listed company in
India. The Company's and group's financial statement will be consolidated by RateGain Travel Technologies
limited, parent company, registered in India. The Company has taken the exemption from preparing group accounts
under Companies Act 2006.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements
There are no critical judgements {other than those involving estimates) that have significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of assets and liabilities are as follows.
s Bad debt provision !

The directors have provided for specific old debts not deemed recoverable. The amount consists of any amounts

older than 365 days, and any other debts less than 365 days old that are not expected to be recovered.

Turnover
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates,
value added tax and other sales taxes.

Turnover is representing the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for revenue management software
services provided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes. Turnover
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of services are to be provided. The fair value of consideration
takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash ?quivalent include cash in hand, deposit held at call with bank, other short term liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdraft are shown within borrowing in current liabilities.

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:

Software - 3 to 5 years straight line
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:

Computers and Peripheral 4 years straight line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account

Fixed asset investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss, except for those equity investments that are not
publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably, which are recognised at cost less
impairment until a reliable measure of fair value becomes available.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as a single
asset.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {(or cash-generating unit) {s reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12 'Other
Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price
including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the
future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are
not amortised.

Impairment of financial assets .
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If an asset is
impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has
transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference shares
that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a
market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the company's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Dividends
payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax,

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future
taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.,
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising on translation
are included in the profit and loss account for the period.

Page 17 continued...



RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised as a liability and a expense, unless those cost are required to
be recognised as a part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The costs of any unused holiday entitlements are recognised in the period in which the employee's service are
received,

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to
terminate the employment of an employee or the provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Share-based payment

The cost and correspanding increase in equity in respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
employees are measured by reference to the fair value of equity instruments issued at the date of grant. Amounts are
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on the estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Further detail is provided in note 18.

TURNOVER
31.3.25 31.3.23
£ £
Turnover analysed by class of business
Software services 26,198,72 24,525,024
31.3.25 31.3.24
Turnover analysed by geographical market £ £
United States of America 10,532,801 8,689,907
Europe 10,856,232 9,552,459
United Kingdom 825,084 754,167
Rest of the world 3.984.610 5,528.491

26,198,727 24,525,024

Page 18 continued...




RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

4.

. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

31.3.25

Number

Number of Sales and support staff 11
Their aggrepate remuneration comprised:

31.3.25

£

Wages, salaries and bonus 1,526,743

Intercompany wages, salaries and bonus recharge 946,058

Social security costs 131,036

Pension costs 35,893

Employee Stock Option Plan expenses 15,656

Staff Welfare Expense 45,831

£2.701.217

31.3.24
Number
12

31.3.24
£
1,779,937

158,638
29,063
2,855
34.571
2.005.064

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents the Company’s
contributions to the fund, amounting to £35,893 (2024: £29,063). As at year end, a balance of £2,357 was included

within liabilities (2024: £2,768).

There is no remuneration paid to directors during the current year. (2023 NIL)

OPERATING PROFIT
31.3.25
£
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging;
Auditors' remuneration 5,000
IT & Telecom charges 197,426
Provision for doubtful debts 319,765
Foreign exchange differences, net 194,243
INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES
’ 31.3.25
£
Interest on Loan 212,759

Page 19

31.3.24

5,000
173,845
519,727
440,400

31324
£
880,477
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

7. TAXATION

31.3.25 31.3.24
£ £
Total tax charged for the year
Current tax 460,068 67,316
Deferred tax 967 -

461,035 67,316

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge based
on the profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

31.3.25 31.3.4
£ £
Profit before taxation 1,862,989 264,848
Expected tax credit based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
25.00% (2024: 25.00%) 465,747 66,212
Permanent capital allowances in excess of depreciation : 779 576
Short provision (7,725) -
Expenses disallowed 2,234 528
461,035 67,316
8. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Computer
software
£
COST
At 1 April 2024
and 31 March 2025 56,073
AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2024
and 31 March 2025 56,073
NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 March 2025

At 31 March 2024

M
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Computer
equipment
£
COST
At 1 April 2024 44,944
Additions 9,654
At 31 March 2025 54,598
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2024 27,346
Charge for year 7,037
At 31 March 2025 34,383
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2025 ' 20,215
At 31 March 2024 17,598

Page 21 continued...



RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

10. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

COST £
At 1 April 2024 39,925,500
At 31 March 2024 39,923,500
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2025 39,925,500
At 31 March 2024 39,925,500
Details of the company's Subsidiaries are as follows
Class of
Registered Principall shares Capital and |Profit /(loss) for
IName of undertaking Office Activity| held Reserves £ the year £ % Held
Direct | Indirect

RateGain Distribution| 48,956,890 5,708,957
Technologies Inc United States | as a Service|Ordinary 100 -

Distribution| 491,729 204,833

as a Service
RateGain and
Technologies Spain Spain Marketing|Ordinary 100 -

Marketin
. and 1,092,439 (1,025,634)
BCV Socijal LL.C United States | Advertising]Ordinary - | 100
Marketing| 3,852,888 253,879

Rategain Germany and
Gmbh (formerly Germany | AdvertisingOrdinary 100 -
known as
MyHotelshop Gmbh)
RateGain Distribution 1,635,250 1,218,444
Technologies LLC UAE | as a Service|Ordinary 100 -

Distribution| 22,759,687 5,057,252
Rategain Adara Inc. United States | as a Service|Ordinary - | lco
RateGain Adara Japan Marketing 65,922 91,115 - | 100
Japan GK and|Ordinary

Advertising|
[Name of undertaking Registered place of business
RateGain Technologies Inc 5960 Berkshire Ln, 6th floor, Dallas, TX 75225

Barcelona, Spain3rd Floor, 1st Gate Avinguda Diagonal, 439 Barcelona

IRateGain Technologies Spain 08036 Spain
BCV Social LLC 223 W Erie St 2NW, Chicago, [llinois 60654
Rategain Germany Gmbh (formerly | [Flofiplatz 6, 04107 Leipzig, Germany
known as MyHotelshop Gmbh)
RateGain Technologies LLC Sharjah Media City, Sharjah, UAE
Rategain Adara Inc. 300 Creek View Road, Suite 209, Newark DE 19711, New Castle County
RateGain Adara Japan GK 7-3-8, Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

11 DEBTORS

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

VAT receivable

Prepayments

Amounts falling due after more than one year;

Deferred tax asset
Prepayments

Aggregate amounts

12, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to group undertakings#
Social security and other taxes

Other creditors

Accruals

Deferred Income

Corporation Tax Payable

Advances from customers

31.3.25 31.3.24
£ £
3,702,206 4,323,119
1,213,118 1,207,885

51,135 9,534
120,538 73,326
243,544 649,607

5,330,541 6,263,471
- 967

11,422 244,492
11,422 245,459
5,341,963 6,508,930
31325 31.3.24

£ £

1,227,660 880,458
4,620,558 7,173,712

63,395 54,616

91,998 78,185
277,205 463,239
938,997 1,382,933
462,181 66,828

- 37,612
7,681,994  10,137.583

#0n 20 December 2023 it was agreed by the Company and the Holding Company (“Shareholder”) that £
15,022,848 being the outstanding amount owed by the company to the shareholder under the loan agreements be
converted into equity share capital. Also refer note 14.

Amount due to group undertaking include unsecured loan from Rategain Technologies Inc aggregating to £
879,411 (2024: NIL) carrying interest rate of 7% p.a repayable on demand and unsecured loan from MyHotel
Shop Gmbh aggregating to £ £1,591,994 (2024: 1,512,955) (including interest outstanding) carrying interest rate

of 7% p.a repayable on demand.

Balance amounts due to group undertakings are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

13. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, issued and fully paid:

Number: Class: Nominal 31.3.25 31.3.24
value: £ £
141 Ordinary share capital £1 141 141

14, RESERVES

Retained Share
earnings premium Totals
£ £ £
At 1 April 2024 4,591,472 33,655,096 38,246,568
Profit for the year 1,401,954 - 1,401,954
At 31 March 2025 5,993,426 33,655,096 39,648,522

During the previous year ended 31 March 2024 the Company issued and allotted 6 ordinary shares of nominal value
£ 1 each at a consideration of § 18,326,520 (£ 15,022,436).

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amount for each category of financial instrument is as follows:

2025 2024
£ £
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost 7.009.438 7.472.802
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 6,217,421 8.595.600

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade debtors, amount owed by
group undertakings and other debtors,

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other creditors, amount owed to group
undertakings and accrual for goods and services.

16. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The company has taken advantage of an exemption available under FRS102 para 33.1A on the basis that disclosure
need not be given regarding related party transaction with fellow wholly-owned subsidiaries.

17. CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate and ultimate parent undertaking is RateGain Travel Technologies Limited, a company incorporated
in India. The Company is controlled by RateGain Travel Technologies Limited by virtue of its 100% ownership of
RateGain Technologies UK Limited.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

18.

19,

The parent undertaking of largest group for which consolidated accounts are prepared is RateGain Travel
Technelogies Limited, a company incorporated in India. Consolidated accounts are available from the registrar of
Companies, Plot 3,4,5, Prius Global, 4th Floor, Tower A, Sector 125, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201301. These
consolidated financial statements are also accessible on the Company’s website and through the NSE and BSE
websites.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

During the year the Company had share-based payment arrangements as follows:

Type of arrangement Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs 2022)
Date of grant Various dates
Number granted 29,432
Maximum term 4 years
Settlement type Equity shares of Parent Company
Vesting conditions Options granted typically vest 10% afier one year anniversary of the

grant date, then 20% in second year followed by 30% in next year and
40 % in last year,

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options during the year are as follows:

March 2025 March 2024
Number Number
Outstanding at beginning of year 10,667 -
Granted during the year 18,765 10,667
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised during the year - -
Expired during the year - -
Outstanding at end of year 29,432 10,667
Exercisable at end of year 3,200 1,067
Date on which Exercise Price
options were issued (£
June 9, 2022 2.61
July 4, 2024 7.28

The fair value of each share option granted was measured using the Black Scholes model.

The total expense recognised during the year in respect of share-based payments totalled £ 15,656 (March 2024 -
£2,855). Liabilities arising from share-based payments transactions totalled £ 20,147 (March 2024 - £ 2,855).

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged to make them comparable with the current year figures.
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RateGain Technologies Limited

Trading and Profit and Loss Account
for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

Sales

Cost of sales
Other direct costs
Hosting, Proxy and Data charge

GROSS PROFIT

Expenditure

Salary and Wages

Social security

Pensions

Intercompany salary recharge
Employee stock option expenses
Staff Welfare

Legal and Professional fees
Commission expense.
Membership and Subscription
Sales & marketing expenses
Rent

Office Maintenance

Postage & Courier fee
Travelling

Fringe Benefit Tax

IT & Telecom

Provision for doubtful debts
Sundry expenses

Fines and penalties

Client entertainment

Audit fees

Foreign exchange losses (net)

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Consultancy Fees

Finance costs
Interest on Loan

NET PROFIT

31.3.25

11,653,112

6,503,110

£

26,198,727

18,156,222

1,526,743
131,036
35,893
946,058
15,656
45,831
777,598
459,155
610,959
388,391
3,044
408

306
128,450

197,427
319,765
164,408
1,135
8,214
5,000
194,243

7,037

8,042,505

5,966,757

2,075,748

212,759

1,862,989

31.3.24

12,770,289

4,948,424

£

24,525,024

17,718,713

1,779,937
158,638
29,063

2,855
34,571
1,473,272

347,555
470,509

1,964
766
154,141
1,432
173,845
519,727
37,184

5,060
440,409
11,033
4,828

14,227

6,806,311

5,660,986

1,145,325

880,477

264,848
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gg P & G ASSOCIATES, PLLC
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36, South 18th Avenue, Suite 0,
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Tel: +1 (469) 588 5250
Email: info@pandgassoc.com

Regn. No: FRN.5000066

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

RateGain Technologies Inc,
5960 Berkshire Ln

6th floor,Dallas, TX 75225

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RateGain Technologies Inc (the “Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as of March 31, 2025, and related statement of income, stakeholder’s
equity and cash flow for the year then ended and related notes to financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the financial
position of the company as of March 31, 2025, and the results of the operations and its cash flow for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in “Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of financial statements” section of our report, we are required to be
independent of the company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit reports. We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financials statements that are from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the company ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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gg P & G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

)¢ Certified Public Accountants

Regd. Office:
36, South 18th Avenue, Suite 0,
Brighton CO 80601

Tel: +1 (469) 588 5250
Email: info@pandgassoc.com

Regn. No: FRN.5000066

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audit report that include
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect material misstatements
resulting from fraud which is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion and
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation or the override of internal control. Misstatements, include
omissions are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgement made by reasonable user based on financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financials statement whether due to
fraud and error, and design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risk Such procedure
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosure in financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant
accounting policies used and reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate overall presentation of financials statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are condition or events, considered in aggregate that
raise substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit, significant audit findings and certain related internal control that we
identified during the audit.

Subhadjit Guha, CPA

For P&G ASSOCIATES, PLLC

Public Accounting Firm

Firm Registration Number: 5000066

Date- 6t August, 2025 2
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RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents D 15,808,492 13,992,612
Accounts Receivables E 2,266,782 3,644,039
Other Current Assets F 12,235,147 8,275,885
Total Current Assets 30,310,421 25,912,536
Non-Current Assets

Property and Equipment, Net G 117,451 171,129
Right of use asset H 316,426 83,036
Intangible Assets, Net | 1,794,737 2,203,547
Investments J 32,273,416 32,273,416
Other Non Current Assets K 7,897 161,582
Deferred Tax Assets 995,109 953,353
Total Non- Current Assets 35,505,036 35,846,063
Total Assets 65,815,457 61,758,599
Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payables L 446,467 259,303
Lease Liability H 107,134 97,577
Other Current Liabilities M 1,657,707 5,422,846
Total Current Liabilities 2,211,308 5,779,726
Non-Current Liabilities

Lease Liability H 235,768 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 235,768 -
Total Liabilities 2,447,076 5,779,726
Stockholder's Equity

Common Stock 100 100
Additional Paid in capital 41,943,638 41,943,638
Retained Earnings 21,424,643 14,035,135
Total Stockholder's Equity 63,368,381 55,978,873
Total Liabilities & Stockholder's Equity 65,815,457 61,758,599

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For RateGaiy{l‘echnologies Inc, USA

Director: B. Chopra
Date: August 6, 2025




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statement of Income for the year ended March 31, 2025

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue

Sale of Services N 19,691,109 19,507,990
Other Income (0] 773,327 377,230
Total Revenue 20,464,436 19,885,220
Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits P 6,322,458 6,439,254
General and Administrative expenses Q 4,413,037 5,626,101
Depreciation and Amortization G, 1 464,979 717,137
Total Operating Expenses 11,200,474 12,782,492
Operating Income 9,263,962 7,102,728
Tax Expenses R 1,874,454 1,105,543
Net Income 7,389,508 5,997,185

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For RateGain Technologies Inc, USA

Director: B. Chopra
Date: August 6, 2025




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Statement of Stockholder's Equity

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

. Common Add{tlo'nal Retained Stockholder's

Particulars Stock Paid in Earnings Equity
Capital

Balance as on March 31, 2023 100 41,943,638 8,037,950 49,981,688
Net Income for the year - - 5,997,185 5,997,185
Balance as on March 31, 2024 100 41,943,638 14,035,135 55,978,873
Net Income for the year - - 7,389,508 7,389,508
Balance as on March 31, 2025 100 41,943,638 21,424,643 63,368,381

Stockholders equity consists of common stock, additional paid in capital and retained earnings. The Corporation is authorized
to issue one class of stock designated "Common Stock." The Corporation is authorized to issue and has issued 100 Shares. All
stocks of the Corporation has par value of $1 per share. All stocks are issued to Rategain Technologies Limited, a UK

company.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Rate(;/ip Technologies Inc, USA
\

Director: B. Chopra
Date: August 6, 2025




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(all amounts are in United State Dollars, unless otherwise stated)

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income 7,389,508 5,997,185
Depreciation and Amortization 464,979 717,137
Operaing lease cost 114,712 97,474
Interest Expense - -
Provision for Doubtful debts 917
Deferred tax benefit (41,751) (231,740)
Bad Debts Written off 766 227,631
Changes In Operating Assets And Liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) In Accounts Receivable 1,376,491 448,368
Decrease In Other Current Assets (3,959,262) 3,210,165
Decrease/(Increase) in Other non Current Assets 153,685 (83,596)
(Decrease)/Increase In Accounts Payable 187,164 (243,009)
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabilities (3,765,139) 1,663,374
Payment of Lease Liabilities (102,782) (106,560)
Net Cash Generated By Operating Activities 1,818,371 11,697,346
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property and Equipment (2,491) (8,543)
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (2,491) (8,543)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Net Cash Used By Financing Activities - -
Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents 1,815,880 11,688,803
Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year 13,992,612 2,303,809
Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year (Note D) 15,808,492 13,992,612
Cash flow statements have been prepared using Indirect method as specified in US GAAP.
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for income taxes (4,701,235) (65,569)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For RateGain Technologies Inc, USA

Y

\

Director: B. Chopra
Date: August 6, 2025



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note A NATURE OF OPERATIONS
The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of RateGain Technologies Limited, UK and its ultimate holding company is RateGain Travel
Technologies Limited("RateGain"), a SaaS company registered in India. RateGain is listed in the stock exchanges in India.

The Company is engaged in the business of providing data as a service, distribution and market technologies to travel and hospitality sector
on a SaaS platform.

Note B SUMMARY_ OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies are detailed below:

—

Basis of accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States

of America (US GAAP) to reflect the financial position and results of operations of the Company.

The financial statements are presented for the year ended March 31, 2025. All amounts are stated in United States Dollars, unless specified
otherwise.

2 Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The management's estimates for realization of deferred tax assets
and liabilities, determination of useful lives for property and equipment & intangible assets and provision for doubtful debts represent
certain of these particularly sensitive estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates'. Revisions in accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in
the current and future periods.

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of all cash accounts which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties and all highly liquid investments
with an initial maturity of three months or less. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short
maturities of those financial instruments. Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
specified sum for each insured bank for each account per depositor. Cash balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
and similar insurance coverage are subject to the usual banking risks associated with funds in excess of those limits.

4 Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers. Revenue is measured at

the transaction price (net of variable consideration) which is the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives,
performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the
contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

The Company derives its revenue from Distribution services. Distribution is an Al-led product to standardize content distribution. It includes
seamless connectivity between Hotels and their demand partners, including OTAs, GDS, and others, and communicates availability, rates,
inventory, and content to its customers.

5 Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowances for expected credit losses. The Company evaluates the credit risk of its customers based
on a combination of various financial and qualitative factors that may affect the ability of each customer to pay. The Company considered
current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to the industries of the Company’s customers and the countries where it operates.
In calculating expected credit loss, the Company also considered past payment trends, credit rating and other related credit information for
its significant customers to estimate the probability of default in the future. Accounts receivable balances are written-off against the
allowance for expected credit losses after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.
The Company generally does not require any security or collateral to support its receivables.



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

6 Property and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net, are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is generally computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, as follows:

Estimated

Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Furniture and Fixtures 4-7
Computer Equipment 2-3
Office Equipment 2-4
Production Equipment 1-5

Upon the retirement or sale of our property, plant and equipment, the cost and associated accumulated depreciation are removed from the
consolidated balance sheet, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected on the consolidated statement of operations. Maintenance and repair
expenditures are expensed as incurred while major improvements that increase the functionality, output or expected life of an asset are
capitalized and depreciated ratably over the identified useful life.

7 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated

Useful Life
Asset Name No. of years
Customer relationship 10-13 years
Software 1-3 years

8 Leases
The Company leases office space under operating leases. The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at the lease
inception date by evaluating whether the arrangement conveys the right to use an identified asset and whether the Company obtains
substantially all of the economic benefits from and has the ability to direct the use of the asset. Leases with an initial term of twelve months
or less are not recorded on the balance sheets.

ASC 842, Leases, (“Topic 842") includes various practical expedients that can be elected for new leases that are executed after the adoption
of the new requirements. The Company elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and nonlease components. The Company also
elected to apply the short-term lease recognition exemption, which eliminates the requirement to present on the balance sheets leases with a
term of 12 months or less. These two practical expedients were elected for all classes of underlying assets.

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a lease liability and a right-of-use (ROU) asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset over the lease term. The initial measurement of the lease liability is calculated on the basis of the present value of the
remaining lease payments and the ROU asset is measured on the basis of this liability, adjusted by prepaid and accrued rent, lease
incentives, and initial direct costs. The subsequent measurement of a lease is dependent on whether the lease is classified as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Operating lease cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, with the cost presented as a
component of general and administrative expenses line items, respectively, in the [consolidated] Income Statement. Finance lease cost is
composed of a separate interest component and amortization component and is presented as a component of the depreciation and
amortization and Interest expense line items, respectively, in the Income Statement.

For any new or modified lease, the Company, at the inception of the contract, determines whether a contract is or contains a lease. The
Company records right-of-use ("ROU") assets and lease obligations for its finance and operating leases, which are initially recognized based
on the discounted future lease payments over the term of the lease. If the rate implicit in the Company's leases is not easily determinable, the
Company's applicable incremental borrowing rate is used in calculating the present value of the sum of the lease payments. Lease term is
defined as the non-cancelable period of the lease plus any options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the
Company will exercise the option. The Company has elected not to recognize ROU asset and lease obligations for its short-term leases,
which are defined as leases with an initial term of 12 months or less.

As of the application date of Topic 842, the Company’s leases have remaining terms ranging from 1 to 3 years, with some of those leases
including options that grant the Company the ability to renew or extend the lease term. When determining the lease term, the Company does
not include renewal options unless the renewals are deemed to be reasonably certain of being exercised at the lease commencement date.

9 Income Taxes

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC Topic 740
"Income Taxes", income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases and operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The deferred tax asset
is reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the assets will not be realized. All deferred tax
assets and liabilities, along with any related valuation allowance, are classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet.




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

10
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13

Note C

Note D

Fair Value Measurements and Financial Instruments

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the financial statements are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the
inputs used to measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels which are directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs
to the valuation of these assets or liabilities are as follows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the
measurement date.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are directly observable for the asset or liability or indirectly observable
through corroboration with observable market data

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability only used when there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
determining fair value

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, Investment, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. The estimated fair value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
of these instruments. None of these instruments are held for trading purposes.

Commitments and Contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments litigations, fines, penalties, and other sources are recorded when it is

probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated Legal costs incurred in connection with loss
contingencies are expensed as incurred. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Recently issued accounting standards not yet adopted
We have reviewed the recent accounting pronouncements and concluded they are either not applicable to the business or no material effect is
expected on the financial statements as a result of future adoption.

Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation is recognized as an expense in the financial statements based on the fair value of the award. The Company
recognizes compensation expense based on estimated grant-date fair value using the following variables:

Valuation and Amortization Method — The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized ratably over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is
generally the vesting period of four years.

Expected Term — The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock- based awards are estimated to be
outstanding and was determined using the simplified method allowed under ASC 718-10, Compensation — Stock Compensation (ASC 718-
10).

Expected Volatility — The Parent Company is a newly listed company and it doesn’t have a listed peer as of the valuation date which are
focused exclusively on the segment in which the Parent Company operate, therefore for the purpose of calculating the volatility, Volatility of
the Nifty IT Index is considered.

Expected Dividend — Expected dividend yield was not considered in the option pricing formula since the Parent Company does not pay
dividends and has no current plans to do so in the future.

Risk-Free Interest Rate — The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is based on the Central Government bond
rate in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding with the expected term of the options.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of bank and accounts
receivable. By their nature, all accounts receivable involve risk including the credit risk of non-performance by counter parties. In
management's opinion, as of March 31, 2025 there was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the counter parties to
these cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents, include the following:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
Cash at Bank 15,808,492 13,992,612
Total 15,808,492 13,992,612

The company has no restricted cash balance as at March 31, 2025



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note E ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, NET

Accounts receivable, net include the following:

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
Accounts receivable 2,344,833 3,739,920
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (78,051) (95,881)
Total 2,266,782 3,644,039
Note F OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
Related Party Receivables* (Refer Note S) 11,893,301 7,927,401
Prepaid Expenses and Advances 188,498 288,250
Accrued Interest 50,631 60,234
Employee Receivables 86,500 -
Other 16,217 -
Total 12,235,147 8,275,885

* Receivable from Rategain Technologies Limited (UK) is unsecured, carries an interest rate of 7%p.a and repayable on demand.

All other related party receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Note G PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment, net, comprises of

Particulars Furniture Computer Office Production Fine Af'ts (non-

. . . . depreciable) Total

and Fixtures | Equipment Equipment Equipment

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 54,128 78,912 91,550 2,405,434 55,600 2,685,624
Additions - 2,491 - - - 2,491
Balance as at 31 March 2025 54,128 81,403 91,550 2,405,434 55,600 2,688,115
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 22,720 67,544 75,606 2,348,625 - 2,514,495
Depreciation Expense 6,753 8,745 2,812 37,859 - 56,169
Balance as at 31 March 2025 29,473 76,289 78,418 2,386,484 - 2,570,664
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024

31,408 11,368 15,944 56,809 55,600 171,129
Balance as at 31 March 2025 24,655 5,114 13,132 18,950 55,600 117,451

Note H LEASES

The following table presents the components of the Company’s lease cost and the classification of such costs in the Company’s Income
Statements for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Operating lease cost

expenses

Component of Lease Cost Income Statements Line Item As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
General and Administrative 114,712 97,474

The following table disclosures the supplemental cash flow information related to le:

as follows:
As at As at
March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
$ $
Operating cash flows from operating leases (102,782) (106,560)

ases for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, are




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note I

Note J

The following table includes a summary of the ROU assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024,

are as follows:

As at As at
March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
$ $
Right of use assets - operating leases 316,426 83,036

The following table includes the weighted-average lease terms and discount rates for operating leases as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, are as

follows:

Weighted-average remaining lease term:

Operating leases

Weighted-average discount rate:

Operating leases

The following table includes the future maturities of lease payments for operating leases leases for periods subsequent to March 31, 2025:

As at
March 31,2025

3 years

4.50%

As at
March 31,2024

1 year

4.50%

Year Ended March 31, Operating Lease
2026 107,134
2027 114,193
2028 121,575
2029 and thereafter -
Total lease payments 342,902
Less: current lease liabilities (107,134)
Total long-term lease liabilities S 235,768
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Particulars Softwares Customer
. . Total
relationship

Gross carrying value:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 4,540,656 4,874,108 9,414,764
Adjustments
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4,540,656 4,874,108 9,414,764
Accumulated ammortization:
Balance as at 1 April 2024 4,540,656 2,670,561 7,211,217
Ammortization Expense 408,810 408,810
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4,540,656 3,079,371 7,620,027
Net carrying value:
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 2,203,547 2,203,548
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 1,794,737 1,794,737
INVESTMENT

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024

$ $

Investment in BCV Social LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary 17,355,069 17,355,069
company
Investment in Rategain Adara. Inc a wholly owned subsidiary 14,918,347 14,918,347
company
Total 32,273,416 32,273,416




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note K OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $

Property Deposits 7,897 25,524
Prepaid Expenses - 136,058
Total 7,897 161,582

Note L ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $

Accounts Payables 446,467 259,303
Total 446,467 259,303

Note M OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $

Related Party Payables* (Refer Note T) 1,088,847 742,900
Deferred Revenue 2,500 2,640,600
Accrued Expenses 558,379 673,626
Sales Tax Payable 834 957
Corporate tax payable - 1,364,763
Others 7,147 -
Total 1,657,707 5,422,846

* Related party payables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Note N SALE OF SERVICES

The following tables summarize revenues by region:

For the year| For the year ended

. ended March 31,2024
Region

March 31,2025 $
$
Sale of services provided in USA 11,967,526 14,851,220
Sale of services provided in Europe 4,479,401 4,542,881
Sale of services provided in MEA 2,209,723 -
Sale of services provided in Other regions 1,034,457 113,889
Total 19,691,107 19,507,990

Revenue disaggregated by timing of recognition:

For the year| For the year ended
ended March 31,2024

Particulars March 31,2025 $
$

Sale of Services over a period of time 19,691,107 19,507,990

Total revenue by timing of recognition 19,691,107 19,507,990

Note O OTHER INCOME

For the year| For the year ended
ended March 31,2024

Particulars March 31,2025 $
$

Inter company interest income 133,804 -

Interest income on bank deposit 639,523 377,230

Total 773,327 377,230




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note P SALARY & BENEFITS

For the year| For the year ended

Particulars ended March 31,2024
March 31,2025 $

$

Salaries, bonus and other benefits 5,805,688 6,018,424
Contribution to provident and other funds 121,629 103,917
Staff welfare expenses 366,472 293,743
Employee stock option expense 28,669 23,170
Total 6,322,458 6,439,254

Note Q GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year| For the year ended
ended March 31,2024

Particulars March 31,2025 $
$
Demand Partner fees 716,760 822,773
Operating lease cost 114,712 97,474
Communication charges 356,045 753,950
Fees and subscription 255,313 201,313
Software licenses 231,031 376,572
Rent (Short term lease) 131,242 399,523
Contractual manpower cost 86,210 422,837
Bad Debts net of provision 766 227,631
Insurance 89,493 92,149
Legal and professional fees 554,002 352,908
Advertising and sales promotion 155,448 199,200
Training and recruitment expenses 4,777 24,816
Travelling And Conveyance 118,495 120,126
Rates and taxes 6,858 24,533
Intercompany recharge expenses 1,504,389 1,383,919
Foreign Exchange Loss (Net) 1,755 60,688
Bank charges 38,206 29,678
Miscellaneous expenses 47,535 36,011
Total 4,413,037 5,626,101




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note R TAX EXPENSES

Provision for income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, consisted of the following:

For the year
For the year ended ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
Current tax provision / (benefit):
Domestic - Federal 1,624,768 1,075,728
Domestic - State and local 291,437 261,555
Total current tax provision 1,916,205 1,337,283
Deferred tax provision / (benefit):
Domestic - Federal (38,755) (225,706)
Domestic - State and local (2,996) (6,034)
Total deferred tax provision (41,751) (231,740)
Provision for income taxes 1,874,454 1,105,543
Significant components of the Company’s deferred taxes as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, are as follows:
For the year
For the year ended ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
Depreciation and amortization expense 616,025 866,858
Operating lease expense 10,457 7,741
Capital software 344,504 57,406
Stock-based compensation 6,486 -
Allowance for CECL 17,313 21,348
Net unrealized foreign exchange loss 324 -
Total deferred tax asset 995,109 953,353
Closing tax provision
For the year
For the year ended ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
$ $
Current tax (receivable)/payable - 1,364,763

The decrease between the provision for income taxes and the income tax determined by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 21

% was due primarily to some expenses being disallowed for tax purposes.



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note S RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Relationships

Related Party

Nature of relation

RateGain Travel Technologies Limited (India)

Ultimate Parent and Ultimate

RateGain Technologies Limited (UK)

Parent Company

BCV Social LLC Subsidiary
RateGain Adara Inc Subsidiary
RateGain Technologies Spain S.L. Fellow Subsidiary|
Rategain Germany Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary|
Rategain Technologies LLC (Dubai) Fellow Subsidiary|
Transaction with Related Party
For theez;e:; For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Expense incurred by us behalf of $ §
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 678,794 210,569
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 165,832 371,393
BCV Social LLC 533,028 64,351
Rategain Germany Gmbh - 127,242
Rategain Adara Inc 1,400,997 -
Rategain Technologies LLC 2,067,332 -

Amount as on| Amount as on 31st

31st March 2025 March 2024
Expense incurred on our behalf by $ $
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 1,763,950 1,522,197
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 1,876,526 2,130,547
BCV Social 530,777 604,252
Rategain Germany Gmbh 67,857 319,509
Rategain Adara Inc 78,548 -

Amount as on| Amount as on 31st

31st March 2025 March 2024
Customer realization on behalf of $ $
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 877,130 1,349,670
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited 147,178 119,849
RateGain Technologies LLC 12,262 1,674

Amount as on| Amount as on 31st

31st March 2025 March 2024
Customer realization on our behalf of $ $
RateGain Technologies Limited, UK 8,800 304,155

Loan Taken

Amount as on| Amount as on 31st
31st March 2025 March 2024

Rategain Technologies UK Limited

- 3,400,000

Loan Repayment

Amount as on| Amount as on 31st
31st March 2025 March 2024

Rategain Technologies UK Limited

(1,058,553) -

Interest Income

Amount as on| Amount as on 31st
31st March 2025 March 2024

Rategain Technologies UK Limited

133,804




RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note U

Balances with Related Party

Transaction As at Asat
Name of Entity Tyvpe : March 31,2025 March 31,2024
yp! $ $
Payables:
X Other Current (457,488) 390,455
Rategain Germany Gmbh Liabilities
th t 203,963 -
RateGain Technologies Limited OA ° ‘(?urren (203,963)
Liabilities
Other C t 427,394 -
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited,India . e‘r‘ ‘urren (427,394)
Liabilities
Receivables:
. Other Current 7,546,392 7,544,141
BCV Social LLC Assets
RateGain Adara Inc 2the: Current 1,024,784 349,720
ssets
RateGain Travel Technologies Limited,India 2the: Current 303,079 33,540
ssets
Ratgain Technologies LLC 2;2::8Cunent 464,975 )
X . L. Other Current 1,133,804 352,445
Rategain Technologies Limited, UK Assets
X Other Current 1,420,267 -
RateGain Adara Inc A
ssets

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs) 2022

The Scheme has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Ultimate Parent Company (Rategain Travel Technologies Ltd incorporated
and listed in India), on 11 February 2022, read with the Special Resolution passed by its Members of the Ultimate Parent Company on 19
March 2022 and shall be deemed to come into force with effect from 19 March 2022 being the date of approval by its Members. The
maximum number of SAR Units of the Parent Compnay that can be granted to any eligible Employee during any one year shall not be equal
to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital of the Parent Company at the time of grant. The Committee may decide to grant such number of
SAR Units equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital to any eligible Employee as the case may be, subject to the applicable laws.
Vesting period shall commence from the date of grant subject to a minimum of 1 (One) year from the grant date and a maximum period 4
(Four) years or such other period from the grant date, at the discretion of and in the manner prescribed by the Committee, provided further
that, in the event of death or permanent incapacity of a Grantee, the minimum vesting period of one year shall not be applicable.

The Actual vesting would be subject to the continued employment of the Grantee.

The following table summarizes the option activity under the Plan for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Particulars No.of options
Outstanding as on 1st April 2024 148,139
Granted during the year 45,738
Options exercised -
Vested during the year -
Lapsed during the year (82,877)
Outstanding as on 31 March 2025 111,000
Date on which options were Exercise
issued Price

$

June 9, 2022 3.37
July 4, 2024 9.41
February 13, 2025 7.44

The Company recorded the stock based Compensation Expenses of § 28,699 (2024: $ 23,170) related to outstanding Stock Options for the
year ended 31 March 2025 included in Salary & Benefits. Options Granted typically vest 10% after one year anniversary of the grant date,
then 20% in second year followed by 30% in next year and 40 % in last year.

The fair values are measured based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model on grant date.



RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note V RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Company's future results of operations involve several risks and uncertainties. Factors that could affect the Company's future operating
results and cause actual results to vary materially from expectations include, competitive factors, including but not limited to pricing
pressures; deterioration in general economic conditions; the Company's ability to effectively manage operating costs and increase operating
efficiencies; declines in revenues, technological and market changes; the ability to attract and retain qualified employees and the Company's
ability to execute on its business plan.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for the accounts receivables is minimum. The average credit period to settle accounts receivables is
about 30 days to 60 days.

Note W SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated till the date on which is the date the financial statements were issued. No material subsequent event
has been noted.

Note X RECLASSIFICATION
Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged to make them comparable with the current year figures.

For RateGain Technologies Inc, USA
)

/

Director: B. Chopra
Date: August 6, 2025



RateGain Adara Japan GK
RateGain Adara JapanS B £4t

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT RIEHAE
FROM APRIL 1, 2024 B ffcF4A1H (BifI : )
| TO MARCH 31, 2025 ZE SM7%¥3A31H (Unit: in yen)
’
Service fee income bl o= 0
Gross profit 55 L #F 48 0
Selling, general and administrative expenses REBERUV—ERE 17,670,503
Operating profit = 2k (17,670,503)
| Non-operating income = DS
: -
| Total non-operating income BEENNIEEET 0
Non-operating expenses EENER
Total non-operating expenses BEENEBERER 0
Ordinary profit BEAND (17,670,503)
Income before income taxes F25 | BT 24 HA S F) 45 (17,670,503)
Income taxes - current HEAR - ERBRUEER

\

L A AE (17,670,503)

\\




RateGain Adara Japan GK

RateGain Adara JapanSE &

BALANCE SHEET
AS OF MARCH 31, 2025

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash on hand and in banks
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Tangible fixed assets

Investments and other assets:
Total non-current assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable - Other
Accounts payable - Taxes
Accounts payable - Intercompany
Statutory dues & Payroll liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net Assets:

Shareholders' Equity:
Paid-in capital
Earned surplus
Other earned surplus
Earned surplus brought/carried forward
Total surplus
Total shareholders' equity

/' Total net assets

TRENEE -
HEHEE
ATthE A
FEBEESF

BEEEEE
A ERARE

BREZOMOERE :
EEEES
BEOMAE

RUSIEED

afEoi
Pk ==

ESiN

KRibFid

BEaitkihE

BEYE
mrBafas
afEoMas

HEEDH

BHEER

BAE
FEFIRE

ZOFIERERE
BRERRE

FERREEF
BEEXREGE

MEEOMEF

BERVHEEDOHER

(B - [)
(Unit: In yen)

1,483,962
153,000
1,636,962

L

1,636,962

|

315,700
57,050
13,921,352
127,463
14,421,565

14,421,565

5,000,000

(17,784,603)
(17,784,603)
(12,784,603)

\

\

\

(12,784,603)

\

1,636,962

\\



NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION ABREVIADO BA1
NIF: B66662511 UNIDAD (1)
DENOMINACION SOCIAL: ﬁ;‘,\}'g; y: Euros: 09001
RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN ) Z\\ Miles: 09002
3l Barcelon /‘ f);‘ Millones: 09003

I9§ ag,nﬁniétc:a}/lores
ACTIVO \#%%)E‘SODRE!A EJERCICIO 31/03/2025(2) | EJERCICIO 31/03/2024(3)

A) ACTIVONO CORRIENTE.........coiniiiiiniienaenns 11000 30.890,28 32.213,79
I. Inmovilizado intangible . .......... ... .. i 11100
II. Inmovilizadomaterial. .............c. i 11200 25.904,13 21.587,15
Ill. Inversiones inmobiliarias . ......... ... .. i 11300
IV. Inversiones en empresas del grupo y asociadas a largo plazo ... | 11400
V. Inversiones financierasalargoplazo .......................- 11500 4.986,15 9.145,12
VI. Activos por impuesto diferido . ... 11600 1.481,52
VIl. Deudores comerciales nocorrientes. .. ................oonnn 11700
B) ACTIVOCORRIENTE ........coonmiiiniinemn e 12000 3.097.501,16 784.559,07
. Activos no corrientes mantenidos paralaventa ............... 12100
I EXiStENCIAS . ... .cvvvereeinaneennaraannaensssasneensns 12200
. Deudores comerciales y otras cuentas acobrar ............... 12300 848.407,92 528.689,89
1. Clientes por ventas y prestaciones de Servicios . ................. 12380 815.048,96 491.963,97
a) Clientes por ventasy prestaciones de servicios a largo plazo ........ 12381
b) Clientes por ventas y prestaciones de servicios a corto plazo. . . . . . .. 12382 515.048.96 491.963,97
2. Accionistas (socios) por desembolsos exigidos. . .........veen s 12370
3. OtroS AEUOTES . .. vvvvvevvvrnnn s 12390 33.358,96 36.725,92
IV. Inversiones en empresas del grupo y asociadas a corto plazo ... | 12400 2.126.136,91 86.308,46
V. Inversiones financierasacorto plazo ..............cocoeenens 12500
VI. Periodificaciones acorto plazo . ............ ..o 12600 44.917.91 33,084,439
VII. Efectivo y otros activos liquidos equivalentes. . ............... 12700 70.008.42 185.640.89
TOTALACTIVO (A+B) . .ooiiiiiiiiie e 10000 3.128.391,44 84675646

M

(2)
(3)

Marque las casillas comespondientes, segun exprese las cifras en unidades, miles o millones de euros. Todos los documentos que integran la

dad.
Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
Ejercicio anterior.

s cuentas anuales deben elaborarse en la misma uni-




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION ABREVIADO

BA2.1

NIF: B66662511

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN
SL

Espacio destinado para as fir ais;d los administradores
PATRIMONIO NETO Y PASIVO - LE;?I\?ODREIA EJERCICIO 31/03/2025(1) | EJERCICIO 31/03/2024 (2)
A)  PATRIMONIO NETO . ... ...eneeeuenenannnnnnaeeeene 20000 742.730,85 497.89549
BA) FONAOBPIOPIOR « s s wen v mm s mareh e mons 455083 s £ i 3 500 21000 742.730,85 497.895,49
o GMRIGAT « o oss 556 o s 2 i = oo e o e s 003 3800 6430 43 e 21100 3.000,00 3.000,00
1. Capital @8CHUIAAD . .. . v evsesseneeeneraenennnsnenes 21110 3.000,00 3.000,00
2. (Capital N0 €Xigid0). . . .. vvve et 21120
. Primadeemision .. .........oouiiiinmnnenrianinenreeens 21200
U, RROBEIVEE:. o sove e wee s oo s i § 3885 6508 § s 8 80 4 s S 2 21300 -1.932,46 -1.982.46
1. Reservade capitalizaCion. . ...t 21350
D OHASTESEIVAS - « e v e ee e e eeee e e aae e aa e 21360 -1.932,46 -1.932,46
IV. (Acciones y participaciones en patrimonio propias) . .......... 21400
V. Resultados de ejercicios anteriores. ........................ 21500 334.532,90 232.567,58
VI. Otras aportaciones desocios ...............ooiiiannnnnnnns 21600 162.295,05 155.574,60
VIl. Resultado delejercicio .............ooiiiiiiiniiinannns 21700 244.835,36 108.685,77
VIIIl. (Dividendo @acuenta) ............oovureniniia it 21800
IX. Otros instrumentos de patrimonioneto. ..................... 21900
A-2) Ajustes por cambios devalor..............oooiviniienn 22000
A-3) Subvenciones, donaciones y legados recibidos . . ............ 23000
B) PASIVONO CORRIENTE .. ........ootvnieinenrnmnnennes 31000
1. Provisiones alargo plazo . ... ... 31100
II. Deudasalargoplazo ...........cooiveimnmnrnnannnnennnnns 31200
1. Deudas con entidades de crédito. .. ... 31220
2. Acreedores por arrendamiento financiero . ....... ... 31230
3. Otrasdeudas alargoplazo ..........c.coveiniininiiiennnnns .. 31290
. Deudas con empresas del grupo y asociadas a largo plazo . .... 31300
IV. Pasivos por impuesto diferido ............ ... 31400
V. Periodificacionesalargoplazo.................coviennnnn 31500
VI. Acreedores comerciales nocorrientes . ........ ... ..l 31600
VIl. Deuda con caracteristicas especiales a largo PIAZO...c  woviv v oo 31700

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

BALANCE DE SITUACION ABREVIADO

BA2.2

NIF: B66662511

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:

RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN
SL

nas de los admifiistradores
- & /i

PATRIMONIO NETO Y PASIVO

¢ _4“NOTAS DE

S ———"|LA MEMORIA

EJERCICIO 31/03/2025(1)

EJERCICIO 31/03/2024 (2

Vil
TOTAL PATRIMONIO NETO Y PASIVO (A+ B + C)

C) PASIVO CORRIENTE

I Pasivos vinculados con activos no corrientes mantenidos para
lavVenta. ... ..ot e

Il. Provisionesacortoplazo ................ ... .. i
. Deudasacortoplazo..............c.oooviniiniiiinnnnnnnnnn

1. Deudas conentidadesdecrédito. ... ........ ..t

2. Acreedores por arrendamiento financiero

3. Oftras deudas a corto plazo

IV. Deudas con empresas del grupo y asociadas a corto plazo . .. ..

V. Acreedores comerciales y otras cuentasapagar..............

1. Proveedores.......coveeeeeaanserisatsranaserscesassossns

a) Proveedores alargoplazo . ...............oiiiiiiiiiiinan

b) Proveedores acortoplazo ............ ..ot

2. OtroS aCreedOrES . oo v i e ie et e

VI. Periodificacionesacortoplazo.............. ... ..o

Deuda con caracteristicas especiales a corto plazo

32000

2.385.660,59

318.857,97

32100

32200

32300

32320

32330

32390

32400

1.881.739,33

32500

503.921,26

318.857,97

32580

32581

32582

32590

503.921,26

318.857,97

32600

32700

30000

3.128.391,44

816.753,46

(1) Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
(2) Ejercicio anterior.




NO APTO PARA SU PRESENTACION COMO DEPOSITO EN PAPEL EN EL REGISTRO MERCANTIL

CUENTA DE PERDIDAS Y GANANCIAS ABREVIADA

PA

NIF: B66662511

DENOMINACION SOCIAL:
RATEGAIN TECHNOLOGIES SPAIN

\1

VAR
SL 2 \Bmu,\m ) 0]
Espacio destinado (e\(dﬁ‘ﬁrmas de'los administradores
N % _77’| NOTASDE
(DEBE) / HABER ——" LA MEMORIA | EJERCICIO 31/03/2025(1) | EJERCICIO 31/03/2024 (2

1. Importe neto de la cifrade negocios . ...................... .. | 40100 2.990.540,49 2.892.871,68
2. Variacién de existencias de productos terminados y en curso de

fabriCACION . .. .. oottt e 40200
3. Trabajos realizados por la empresa parasu activo ............. 40300
4. Aprovisionamientos. ... ............eiiiiiaiei i 40400
5. Otros ingresos de explotacion ................. ..ot 40500
6. Gastosdepersonal ............... IR 40600 -2.205.228,37 -2.319.568,85
7. Otros gastos de explotacion. . ...............cooeiiuinnnnns 40700 -450.459,00 -397.123,29
8. Amortizaciéon delinmovilizado ... ........... .. ...l 40800 -8.726,87 -6.268,30
9. Imputacién de subvenciones de inmovilizado no financiero y

Lo 1 1= AP U 40900
10. EXCES0S d@ PrOVISIONES .. .. ... ovnneneeiaeaaiaannaeaaeens 41000
11. Deterioro y resultado por enajenaciones del inmovilizado. . ... .. 41100
12. Diferencia negativa de combinaciones de negocio ............. 41200
13. Otros resultados . ........coeveuneniunnenaeennnnnneneenns 41300 163,83
A) RESULTADO DE EXPLOTACION

1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8+9+10+ M +12+13)............. 49100 326.290,08 169.911,24
14. Ingresos fiNANCIEroS .. .. .......c.ooiuinninnnii e, 41400
a) Imputacion de subvenciones, donaciones y legados de caréacter

FINANCIEIO « « « v e e e e e e ee e e e et e e 41430
b) Otrosingresos finanCeros . . . ......ovuveeuauenennenenaene. 41490
15. Gastos fINANCIEIOS. . .. .. ..vve e eeiaiiin i eeenns 41500
16. Variacién de valor razonable en instrumentos financieros. . ... .. 41600
17. Diferencias de cambia ... ........oueeiiiiiiieaiaies 41700 -888,10 -24.996,87
18. Deterioro y resultado por enajenaciones de instrumentos

FINANCIEIOS . . - o o e et e eeee e eae e e ea e eanaaie s 41800
19. Otros ingresos y gastos de caracter financiero .. .............. 42100
a) Incorporacion al activo de gastos financieros . ..........c..ooueenn 42110
b) Ingresos financieros derivados de convenios de acreedores .. ...... 42120
c) Restodeingresos ygastos .. ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiienn 42130
B) RESULTADO FINANCIERO (14 +15+ 16+ 17 +18+19) ......... 49200 -888,10 -24.996,87
C) RESULTADO ANTES DE IMPUESTOS (A+B) .................. 49300 325.401,98 144.914,37
20. Impuestos sobre beneficios. ... ...........iiiiiiiis 41900 -80.566,62 -36.228,60

49500 244.835,36 108.685,77

D)

RESULTADO DELEJERCICIO(C #20)........ccniinnennnnnnn.

(1)
)

Ejercicio al que van referidas las cuentas anuales.
Ejercicio anterior.
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